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Corporate Structure

NCIES

As at 31 March 2023
20233 A31H

BGMC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
EFERERER A
(Stock Code: 1693) (Note 1)
(B 1R R5% : 1693) (A1aE1)

BGMC Malaysia Limited

BGMC Holdings Berhad
BGMC Corporation
Sdn Bhd BGMC Energy Sdn Bhd
80% 51% 95%
Built-Master Headway BGMC BRAS BGMC E
Engineering Construction T state
Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd Sdn Bhd (Note 2) Sdn Bhd
(Btat2)
Built-Master
Elevator
Engineering
Sdn Bhd
Notes:
1. Unless otherwise stated, all subsidiaries are wholly-owned by BGMC International Limited.
2. On 26 April 2023, BGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company as the management control and economic interest in BGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd

has been acquired by reNIKOLA Sdn Bhd. As a result, the financial results of BGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd will no longer be consolidated by the Company, while the Company
remains as registered owner of 95% shares in BGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd until reNIKOLA Sdn Bhd exercises the call option or BGMC Corporation Sdn Bhd exercises the put
option, details of which are disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 21 September 2022.

1. BEEHPBI) - BrERE R Al BT R IR ER A A2 EHR °

2 R2023F4 /26 H + #158eNIKOLA Sdn Bhd E4CfEBGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd &) EFE1E #IE R A/ B 75 » EIIEBGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd T~ /375 23 Al /&
2] o Bt KR EETEE BFBGMC Bras Power Sdn BhdByBI 5348 + 17K 23 G]173BBGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd 95% JR 178975 AT 5 2 B £reNIKOLA
Sdn Bhd7T1Z 538 BB 5BGMC Corporation Sdn Bhd7TIE3208 A + RHFFIEE HHERA L 7] H A A2022F9 721 HHIE 1F -
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Dear valued shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors ("Board”) of BGMC International Limited
("BGMC" or “Company” or “we"” or "us”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group’), | am pleased to present to you the Company’s annual report for the
year ended 31 March 2023 ("FY2023").

During FY2023, the Group have completed a few number of project successfully
albeit with the previous interruptions of movement control order due to outbreak
of COVID-19 pandemic. The most notable handover during this period would
always be the Setia SPICE hotel project in Penang. While the Group continue
to deliver its construction projects, the disposal of the Group's large scale solar
power plant project had also been completed in April 2023. This successful
transaction has solved the legal, financial and entanglements the Group faced in

recent months.

Notwithstanding that important milestones were achieved in FY2023, it would be
remiss not to acknowledge the challenges that the construction and concession
industry faced in the last 12 months. The construction industry, like many others,
has grappled with disruptions in the global supply chain, and the fluid economic
conditions caused by the uneasy US-China relationship, the Ukraine war, the
stubbornly high core inflation and the slower than expected recovery of the
Chinese economy. The formation of the new Unity Government in our Group's
home country as recent as November 2022 had also resulted some impacts to

the economy and particularly to the construction and concession industry.

All the challenges mentioned above are, however, not new and are not beyond
our manoeuvring. We have diligently managed these challenges by employing
strategies to sourcing alternative options and optimizing delivery processes. Our
focus on efficiency has enabled us to mitigate the risks and ensure the continuity
of our operations during this challenging period. Strategies and approaches were
also put in to ensure that the Group will work on the projects that will bring both
short term and longer-term benefits to the Group. The impressive economic
growth rate of 5.6% achieved by Malaysia in the 15t quarter of 2023 has led to

optimism that Malaysia’s economy is on track for a better than expected 2023.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

Looking ahead, we remain optimistic on the future of the construction and
concession industry as it remains vital in a nation’s development by contributing
to the economic growth, infrastructure enhancement and job creation.
Despite the impact of the global pandemic, the industry has shown remarkable
adaptability. The Malaysian Government's commitment to infrastructure
development, sustainable construction practices, and digital transformation
presents immense opportunities for growth and advancement. We will position
ourselves and are dedicated to leveraging these opportunities, with our existing

track records and expertise.
Acknowledgement
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Business Review

BGMC is a full-fledged, integrated solutions provider operating in two business
sectors. One of them is the Construction Services sector (comprising Building and
Structures segment, Energy Infrastructure segment, Mechanical and Electrical
segment, and Earthworks and Infrastructure segment) which undertakes
primarily construction service contracts not exceeding five years. The other is the
Concession and Maintenance sector which undertakes Public Private Partnership
("PPP") contracts with a duration of around 20 years.

Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWED N

L

BHBERASEEERAERTTRZEER - RMIEZES
BEHEE  c H—RRERBEAX(AEFTREED
BB REREEN B MMEETOMMARLT RE
BOREK) - TRARTBBRIFNEERKS
#) o H— R ERRMBIERE - EEL20FH
RILEFE(PPPIEH)

Core Business

BT

Segment/Model
28, X

What BGMC Does
ERERERTE

Construction

Services

RS

Building and Structures
segment

BFREED

Focuses on construction of low-rise and high-rise residential and commercial
properties, factories, as well as government led infrastructure and facility projects.
SEPREBELSEEENEENE  IHRAMBAFIEEZRRIERE N
i -

Energy Infrastructure
segment

Has two previously independent businesses:
(@) design and construction of medium and high voltage power substations; and

(b) installation of medium and high voltage underground cabling systems. Is also
responsible for developing and constructing the utility scale solar power plant.

R MIBSLAE M ER

(@ REthEETBRSBEEEY &

b) REPEBRSEMTHEES FAREEEERMEREARIEAGE

Mechanical and Electrical
segment

e N BT B

Focuses on bringing value-added engineering expertise to the installation
of mechanical and electrical components and equipment for buildings and
infrastructure, drawing on its all-round capabilities from design and planning to
installation of the mechanical and electrical facilities.
STRBBFREZOMEBH RRENTRRHGETRZXND - 2R
HEBERERTERBINELREN T T IKEE °

Concession and
Maintenance

Frat iR &1 S e

Build, Own and Operate
("'BOO") model

2iE - ER
2% ([BOO ) IET

A concession to build a solar power plant, and to generate and to sell such power
generated from the plant to national utility company for 21 years. The Group
had entered into agreements to dispose of interest in 95% ordinary shares in the
subsidiary which holds the solar power plant on 24 March 2022, the details of which
are set out in the circular of the Company dated 21 September 2022.
—IERF SR EREENGREER  WHEAZEEHEENRHEHERH
BENTERAARMEAR - BENF - AEEEF iz EEREME QT
9% E MM LR - FZARIN2022F3 A4 R AL A5 BB - BHAS
FNAQRIBHA20226F9821 BRBE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

Construction Services Sector

The Construction Services sector contributed RM107.5 million, or 97.6%, to the
consolidated revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023 ("FY2023"
or “Year"), against RM275.9 million, or 96.5%, recorded for the period from 1
October 2020 to 31 March 2022 ("FPE2022"). The significant difference is mainly
due to the 18 months recorded for FPE2022 as compared to the 12 months
period recorded in FY2023. In addition to this, a small remaining order book has
also resulted in much lesser revenue recognition in FY2023 whilst the impact of
estimated liquidated ascertained damages ("LAD") on revenue as the Group has
also played a role in reducing the Group's recognizable revenue.

Notwithstanding the above, the Group has achieved certain milestone in this
sector with the successful completion and handed over of the Setia SPICE hotel
project to the client in December 2022. With this completion, the consultants
of the project have procured the Group to participate in the tender process of 2
other similar projects. This has not only given the Group the new opportunities,
it has also shown that the Group still possess the capability and track record to
further work on other new projects even after all the difficulties the Group was
facing since 2020.

During FY2023, the Construction Services sector has not secured any new
contract. As at 31 March 2023, we have an outstanding order book of RM158.6
million which will keep the Group busy for another 18 months. The Group’s major
ongoing projects are as follows:

BRI A

FRERMGEE AE 220233 A31 B IEFE ([202381
F ([ REEHAEBGAEKREZEEN10758 84
FHHFek07.6% © M2020F 1031 HZE 20223 A31HEA
I ([FPE2022 |) Al 527598 B M E 455K06.5% ° #8&
ZEF TR ARMFPE20225E 8/ \(E A HIRA + 2023
B RERS T AR - Btz oh - FIghETE
D INEB023H FRR AR AR LD - M
BHBES([BYEESDEAEBRRANTZEN
BYAEENATERBIARD

BEWL  AEETEERFELGREETER
i - 2022512 AT FERK Setia SPICE)E JEIE B I 1%
HBEZXFEP - HETKE  ZEENERERE
AEBEL2ESIINRERLIEE OREREF - TMEA
REETRIHE - IRA\RMEAREE F2020F B
RELHEERESE  NEBNABE N BREGEEE
B EHIIEE o

202381 6 » BRI BRI RIS EMFEL -
20233 A318 » &RIMAE 15868 BMEFHRTK
FIE - R AREBERR+TESAIIEDAZIT -
REBMARTEZEBEENT :

Project Name and Description

HEEBREN

The Sky Seputeh: Construction of two 37-storey towers with 290 apartment
units, car parks and other facilities at Taman Seputeh, Wilayah Persekutuan,
Malaysia.

The Sky Seputeh : 7 5§ 2K 78 25 Taman Seputeh,
Wilayah Persekutuan & &% M EE37 /& 89 RAE - B 45290
ERTE - FHIGREMEBRE o

Bangsar 61: Construction of Earthworks, Basement and Associated Works for a
4-storey basement car park at Bangsar, KL, Malaysia.

&6l NERATEREZ D RIBHEFES
R - HERMERIRE -
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Building and Structures Segment

As the leading segment of the Construction Services sector and the Group as
a whole with sizeable contracts on hand, Building and Structures contributed
RM94.3 million, or 85.7%, to the Group’s consolidated revenue in FY2023,
compared to RM247.9 million, or 86.7% in FPE2022.

During FY2023, this segment has not secured any new project as the Group
switches its focus to (i) increase the productivity and work done for the existing
ongoing projects to complete the ongoing projects soonest possible; (ii)
preserving the Group's resources in procuring the suitable projects; and (iii) the
slower than expected rolling out of new projects by the property industry due
to headwinds faced by our clients. Meanwhile, the Group'’s operation level and
construction activities have further improved as a result of the implementation
of National Recovery Plan by the Government of Malaysia. Coupled with the
Group's effort in refocusing on our job, the result is the successful completion
and handing over of the Setia SPICE hotel project to the client in December 2022.

As at 31 March 2023, the Building and Structures segment had an outstanding
order book of RM157.2 million as compared to RM301.3 million as at 31 March
2022.

Other Segments

During FY2023, the Energy Infrastructure segment has contributed a revenue
of RM9.2 million or equivalent to 8.4% of the Group's consolidated revenue, as
compared with RM12.7 million or 4.4% of the consolidated revenue in FPE2022.
The completion of cables laying project for PMU Shah Alam 18 to PMU SIRIM
underground cabling work is the milestone achieved by the segment in FY2023.

On the other hand, the Mechanical and Electrical segment has recorded a
revenue of RM3.9 million or 3.5% contribution to the consolidated revenue in
FY2023, as compared with RM24.7 million or 8.6% contribution to consolidated
revenue in FPE2022.

Both the segments are running low remaining order book due to non-
procurement of new project during FY2023. Though the Group possesses
the track record of securing and completing these projects, the procurement
activities are nevertheless kept to minimum due to the challenging market
conditions. The Group foresees the revenue contribution to be insignificant
going forward and has therefore re-allocated the resources to the Building and
Structures segment and the Concession and Maintenance sector.

Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WED N

BFRAEBEEERGBILAEFREBNEED
B mEREFESY  ARSER2023FFHER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

Concession and Maintenance Sector

BGMC had one PPP contract, the Solar Power Purchase Agreement signed with
Tenaga Nasional Berhad (“TNB”), a sole power distributor for Peninsular Malaysia,
which is operated under BOO model.

BOO Model - Large Scale Solar Photovoltaic (“LSSPV”) Power Plant

This concession contract that the Group has entered into is a contract to build a
LSSPV power plant, to generate and to sell the power generated from the plant
to TNB. The plant has an output capacity of 30 megawatts alternate current and is
located at Kuala Muda, Kedah, Malaysia. The LSSPV power plant has managed to
procure the commercial operation date on 22 March 2022 and has since started
to generate and sell the solar power to TNB even though the Group has yet to
accept the construction of the LSSPV power plant fully from the Engineering,
Procurement, Construction and Commissioning ("EPCC") contractor. The full
and final handover of the LSSPV power plant will only occur when the Group
is satisfied with the completion of the defective work by the EPCC contractor.
During FY2023, the BOO business has a revenue of RM5.1 million as compared
to RM71.1 million in FPE2022. The much reduction is a result of low recognizable
outstanding construction revenue.

The Group has however entered into agreements on 24 March 2022 for the
proposed disposal of interest in 95% ordinary shares of BGMC Bras Power, which
the proposal was approved in the extraordinary general meeting ("EGM”) of
the Company held on 7 October 2022. The completion of the disposal was
subsequently achieved on 26 April 2023. For details, please refer to the circular
of the Company dated 21 September 2022 and the announcements of the
Company dated 27 June 2022 and 26 April 2023.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 21 September 2022, the
main reasons for the Group to dispose the interest in 95% ordinary shares of
BGMC Bras Power is to allow the Group (i) to settle the disputes existed with the
previous financing partners; (i) to avoid investing additional funds required for
the completion of the project; (iii) to recoup the investments made and to re-use
it for other purpose.

Notwithstanding the disposal of this LSSPV power plant project, the Group will
nevertheless, invest more resources to procure a new project that resembles the
features of this sector. As the main reason for the disposal of BGMC Bras Power is
not to quit the business but for those reasons listed above, the Group believed
that we will have more experiences and knowledges to build a model that suit
the Group better going forward.

BGMC International Limited
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Financial Review
Revenue

The Group's total revenue recorded RM110.1 million in FY2023 as compared to
RM285.8 million in FPE2022. The significant difference is mainly due to the 18
months recorded for FPE2022 as compared to the 12 months period recorded
in FY2023. In addition to this, a small remaining order book has also resulted in
much lesser revenue recognition in FY2023 whilst the impact of estimated LAD
on the transaction price of the construction contracts as the LAD has also played
arole in reducing the Group's recognizable revenue.

Notwithstanding the above, the Group has achieved certain milestone in
completing and handing over projects to the clients. Notable completed project
are the Setia SPICE hotel project and also the PMU Shah Alam 18 to PMU SIRIM
underground cabling work.

Gross Profit

The Group recorded total gross profit of RM4.3 million in FY2023 as compared
to a gross loss of RM50.1 million in FPE2022. The gross profit margin is 3.9% in
FY2023 whilst =17.5% in FPE2022. The improvement of gross profit and gross
profit margin was due to the Group procuring extension of time (“‘EOT") for 2 of
the Group'’s major projects.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group recorded net profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RM11.9 million in FY2023, as compared with the net loss of
approximately RM56.5 million attributable to the owners of the Company in
FPE2022. The improvement in net profit for FY2023 was mainly attributable
to, among others, (i) the Group has managed to secure EOT for two major
projects which led to decrease of anticipated LAD payable to customer; (ii)
lower impairment losses of financial assets and contract assets; (iii) reversal of a
provision of bank performance bonds, subsequent to dismissal by the Malaysian
Court of Appeal on Customer A's appeal against the injunction granted in favour
of the Group; and (iv) there was a loss on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately
RM25.7 million in FPE2022 but no such loss in FY2023.

Other Income
Other income decreased from RM50.7 million recorded in FPE2022 to RM1.2

million in FY2023 due to the gains on one-off extinguishment of debts of RM46.1
million arisen from the debts restructuring exercise in FPE2022.
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Administrative and Other Expenses

Administrative and other expenses decreased from RM35.5 million in FPE2022
to RM15.7 million in FY2023. The reduction in administrative and other expenses
is contributed by reduction of staff cost, lower of professional legal fees and
reduction of amortisation of intangible assets in FY2023.

Finance Cost

Finance costs for FY2023 were RM1.1 million as compared to RM3.9 million in the
FPE2022. The repayments of bank borrowings in FPE2022 have resulted a lower
finance cost incurred in FY2023.

Income Tax Expenses

The income tax expenses increased from a tax credit of RM2.4 million in FPE2022
to a tax expense of RM0.5 million in FY2023, mainly due to over provision of
income tax expenses amounting to RM2.0 million recognised in FPE2022.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Net gearing ratio of the Group (calculated by dividing the net debts by equity
attributable to owners of the Company) is recorded at 0.28 times as at 31 March
2023 as compared to 0.01 times as at 31 March 2022. The increase in net gearing
ratio is due to the advances received from reNIKOLA to fund the repayment and
also the project development cost for the LSSPV power plant project.

Cash and bank balances (including fixed deposits) stood at RM29.9 million
as at 31 March 2023 as compared with RM37.3 million as at 31 March 2022,
representing a reduction of RM7.4 million.

Net Current Assets

Net current assets of the Group stood at RM107.8 million as at 31 March 2023, as

compared with RM118.9 million as at 31 March 2022.

For the going concern analysis, please refer to Note 4(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, “Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements”.

BGMC International Limited
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Treasury Policies

The Group's financing and treasury activities are centrally managed and
controlled at the corporate level. Bank borrowings of the Group are all
denominated in RM and on a floating-rate basis. It is the Group's policy not to
enter into derivative transactions for speculative purposes.

Capital Expenditure

Capital expenditure mainly consisted of procurement of construction machinery
and computer equipment, which was funded by hire purchase and internally
generated funds. The Group has not acquired any construction machinery or
equipment in FY2023.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The functional currency of BGMC's operation, assets and liabilities is denominated
in RM. Therefore, the Company is not exposed to significant foreign exchange
risk and has not employed any financial instrument for hedging, except for Hong
Kong Dollar denominated bank balances which is not material to the Group as a
whole.

Significant Investment Hold
The Group did not hold any other significant investment during FY2023.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

Save for the disposal of the interest in 95% ordinary shares of BGMC Bras Power
as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27 June 2022 and the
circular of the Company dated 21 September 2022, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during FY2023.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has 107 employees as compared to 130 as at 31
March 2022. Total staff costs incurred in FY2023 were RM10.6 million as compared
to RM18.4 million recorded in FPE2022. The Group has taken immediate actions
to review and reorganize the workforce required to run the operation and
projects more efficiently, which lead to reduction of administrative expenses in
FY2023.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Remuneration is determined by reference to prevailing market terms and in
accordance with the performance, qualification and experience of each individual
employee. Periodic in-house training is provided to enhance the knowledge of
the workforce. Meanwhile, external training programs conducted by qualified
personnel are also attended by employees to enhance their skills set and working
experience.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) which
became effective on 9 August 2017 (“Listing Date”), being the date of listing
of the shares of the Company (“Shares”) on the Stock Exchange, to enable the
Board to grant share options to eligible participants giving them an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company. As at the date of this annual report,
there was no outstanding share option granted under the Share Option Scheme.

Contingent Liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities up to the date of this annual report
are set out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

Future Prospect

As shared in the previous financial years, the Group had gained a much firmer
and stronger foothold after successfully implemented the strategies devised to
overcome the difficulties plaguing the Group since 2020. The previous milestones
and accomplishments are further boosted by the completion and handing
over of our notable projects of the Setia SPICE hotel in Penang after numerous
disruptions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. Since then, the professional
consultant team enrolled the Group into tendering 2 other similar hotel projects
having known the Group's capability in delivering the project during challenging
time. As the Group continues to engage in the tender process, we shall publish
further encouraging news if and when any project is secured.

While we refocus in procuring the projects that we did best in the past, we
have always reminded ourselves of not getting into those projects that have
troubled us dearly in the past. In addition, we are trying to be innovative with our
current business model and work with the property or land owners to establish
development projects that will provide more leeway to our business. The concept
of design and build for the land owners or getting involved in the development
business could also be in our consideration as we need to revolutionise our
business to return the Group into a profitable and prospective organisation.

BGMC International Limited
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In addition to procuring new projects, the process of digitising our delivery
processes continues as part of our strategies to improve communication,
coordination, efficiency and productivity of our business. We continue to
explore new construction technology, method or system and new building
materials. The Group believes that with technologies, we are able to enhance
our competitiveness, our capability to build better and more efficiently
especially during the challenging time. The decision to use the construction
Software-as-a-Service ("SaaS”") has continued to further increase our productivity
and efficiency in delivering projects. Evaluation on the productivity and
efficiency gain has so far been really promising. While the Group has enjoyed the
productivity gain, we foresee opportunity do exist to work with the construction
SaaS provider to establish a similar construction Saa$ in other new market in the
near future.

While the construction activities crank up another gear to pare back the lost
time and productivity, our competitiveness are further lifted with the successful
completion of the very substantial disposal of our large scale solar power
plant project located at Kuala Muda, Kedah together with the settlement and
discontinuance of all the groundless lawsuits that were brought against the
Group. The Court of Appeal had also dismissed an appeal by our ex-client in an
attempt to remove the injunction to encash our performance bond imposed by
the High Court of Kuala Lumpur.

Aside from gaining more confidence, we have also gained loads of experience
in the concession project development and construction. This is rightly the
case after successfully completing the development of our large scale solar
power plant. Leveraging these experiences, the Group is currently reviewing
and devising the plan and business model to venture into other green and
sustainable energy generation projects.

As it may sound, the prospect, of a business producing green and sustainable
energy for the market, is enormous. As the world turn to these types of
energies to fight the climate change, businesses like the energy sapping data
centres are also racing towards securing these energies to enhance their own
environmental, social and governance profile. Huge demands are therefore
awaiting the green and sustainable energy supply not only in Malaysia but the
entire world. The venture is made more attractive with the business model which
is itself sustainable, income recurrence and downturn-proof albeit it needs loads
of planning, structuring, financing, coordination and management to have it
realised. The Group, picking up the data and trend from the previous solar power
plant business, has thus taken the initiative to start charting the future in this
business.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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We expect the Malaysian economy to gradually recover and stabilise in year
2023 as it emerges out from the doldrums of the COVID-19 pandemic. The
advantage of having a stable Malaysian Government and clear policies will also
enhance further the businesses in the construction and concession industry.
The announcement of an impressive 5.6% economic growth recorded in
the 1st quarter of 2023 has boosted the confidence of the public at large
whilst enhancing the attractiveness to foreign direct investment. Investment
from warehousing and logistics business, data centres and semi-conductor
manufacturers are not only creating jobs for the construction industry but also
the energy supply businesses.

Going forward, we will continue our endeavours in seeking opportunities in
the construction and concession industry, develop projects that may help to
generate businesses and recurring income, while exploring new businesses or
new business model to ensure the sustainability of the Group. The Group also
aims to complete the project soonest possible so as to fulfil our contractual
obligations to our valued clients. All these new objectives and focuses will not
only ensure a successful completion of projects for our clients, it may also leave
behind a good name and track record for other future opportunities.

BGMC International Limited
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Directors and Senior Management

Directors

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee ("Dato’” Michael Teh"), aged 40, was appointed as a Director
on 18 November 2016 and is now the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director. He is also a member of each of the Nomination Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. Dato’ Michael Teh is currently the chief executive
officer and a director of BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (‘BGMC Corporation”),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. He is also a director of all
subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for overall management,
corporate development and strategic planning of the Group. He graduated from
the University of the West of England, Bristol in England with a Bachelor's degree
in Law in July 2006. Dato’ Michael Teh is a nephew of Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming
Choon (who resigned as the Chairman and an Executive Director on 7 October
2020), a controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition, he is a director of
Seeva International Limited which holds about 19.1% of the issued Shares in the
Company.

Dato’ Michael Teh has over 16 years of experience in the construction field.
Prior to his joining of BGMC Corporation as its project director in April 2011, he
joined B&G Concept Property Sdn. Bhd., a housing and commercial property
development company in Malaysia, in September 2006, as a personal assistant
to the managing director for about five years. He was responsible for providing
guidance on contract and commercial practices and procedures to the managing
director, project managers or other operational staff.
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Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman, /ndependent Non-executive Director
and Chairman

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (“Datuk Kamalul Arifin"), aged 63, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director (“INED”) and Chairman on
7 October 2020. He is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the Board
and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice to the Board.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin has years of experience in the real estate sector, including
but not limited to property valuation, property investment and property
management. Datuk Kamalul Arifin was appointed by the Malaysian Government
as the Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Pelaburan
Hartanah Berhad from 2006 to 2018. Datuk Kamalul Arifin is currently an
independent non-executive director of Sentral REIT (formerly known as MRCB-
Quill REIT), a real estate investment trust (‘REIT”) listed on Bursa Malaysia under
the stock name SENTRAL (formerly known as MQREIT).

Datuk Kamalul Arifin obtained his Bachelor of Estate Management from Universiti
Teknologi MARA and his Master of Business Administration from Ohio University
in the United States of America. Datuk Kamalul Arifin is a fellow of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, United Kingdom, the Royal Institution of
Surveyors Malaysia, and the Malaysian Institute of Property and Facility Managers.
He is also a registered property manager with the Board of Valuers, Appraisers,
Estate Agents and Property Managers.

Kua Choh Leang, Independent Non-executive Director

Kua Choh Leang (“Mr. Kua"), aged 59, was appointed as an INED on 3 July 2020.
He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Board. He is also a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and Risk
Committee of the Board. He is primarily responsible for supervising and providing
independent advice to the Board. His experience as auditor will add to the
Board's expertise in the areas of performance, risk management and reporting.

Mr. Kua obtained his Malaysian Higher School Certificate from Tarc College in
1983. Mr. Kua has over 35 years' experience in auditing and business advisory. Mr.
Kua held various positions with Ernst & Young since 10 December 1984 up to 30
September 2019, where his last positions were executive director since January
2005 up to December 2008, and partner since January 2009 up to September
2019.

Mr. Kua was a member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Malaysian Institute of Accountants since 1991 and 1993, respectively, up to

present.

Mr. Kua has been appointed as an INED of KESM Industries Berhad, a company
listed on Bursa Malaysia (Stock Code: 9334), since 1 May 2023.

BGMC International Limited
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Datuk Kang Hua Keong, Independent Non-executive Director

Datuk Kang Hua Keong ("“Datuk Kang"), aged 63, was appointed as an INED
on 24 June 2022. He is a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Risk Committee of the Board.

Datuk Kang has been engaged in the information technology industry involving
in hardware manufacturing, distribution and retail including software business,
e-commerce and international trade business since 1985. Datuk Kang graduated
from the National Taiwan Ocean University (formerly known as National
Taiwan College of Marine Science and Technology) with a bachelor's degree in
engineering.

Datuk Kang is currently the chairman of Danong Group, a council member of
the National Employment Council, Prime Minister's Office of Malaysia, a council
member of the National Recovery Council, Prime Minister’s Office of Malaysia,
managing director and chief executive officer of SMB Connection Sdn. Bhd.
(former publisher of SME Connect magazine for small and medium-sized
enterprise community), a director of SMB Solutions Management Sdn. Bhd. Datuk
Kang was a former director of Asia Media Group Berhad, a company incorporated
in Malaysia, the shares of which are listed on Bursa Malaysia (stock code: 0159).

Senior Management
Dato’ Michael Teh, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, 40 years old

Dato’ Michael Teh is primarily responsible for supervising and overseeing the
overall business of the Group. Please refer to the paragraph headed "Directors” in
this section above for his biography.

Chiang Wai Lam, Project Director, 44 years old

Chiang Wai Lam is a Project Director of the Group and BGMC Corporation. He is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, primarily responsible for
supervising and overseeing the construction projects of the Group. He graduated
from the University of Sheffield Hallam, England with a Bachelor's degree in
Building Construction Management in September 2002. He has around 16 years
of experience in the construction field. Prior to joining BGMC Corporation as
a project manager in April 2011, he held the position of quantity surveyor at
Modular Construction, a construction company in Malaysia, from October 2002 to
July 2007, where he was responsible for cost estimation and contract documents.
In October 2007, he joined B&G Concept Property Sdn. Bhd., a construction
company in Malaysia, as a senior quantity surveyor/cost planner for 3 years. He
was responsible for contract documents, cost estimation and cost planning.

Directors and Senior Management
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Directors and Senior Management

EEREREER

Ee Kian Yiaw, Project Director, 46 years old

Ee Kian Yiaw is currently a Project Director of the Group and BGMC Corporation.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, primarily responsible
for supervising and overseeing the construction projects of the Group. He
graduated from the University of Hertfordshire in England with a Bachelor’s
degree in Engineering in June 2000. He has over 21 years of experience in the
construction field. Prior to his joining BGMC Corporation in April 2011, Ee Kian
Yiaw joined Mie Industrial Sdn. Bhd., a construction company in Malaysia, in
November 2000 as a trainee engineer and was subsequently promoted to project
engineer. He was responsible for planning and implementing construction
projects. In February 2004, Ee Kian Yiaw joined Best Ventures Sdn. Bhd. as a
project engineer for 7 years. He was responsible for supervising and monitoring
the construction projects.

Joan Ong May Ean, Chief Financial Officer, 40 years old

Joan Ong May Ean is a Chief Financial Officer of the Group and BGMC
Corporation. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, primarily
responsible for supervising and overseeing the overall financial management of
the Group. She graduated from Swinburne University of Technology, Australia
with a Bachelor of Business in Accounting in December 2005 and obtained her
Master of Business Administration from University of Wollongong, Australia in July
2016. Joan Ong May Ean is an associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales ("ICAEW") since November 2013 and she is a member of
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”) since December 2014.

Joan Ong May Ean had over 4.5 years' experience in auditing field with Deloitte
KassimChan Sdn Bhd. She has over 7 years of experience in the account and
finance field. Prior to her joining BGMC Corporation as the Chief Financial Officer,
she joined Sime Darby Global Services Centre Sdn Bhd as team lead, Market
Research and Strategy Assistant manager with Sime Darby Bhd — Global Trading
and Marketing, and was the Head of Finance of EFCO Malaysia Sdn Bhd.

BGMC International Limited
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1.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

About this Report

This environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report is prepared in
accordance with the “Comply or explain” provisions of the ESG reporting
guide ("Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange’). Environmental key performance indicators
("KPIs") were calculated and presented in the form of intensities, where
the amount calculated is divided by either the total construction floor area
("CFA") or the office area that contributes to the KPI. Social KPIs, on the
other hand, were calculated using the relevant universal formula.

This report presents the environmental and social performance of BGMC
International Limited ("Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “Group”
or "BGMC") for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 (“Year").

During the Year, all of the Group's operations were located in Malaysia,
hence the relevant laws and regulations mentioned in this report are those
legislated in Malaysia.

Sustainability Management Objectives, Strategy
and Approach

The Group aims to instill the ESG concepts in its business and growth and
to continuously improve its performance in each relevant subject area of
the Guide. It does this by adopting ESG objectives, policies and procedures,
allocating good resources for ESG, embedding ESG objectives into the
Company's Qube System, and creating an ESG identity for the Group.

2.1. Adopting ESG Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The Group has adopted the following ESG objectives:

To ensure the company’s operations are environmentally
sustainable.

ii.  Toensure the company's operations are socially sustainable.

ii.  To ensure the company's operations adhere to good corporate
governance practices.
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The Group has in place the following set of policies and procedures
aimed at achieving the above ESG objectives.

Waste Reduction Policy
ii.  Emission Reduction Policy
ii. ~ Personal Data Protection Policy
iv.  Intellectual Property Protection Policy
v.  Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy
vi.  Policy against Child Labour and Forced Labour
vii.  Set of procedures on workplace environment, safety and health
viii. ~ Set of procedures on quality management
ix.  Set of corporate governance policies
Policies and procedures above mentioned explained in this report
under their respective related ESG aspects. The Group's Corporate
Governance policies are described separately in the Group’s Corporate
Governance Report.
Allocating Good Resources for ESG
The Company's board of directors ("Board”) has overall responsibility
for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. In line with the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange, the Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
Group's ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate and effective
ESG risk management and internal control systems are in place.
Embedding ESG into the Qube System
The Group has a proprietary system called the Qube System 2.0. There
are eight elements in the Qube System 2.0 that drive the everyday
efficiencies that stack up as quality, time and cost advantages for the

Company'’s stakeholders. Two of the eight elements are in line with
the Group's emphasis on ESG. They are:

(@) “Sustainability’ - Conducting business responsibly in the
environments, economies and communities the Group operates
in for the benefit of today’s and future generations.

(b) "Governance’ - Balancing the interests of all stakeholders to
operate with accountability, fairness and integrity.

BGMC International Limited
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2.4. Creating an ESG Identity

To garner greater awareness and unite all stakeholders towards
achieving ESG objectives, the Group has adopted a stand called “Better
Together” — a movement that creates an identity for the collaborative
nature of its ESG activities. Under the “Better Together” movement, the
Group has the following three specific mottos:

(@) “Sustaining Together’ — The Group uses this motto to promote
environmental sustainability. It is associated with initiatives to
reduce emissions of air pollutants and greenhouse gases, as well
as to reduce hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.

(b) “Prospering Together’ - The Group uses this motto to
promote social and economic sustainability. It is associated
with efforts in balancing the interests of all stakeholders and
operating with accountability, fairness and integrity.

(c) "Caring Together” — The Group uses this motto to promote
community investments as part of social sustainability. It
is associated with initiatives such as supporting charities,
community sponsorships, and employee welfares.

SUSTAINING PROSPERING

TQSETHER

3. Stakeholder Engagement

The Group recognises that the expectation and feedback from its
stakeholders are vital to the sustainable development of the Group. An
effective communication with stakeholders is maintained through daily
operations, such as regular meeting, corporate website, social media,
written/electronic correspondence, training etc., to develop open and
honest relationships with stakeholders. Key stakeholders of the Group
include government, shareholders/investors, customers, suppliers,
subcontractors, industry players, employees and community etc.

We engage with all stakeholder groups regularly through a structured
mechanism. An effective communication with stakeholders is maintained
through daily operations, such as regular meeting, corporate website, social
media, written/electronic correspondence, training etc., to develop open
and honest relationships with stakeholders.

While senior management is primarily consulted during the preparation of
this statement, its contents are aligned with stakeholder interests whenever
possible.
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Identifying key stakeholder groups helps us gauge the actual or potential
impacts our business has on them and vice versa. Key stakeholders of the
Group include government, shareholders/investors, customers, suppliers,
subcontractors, industry players, employees and community etc.

4, Materiality Assessment

The Group has assessed the materiality of each ESG subject area, aspect and
KPI listed in the Guide. As a result, some KPIs under the Guide’s “comply or
explain” provisions have been determined to be immaterial to the Group's
business and hence are not measured and disclosed in this report. They are

explained in Figure 1.

FEE T 2N SRR E B A N B MR AR
B PINERREETZE  R2TA - AEHE
MEEMBBEEBRERN  BRREE
BP - HER  HER - TX2EEF BTN
HEE -

4, EEMIE

REBEFATIESIENT —[EESGEE - E
EMKPIMEZ T T - BRE - A5E
IR R LEKPITEfE S| B[ T T REARRE | UG T
WHEAEAEENEBZEEN - Bitg
BEMTABARBERARER(GEERIE
) -

Aspect or Component under the “comply or

KPI no. explain” provisions that is not reported Why it is not reported

BEFKPIFS [TETRER FERT RE2HRNFD REHRER

Al1.1 Emission data from gaseous fuel The Group uses a very insignificant amount of gaseous fuel.
consumption.

REBIAEHE A B BE R BUE - REBEFERIEE L ENREBINRE

Al2 Hydrofluorocarbons (‘HFC”) and The head offices of the Group use a centralized chilled-water
perfluorocarbons ("“PFC") emissions from air-conditioning system that does not require HFC or PFC as
refrigeration/air-conditioning. refrigerants. Other locations use very insignificant amount of

refrigerant.

%z/%/ SRRSO EREMEY(THFC)IA  RNEBRIPAZTRANRPRBZENSAKERZRL - R

2RIV ([PFC)HERT BEAHFCSPFCREVLH - BB A AT D2 H R
RHE -

Greenhouse gases ("GHG") removals from The Group did not plant any trees in the Year.
newly planted trees.

FiEEEAORRREERE([GHG]) - REBNAFE L EREA o

Indirect emissions from purchased gas. The Group uses a very insignificant amount of purchased gas.

SN SRBB DRI HE A REBEEAIFETIENINERE -

Other indirect emissions from electricity used ~ The amount of sewage produced from the Group's operations is
for processing sewage by government very insignificant, as most of the fresh water used by the Group
departments. goes into the public drainage system.

BUTEBFIEE A ERLRID)S/KBIEFESY  AREERBMELN /KN ERMTEMY - MASEPE
B EL At IR BERR FAEVB R EB M REHE R A HHK R AR -

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished The completed works of the Group do not require packaging.
products per unit produced. Although the Group sometimes protect the finished parts with

materials such as paper, plastic, and plywood, these are usually
salvaged from construction wastes.

BHE—(AKRRERNEBEME AEBETINEBERERBREME - MEREEBRRS(E

FA— L RMRER @ - WARSR - BB AR - WERER
BEEERER o

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.  The Group uses most of the localized suppliers for its project

materials and services.

i RE| D EHEREE - REB G EB AR D IA B WE KRG E B AL R -
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Aspect or Component under the “comply or
KPI no. explain” provisions that is not reported Why it is not reported
EBEZKPIFS: [TEFRER ER T RE2HBOHS REHFREEAE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging All suppliers and subcontractors are required to undergo a stringent
suppliers, number of suppliers where the selection process to ensure their products and services met
practices are being implemented, how our requirements concerning quality, price, delivery, terms of
they are implemented and monitored. payment, and health and safety.
BEAEHERRENEBRIL - 28T MAHERLS EERAKLEFRIRNEERERF - BREER LR
MR HERAR - T EHERE BRAERMNEE - B I REFARBERZZ2T
TLARERE - ER)EK »
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are The Group uses the motto of “Sustaining Together” to promote
implemented and monitored. environmental sustainability. Hence, we strive to engage
1A R BB (L PR SR B (EBR EP RO IR AL suppliers and subcontractors, who incorporate the consideration
SREBRHED] - ARMBRERITRERT of environmental and social risks into their supply chain
S management, with responsible acts to society as defined in item
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 6.5. Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management.
environmentally preferable products and REREUATA RS | RERS - (DERFAHERR - AUt
services when selecting suppliers, and how BABAREEHRE R EABRBAERER - WAFH
they are implemented and monitored. CSEMMATHEEEEENTENEER RSB - E@
WRERRMEER RS MBRERE 85 HERREE-
IRAGEVER - A RABRINTT MR B T5
P
B6 Information on policies and compliance with  The Group does not advertise or label its products or services.
relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the issuer relating to
advertising and labelling.
HNESEENERE  ZOBIETEE AEERBHERIBRBETEEEEHRAEE -
TABBREZENBER(E S A RETE
RAEE RN GAR -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Disclosure on the number of products sold or shipped subject to

subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

HZ& 2 mEERNREME G LS E s
EEHEMMOEEREENE DL

recalls for safety and health reasons was not applicable due to
the Group'’s business nature.

Rz REERNREAMKEEEHNEEHIEELERNEER
BREAEENEBREE ML NEA -
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Aspect or Component under the “comply or
KPI no. explain” provisions that is not reported Why it is not reported
BEZKPIFS: [TEFRER ER T RE2HOHS REHFRHE
B6.2 Number of products and services related The Group regularly controls and monitors the proves of each
complaints received and how they are project in order to ensure that it delivers high-quality services
dealt with. and sustainable projects to our customers by our Quality, Health
< O ey N
Fﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁémﬁﬁﬁ%m BRI EE DA KR and Safety team as defined in item 6.6. Aspect B6: Product
BHR - Responsibility.
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and AR B FRE ) M 5 25 R B O | EREMNEE - &
recall procedures. B R %2 BHAE SR 6o T BE RS RRE
HESRFRZU KRB BREZRGER HE - BB EMET -
B3.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to  The Group encourage staff to actively participate in charitable
the focus area of community investment. activities. See disclosure defined in item 7.1. Aspect B8:
Community Investment.
HEHMWENHEBEREMMENER(ID FAEESBEIREGELEASES - F2H7.1BREHNRK
TEFFH) % o [EMBS : HEIRE -
Figure 1:  Unreported KPIs under the “Comply or Explain” Provisions of the Guide and Their EZX] :  FEFESIAY T8 T AR E T R % Z ey

Explanations

BGMC International Limited
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5. Sustaining Together: Environmental Aspects

5.1. Aspect A1: Emissions

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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5. BFKERE REEM®E

5.1. BEA1 - $EHY

Policies and Targets

The Group has an emission reduction policy to reduce the emission
of air pollutants and GHG. The policy includes incorporating greener
options into the maintaining efficient vehicles and machinery;
conscious use of air-conditioning, electricity and paper; and setting up
rainwater harvesting systems at project sites.

The Group also has a waste reduction policy to reduce its hazardous
and non-hazardous wastes. The policy includes reducing the spillage
of hazardous waste by using methods like dip trays and bund walls,
reducing the use of hazardous substances by exploring alternatives,
as well as reducing, reusing, and recycling products that result in non-
hazardous wastes.

Laws and Regulations

Emission of air pollutants and handling of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are governed by the Environmental Quality Act
1974 of Malaysia and amendments, with which the Group complies.

Air Pollutants

In accordance with the Environmental KPI Guide, air pollutants refer to
nitrogen oxides ("NOx”"), sulphur oxides (“SOx"), and particulate matter
("PM"). The main sources of air pollutants in the Group’s operations
are construction machinery and motor vehicles used. Figure 2 below
shows the amounts and intensities of air pollutants emitted by the
Group's operations during the Year.
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KPI Results

for the Year

KPI Description KPIFi 83 REEKPIZER
Amount of air pollutants RGN E 1.67 tonnes
1.67M

Amount of air pollutants per CFA CFARNMIZE RS RIS 4.380 grammes/m?
4.380% 53K

Figure 2:  Air Pollutants Emitted by the Group's Operations for the Year
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GHG

In accordance with the Environmental KPI Guide, GHG emissions refer
to the sum of carbon dioxide (“CO2") emission and the CO, equivalent
emissions of methane (“CH4") and nitrous oxide (“N20"). GHG

emissions are categorized into direct emissions and indirect emissions.

The main sources of direct emission of GHG in the Group's operations
are motor vehicles used for employee commuting and transporting
goods, as well as machinery and power generators for construction
activities. The main sources of indirect emission of GHG in the Group's
operations are the use of purchased electricity and paper waste

disposed at landfills.

Figure 3 below shows the amounts and intensities of GHG emitted by

the Group's operations for the Year.

GHG

RIBIRIBKPIFES| - GHGEVEERIERN R — &
1ei(1CO HHE ~ Fhi([CH ) FIESL
TAR(TN0 ) HEERCOM PR EN LR
GHG B BE R AT LA 20 753 B 4 HF RO ) 32 B
i

REBEBREENGHCEEFMEZR
BB THBHMNERE Y FTE RN
BE - AMETESERNEMRMNMEE
1 o T AR SR B X A5 P EE £ MIGHG IR BEIX
AXTEREMNMERABESN REREHE
R H) AR REZRY)

AR BRI RAEB N E G EREAT
EAMGHGEEME FI54E -

KPI Results

for the Year

KPI Description KPIF 83 REFEEKPIER

Direct GHG emissions due to mobile and stationary BENME E R M TS B 1,573.81 tonnes

combustion (motor vehicles, machinery and power GHGHEMR (H4B)EE - MR AR 3 E 1,573.810
generators) )

Indirect GHG emissions due to consumption of I GHGEEM (A AFTEE /) 968.88 tonnes

purchased electricity 968.881

Other indirect GHG emissions due to paper waste AEZEHIERNREEEYERNEMD 2.69 tonnes

disposed at landfills R GHGHERR 2.69MF

Total GHG emissions GHGHI A E 2,545.38 tonnes

2,545.38M§

Total GHG emissions per CFA CFARKIGHGHE A & 0.0067 tonnes/m?*

0.0067M 75 K

(6.7 kg/m?)

(6.7F %= FFHXK)

Figure 3:  GHG Emitted by the Group’s Operations for the Year

BGMC International Limited
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Hazardous Wastes

Hazardous wastes from the Group’s operations are mainly unwanted
hazardous substances includes diesel oil, lubricants, paints, and
coating, contaminated soil due to spillage, empty drums or containers
previously contained hazardous substances. Figure 4 below shows the
amounts and intensities of hazardous wastes produced by the Group's
operations for the Year.

RiR - 8 RERKRS

BEERY

AEEXGRELNEEEZNEREN
EBEENFGEDE (RBIERH - HAA -
HRRZRE) - FERM )5 R0 LE -
RRERBEAEMENZRADR - LT
BRABRARERAFEENXBAEE
MEEERZMHEMAE -

KPI Results
for the Year
KPI Description KPIFi 83 REEKPIER
Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites HEHEE ITHAEANAERZY 58.031 tonnes
58.0310f
Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites per CFA CFARTEIE B T PTEA A 0.00015218 tonnes/m?
BEREEY 0.00015218MF " 753K
(152.18 g/m?)
(152.18% F 7 3K)
Figure 4:  Hazardous Wastes Produced by the Group’s Operations for the Year ka . PAEERRFEH R TE LR R
£
Non-Hazardous Wastes EEREEY

Non-hazardous wastes from the Group'’s operations include all other
domestic and construction wastes like paper, plastics, wood, and
metal. Figure 5 below shows the amounts and intensities of non-
hazardous wastes produced by the Group's operations for the Year.

avs

KPI Description KPI% A

AEBEBGHELNEERZMEEME
HibREMTIZERY) - AR - 288 -
AMAREE - W TERSBERASER
AEENEBAELENBEEEZNHEM
SBIE °

KPI Results
for the Year

KEEKPIER

Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites HEBIWELSERNEEREEY 3,281.220 tonnes

3,281.220M§

Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by Project Sites per CFA  CFANFETE B THIFTEE A 1Y 0.0086 tonnes/m?

BEERY

0.0086M 3 5 3K
(8.6 kg/m?)
(8.6F %, FHK)

Figure 5:  Non-Hazardous Wastes Produced by the Group's Operations for the Year

BIRs :  AEERAFR G IEERFEZRE
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5.2. Aspect A2: Use of Resources 5.2. EHA2 : EREHA

Energy Consumption BETRIHFE

The Group consumes energy in the form of electricity for both its AREBERANE N THMFERNEREE
office and worksite. It also consumes energy generated from diesel oil BE - ARFEFRSHEFIRETIRE#
for construction machinery. Whenever possible, the Group taps into W REBEERMEOERANSE HHE
the existing electricity supply network to power worksite operations REATHEBRE BRI EREL
to minimize the usage of diesel oil which emits more GHG. Figure 6 BLGHGHEH - L TERoBERANEE
below shows the amounts and intensities of energy consumed by the RAFEREBHLREFEEMAE -

Group's operations for the Year.

KPI Results
for the Year
KPI Description KPIZ% 83 REFEKPIFER
Energy Consumed by Project Sites T B THEERE 6,468,810.543 kWh
(purchased electricity and diesel oil) (RBEEFLEMH) 6,468,810.543 T FL B
Energy Consumed by Project Sites CFARIHYIE B T HhAEFE 16.963 kWh/m?
(purchased electricity and diesel oil) per CFA (BEEFLMH) 16.963 F FLBF 753K
Energy Consumed by Offices PAERLRE 36,707.00 kWh
(purchased electricity) (=S 36,707.00 T FLB
Energy Consumed by Offices REEEERT BN AEER 22.986 kWh/m?
(purchased electricity) per Office Floor Area (S 22,986 T R B 753K
Figure 6:  Energy Consumed by the Group’s Operations for the Year EFe :  KEBRAEZHIZEFHIGEFE
Water Consumption FKE
The Group consumes water for its worksite construction activities. REBR T TIEBA MK o it
The amount of water used at its offices are very insignificant and NEMFKEAZ BB EEGEN
immeasurable as the head offices share the building’s public EeEASEMBHRMAETHATREKXR
restrooms. Figure 7 below shows the amounts and intensities of water BHALEER - U TER/BRAEE
consumed by the Group’s worksite operations for the Year. RAFEH TR KEMRE o
KPI Results for the Year
REEKPIFER
per CFA
KPI Description KPIZH 85 CFAR
Fresh Water Consumed by Project Sites 8B T REKE 6,519 m3 0.01709 m3/m?

6,519 753K 0.017093 753K, /753K

Figure 7:  Water Consumed by the Group’s Worksite Operations for the Year E&x7:  AEERNFEL) TR AFEKE
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Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

As part of the clients’ requirement, some of the Group’s activities
involved clearing lands, exposing slopes, and handling of hazardous
substances. Heavy vehicles are also prone to tracking mud and silt.
Construction sites are also notorious for producing wastes. If the
above is not well contained and controlled, it will contaminate and
pollute the surroundings environment.

To reduce impacts on the environment, the Group provides more
localized systems and protections such as slope protection, dip trays
and bund walls to contain hazardous spillage, washing bays for heavy
vehicles, rainwater harvesting, solar-powered floodlights, and ample
waste bins. Where relevant, these systems and protections adhere
strictly to requirements of the Malaysian Department of Environment
under the Ministry of Natural Resources, Environment and Climate
Change. To further reduce impacts on the environment, the Group
has also implemented the 3Rs exercise (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle)
at site wherever possible such as replaced the usage of timber to
aluminum formwork for scaffolding.

Aspect A4: Climate Change

Increased severity and frequency of extreme weather events could
lead to project suspension and schedule delays as a result of power
outages, destruct operational sites, cause injuries of employees,
damage to completed works and damage to plant and equipment.
Also, regional transport routes may become impassable for the
delivery of materials.

The Group has appropriately responded by establishing relevant
measures and policies for mitigation and adaptation such as
formulated contingency plans and guidelines for working under
extreme weather, keep materials to covered area, place equipment in
a secure location and maintain a good communication with clients on
project progress.

5.3. [EA3

5.4
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6. BFEL HEEME

6.1. EMB1 : EE

6. Prospering Together: Social Aspects

6.1. Aspect B1: Employment

The Group strives to provide its employees with decent working
environments with fair opportunities to grow with the Group. For
the Year, all of the Group’s employees were based in Malaysia.
Therefore, the Group adopts employment policies that comply with
the Employment Act 1955 of Malaysia and the Industrial Relations
Act 1967 of Malaysia (and their latest amendments), among other
Malaysian laws and regulations that govern employment practices.

The Group’s employment policies are merit-based with a structured
compensation system. Employees’ individual performances are
transparently reviewed in a systematic appraisal process. The Group
practices fair and non-discriminatory recruitment, promotion and
other employment policies where all candidates are given equal
opportunities (See Note A below). Diversity of employees is a
significant factor in establishing workplace policies, in order to ensure
such policies do not pose unfair advantage or disadvantage to any
particular group of employees. Benefits and welfare such as annual
and sick leave entitlement, medical and dental fees reimbursements,
marriage and bereavement allowances, and insurance coverage that
are above and beyond the minimum statutory requirements are also
provided. The Group adopts fair dismissal provisions where employees
are fully informed of their rights with respect to termination of
employment, and takes great measures to ensure dismissal cases
are handled ethically, sensitively, and cordially. Above all, the Group
provides a clear and unobstructed employee grievances channel
where employees have free and convenient access to high-level
management and the Group’s human resources department (“HR
Department’) to channel their grievances.

Note A:  Construction services being one of the Group’s main core businesses, it is
natural that a larger percentage of the Group’s employees are males.
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Figures 8 to 9 below show the total workforce and turnover rates by
gender and age group for the Year.

AT BReE I TRASE
BEERARSIDMET

)};o

BN AF IR R
BABNBETIREK

KPI Results for the Year

REEKPIFER
No.of Turnover Rate
Employees (%)
Gender 4 51 BEEAE BIRAE%)
Female pegs 33 1.75%
Male St 86 2.80%

Figure 8:  Average Number of Employees for the Year (by Gender) & Average Monthly
Employee Turnover Rate for the Year (by Gender)

BZs :  AEFELILIEFIF A FIIESALRAK
FRIZILSE 789 F5EH R TRkFE

KPI Results for the Year

REEFEKPIFER
No.of Employees  Turnover Rate
Age (Years) Fir(BZE) EEAH ETIRKE
1810 30 18 305% 17 4.41%
311040 31E2405% 59 2.10%
411050 A1 E505% 26 2.25%
Above 50 50 17 2.46%

Figure 9:  Average Number of Employees for the Year (by Age Group) & Average
Monthly Employee Turnover Rate for the Year (by Age Group)

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Group’s Environment, Safety and Health ("ESH") Division is
dedicated to managing all workplace health and safety matters. It
strives to provide a healthy and safe working environment for the
Group's employees as well as sub-contractors. A comprehensive set
of policies and procedures on workplace safety and health is strictly
enforced by a team of qualified safety and health officers, supported
by dedicated safety and health personnel, that form the Group's ESH
Division.
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The Group complies with the latest safety and health laws and
regulations including but not limited to the Malaysian Occupational
Safety and Health Act 1994, Malaysian Factories and Machinery Act
1967, and Malaysian Construction Industry Development Board
("CIDB") Act 1994 (and their latest amendments). The compliance
includes providing the necessary personal protective equipment
to all employees, training on good workplace safety and health
practices that are tailored specifically to the nature of work and
working environment, training on ergonomic habits and practices
at the workplace, ample safety and health signages, inclusion of
other organizations’ employees in the Group's safety and health
programmes for better effectiveness, and providing adequate first-aid
boxes.

= 2 e . =Y

on 9 March 2023.

BGMC Project Bangsar 61 organised the Safety Campaign and celebrating the “2 Million Manhours without LTI” achievement at project site
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Figure 10 below shows the number of work-related fatalities and lost
days due to work injury for the Year.

ATNERI10BRAANFE TIEHERE TS
WEANERETEEIIMBRNTHERX
g o

KPI Results

for the Year

KPI Description KPI3H B REEKPIZER
No. of Work-Related Fatalities in the Year AFETERBANSETSHAE 0
No. of Lost Days Due to Work Injury in the Year AERETEEINMERE TERE 0

Figure 10:  Work-Related Fatalities and Lost Days due to Work Injury for the Year
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6.3.

6.4.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Aspect B3: Development and Training

The Group, via the HR Department and respective heads of divisions,
ensures that its employees are provided with sufficient development
and training. A systematic procedure is in place to determine the
training and development needs of each employee. The Group
sponsors its employees to attend training courses as well as
continuous professional development courses which enables them to
upgrade their knowledge and skills.

Figures 11 and 12 below show the percentages of employees trained
and average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category in the Year.

CHERERRE

[ETHEB3 : R RIE

AEEBBANERBFIRE
RSB TIRHU B M BREE - A&
BHE - ERRARNEFATHRE (B
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T2 NEEMERTH B F AL VI FIFRIZ A
RIEERERRIE -

#FEE

ATERNERBRAFEREREES
ARBSHMRIETASLAREMET
BRI IR o

KPI Results for the Year

REEKPIZER

Percentage of Average

Employees Training Hours

Trained Per Employee

ZIET BNEIMN

Gender %5l Aol FHEIIERE

Female It 8.00% 5.58

Male St 2.13% 17.73
Figure 11:  Percentage of Employees Trained for the Year (by Gender) & Average Training EZ11 - FEEZILEFE D) ZE T 5K

Hours Completed per for the Year (by Gender)

RAFERZILLE 7 )& 8 T2 5T
B P52

KPI Results for the Year

KEEKPIGER
Percentage of Average
Employees Training Hours
Trained Per Employee
BUETH
Category &3l FHETESE  FI9EHIREE
Management EEE 11.16% 8.07
Executive T [E 2.14% 15.52
Non-Executive FEITHEE 3.05% 1.80

Figure 12: Percentage of Employees Trained for the Year (by Category)
Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Group has a strict policy against employing illegal child labour
and forced labour, in line with the Children and Young Persons
(Employment) Act 1966 of Malaysia (and its latest amendments). It
ensures that all of its employees work voluntarily for the Group and
are not intimidated or threatened to enforce employment.
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HERERRS

Employees may voice out any contravention to this policy via
employee grievances and whistleblowing procedures as set out in the
Group's employee handbook. The Group restricted its supplier or sub-
contractor to employs illegal child labour or forced labour, the Group
will instruct the supplier or sub-contractor to cease the use of illegal
child labour or forced labour immediately, report the supplier or sub-
contractor to the relevant authorities, and blacklist the said supplier or
sub-contractor from all future projects.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

During vendor selection, the Group considers the distance that the
supplier will travel to deliver items to project sites especially when
the items will be delivered at high frequencies while weighing other
feasibility factors such as product specifications, vendor performance,
and after-sales service.

Most products used by the Group for construction projects are pre-
selected or pre-specified by its clients. However, whenever possible,
and subject to feasibility, the Group will use environmentally friendly
products sourced from responsible suppliers. The Group also
promotes the use of such environmentally friendly products to its
clients and consultants.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
Quality, Health and Safety

The Group has a team of quality assurance and quality control
("QAQC") personnel that ensures construction and installation works
are carried out in accordance with clients’ specifications. The Group's
ESH Division, on the other hand, ensures construction services are
carried out in a safe and healthy manner. The Group also has in place
a quality management system (“QMS”) certified under I1SO 9001:2015
that aims to consistently achieve client satisfaction. Client complaints
are properly recorded and monitored until such actions have been
taken to address said complaints. Root cause analysis is also carried
out to prevent recurrence.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group observes and protects its clients’ intellectual property
rights in accordance with intellectual property laws and regulations
(and their latest amendments) such as the Copyright Act 1987,
Patents Act 1983 and the Trademarks Act 2019 (repeal the Trade
Marks Act 1976) of Malaysia. As per the Group's written policy, it is
committed to respecting the intellectual property of others, and
requires its employees, consultants, professional service providers,
sub-contractors and other agents to use legal and ethical resources
to prevent the tainting of the Group’s operations with improper
introduction of proprietary information of third parties.

BGMC International Limited
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Privacy Rights

The Group has a personal data protection policy that complies with
the Personal Data Protection Act 2010 of Malaysia. The policy includes
information on the type of personal data that the Group may collect,
why and how the personal data are collected, the parties with whom
the Group may share the personal data, the possible transfer of
personal data outside of Malaysia, the choices the Group offers its
stakeholders, responsibilities on personal data protection, retention
period, and stakeholders’ consent.

The Group assures its stakeholders that personal data collected are
wholly for the purpose of properly carrying out its obligations to its
stakeholders, that it does not unnecessarily disclose personal data to
third parties, that it protects personal data with its best endeavors, and
that its stakeholders have options to control how their personal data
are used.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

The Group complies with the Malaysian Anti-Corruption Commission
Act 2009 and its latest amendments. It has in place an anti-bribery
and anti-corruption policy which forms part of the Group’s employee
handbook. This is intended to set out minimum standards to assist
such persons in recognizing circumstances which may lead to or give
the appearance of corruption or unethical business conduct.

The Group has developed a training video on anti-corruption and
shared to all directors and staff. Through this training, all directors
and staff will have a better understanding of bribery offences and
corporate liability, how to effectively deal with corruption risks and
ways to avoid such risks, as well as our anti-bribery and anti-corruption

policy.

In addition, the Group has in place a whistleblowing policy as part
of its employee handbook which explains the provision of a secure
whistleblowing channel for its employees that leads directly to the
Group's compliance officer. The policy also protects whistleblowers
against unfair dismissal, victimization or unwarranted disciplinary
action even if the concerns turn out to be unsubstantiated.

For the Year, there has been no confirmed non-compliance incidents
related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering within the
Group.
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7. Caring Together

7.1.

7.2.
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Aspect B8: Community Investment

The Group endeavors to contribute its resources to the wellbeing
and sustainability of the community in various ways through
communication with the stakeholders including customers, suppliers,
employees, social media through different channels and platforms to
understand their needs and promote its environmental awareness to
the community.

In addition, we encourage our staff to actively participate in charitable
activities and volunteer works, especially on those related with
environmental protection.

Employee Care

The Group aims to ensure that its employees feel included,
appreciated, and valued. Various activities have been organised via
the Group’s HR Department to provide platforms where employees
were able to unwind and connect with each other amidst enjoyable

environments.

' g P, o TAN e
BGMC Group had organized a Christmas Luncheon
and Secret Santa exchange gift on 15 December 2022
at Logenhaus Roast & Grill Restaurant.

75 B R 5 [ 2022 4 12 A 15 H f#ELogenhaus
Roast & Grill EE## T — 5/ FEMWZE

BGMC International Limited
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Employees gathering around during the Group’s Chinese New Year
dinner at South Sea Seafood Restaurant on 17 January 2023.
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1.

Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

BGMC International Limited (“Company” and its subsidiaries,"Group”)
is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to its shareholders
("Shareholders”) and protecting as well as enhancing Shareholders’ value
through good corporate governance. The Company has adopted the
principles contained in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange” and “Listing
Rules’, respectively), as its code of good corporate governance, which the
board of directors of the Company (‘Directors” and “Board’, respectively)
recognises as essential to the success of the Company.

The Board periodically reviews and continues to enhance the Company'’s
corporate governance policies and practices, and the Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code
for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 (“Year”), save for the exception
described in the following paragraph.

Board
2.1. Roles and Responsibilities

The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, to discharge their duties in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The Board is responsible for the
overall management of the Group's business and affairs by establishing
the overall strategies, setting objectives and business development
plans.

The Board has delegated its powers to the management day-to-
day management of the Group’s operations. Under the leadership of
the executive Director ("ED") of the Company, the management is
responsible for implementing the strategies and plans established by
the Board and the implementation of the internal control systems and
risk management.
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Composition of the Board

The members of the Board during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report are set out below:

Executive Director (“ED")

BTES(HTES))

2.2

CEBEEHEAM

RAFEERAEEATHRARZEETEKE
]HT

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (“Dato’ Michael Teh") (Chief executive officer)
SEEHEMN([EBEEAR ) (77844%)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")

BYFHTES(BUFIITES))

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (“Datuk Kamalul Arifin") (Chairman)
2B Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman ([ £&Kamalul Arifin 1) (F/Z)

Kua Choh Leang (“Mr. Kua”)
FEE(MEE])

Datuk Kang Hua Keong ("“Datuk Kang") (Appointed on 24 June 2022)
ETER(EEI]) (20256 R24BEEE)

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report. An updated
list of the Directors identifying the ED and INEDs, and the roles and
functions of each Director, is also maintained on the respective
websites of Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Company reviews the Board composition to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the needs of
the business of the Group.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect
of any legal action against the Directors and the senior management
of the Group.

Meetings of the Board and the Shareholders and Directors’
Attendance Records

The Board is scheduled to meet four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days
in advance. For all other Board meetings, notice will be given in a
reasonable time in advance. All Directors are given draft agenda for all
matters for deliberation and resolution at the meetings.
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The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
is responsible to prepare and circulate the abovementioned draft
agenda and board papers. All Board meetings’ minutes recorded in
sufficient detail of the matters considered and decisions reached will
be kept by a duly appointed secretary of the meeting. Draft and final
versions of the minutes are circulated to the Directors for comments
and records respectively within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

Eight Board meetings and one annual general meeting of the
Company ("AGM") were held during the Year and up to the date
of this annual report. Their meeting attendance at Board and Board
committees’ meetings is evidenced by the attendance record set out
in the table below. In addition, one extraordinary general meeting
("EGM") was held on 7 October 2022. All Directors attended the EGM.
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Meetings Attended/Held
HE/ ETHeE
2022 Annual
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Risk General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting
% M R’ Ak 20228
Epg Ezg Z88 Z8% Z88 Z88 RREFAE
ED
YirEs
Dato’ Michael Teh 8/8 - - 33 33 1
SEHEMN
INEDs
BUFHTES
Datuk Kamalul Arifin 8/8 5/5 33 33 33 1N
2 BKamalul Arifin
Mr.Kua 8/8 5/5 3/3 33 33 1
b
Datuk Kang (Note) 5/5 4/4 22 22 373 11
EX NN

Note: Datuk Kang was appointed on 24 June 2022.
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SERWE

2.4. Induction and Continuing Professional Development 24. \BRIFEEEZR
The Company has from time to time arranged relevant trainings at KARIETNEAMEEESTHME@EE
the Company's expense to all Directors to develop and refresh their NERIEHMBEENBHELBE  EAH
duties and responsibilities. All Directors have provided the Company RARZA - 2EEFDMARFREAR
with records of the trainings attended by them during the Year. FEKEMLEEIINLE - RIBAQT
According to the training records maintained by the Company, the TFEMNEIGREE  SEETNAFEETH
types of trainings received by each of the Directors during the Year are HIIFERIB T

summarized as follows:

Attending
seminars/reading
materials relevant
to the director’s

Name of Directors duties
HEEBRES
BSOS
EEHA RIEARE MR
ED
BITES
Dato’ Michael Teh v
S BB A
INEDs
BIYFHTES
Datuk Kamalul Arifin v
2B Kamalul Arifin
Mr. Kua v
54
Datuk Kang v
28T
Each of the Directors complied with code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code. HFEFCDHTIERELTFAITFRIKXCI4 -
3. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 3. EERITHER
During the Year, Datuk Kamalul Arifin acted as the Chairman and INED of RAFE - 2E8Kamalul ArifintEEAREEEF
the Group and Dato’ Michael Teh acted as the Chief Executive Officer. The R IEHITES - MEBEEHBFEEITHE
Chairman performs the management of the Board and the Chief Executive H-FRAEEEFSNERMTRAHEER
Officer performs the day-to-day management of the Group's businesses. SEEBHAEEE  PRENBEESEZA
Clear division of their respective roles and responsibilities is in place and set EREAWAEME N ERERERE DK F
out in writing to ensure a balance of power and authority. The Chairman is - FTEEEEBEEFGRMERMEVER -

responsible for supervising and providing independent advice to the Board.
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4.

INED

INEDs are appointed on a term of one year.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, all Directors (including INEDs)
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment (in the case of filling a casual
vacancy) or until the next following AGM (in the case of an addition to the
Board), and shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

All Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

During the Year, the Chairman held one meeting with the INEDs without
the presence of other ED.

The Board as well as the Nomination Committee have reviewed the annual
written confirmation of independence from each of the INEDs and based
on such confirmations, the Company considers that all the INEDs are
independent and have met the independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and up to date of this annual
report.
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5. Board Committees

The Board has established four Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Risk Committee to oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The list of members of the four Board committees are as

follows:

Name of Directors

5. EEZXEE

ExgR fCRUMNBEZES IEXZE
g ¥ZEg REZESNEARZEE
AEW?TK AR HMEESERE -BF
ZEgREHARERUBITAERE - NEE
EZEEMKEBRBENT

Board Committees’ Composition
ExZEamER
Audit Remuneration Nomination Risk
Committee Committee Committee Committee

EBpE ERZEE ¥FHZEEE® REZEE ERZEE
ED

HITES

Dato’ Michael Teh - - Member Member
2B HEF pd=| =]
INEDs

BYFHTES

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Member Chairman Member Member
2 & Kamalul Arifin K& B pg= 4=}
Mr. Kua Chairman Member Chairman Member
i £ K& IE pg=
Datuk Kang Member Member Member Chairman
2EI 4= p4=! K& B

The composition and the terms of reference (the “ToRs") of the Board
Committees are reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they remain
appropriate and in line with the Company’s business and changes in
governance practices. The written ToRs of the Board Committees (excluding
the Risk Committee) are published on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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5.1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members who are all INEDs
and is delegated with the authority from the Board primarily to
oversee the Group's financial reporting and internal control systems,
and the adequacy of the external and internal audits. Details of the
authority and duties of Audit Committee are set out in the Audit
Committee’s ToRs, which has been published on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee has performed the following works:

Reviewed the appointment and remuneration of Moore
Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore”) as the Group's external auditor
for the Year and up to the date of this annual report;

ii. Reviewed the audit plans, scopes, methods and reporting
formats proposed by Moore;

ii. Reviewed the external audit reports by Moore respectively, and
the management’s response to the reported findings;

iv. Reviewed the internal control audit report by external
consultant;

v.  Reviewed the adequacy of qualified accountants in the Group;

vi.  Reviewed the continuing connected transactions conducted by
the Group;

vii. ~ Reviewed the interim and annual financial statements, reports,
and results announcement of the Group for the Year prior to
publication;

viii. Reviewed the internal controls policies and procedures across
the Group, including those for accounting and reporting; and

ix.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board’s approval.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the Year and up to
the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual Directors
at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the table on
page 41.

5.1.
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52. FZE S

5.2. Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, which
comprises at least two INEDs and is delegated with the authority from
the Board to establish, review, and make recommendations to the
Board on the Group’s remuneration policy and practices. Details of the
authority and duties of Remuneration Committee are set out in the
Remuneration Committee’s ToRs, which has been published on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed the performance of individual ED and senior
management, and recommended their discretionary bonus and
remuneration package;

ii. Reviewed the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

ii. Reviewed the Group's remuneration policy and annual bonus
policy;

iv.  Reviewed the management’s analysis on performance bonus
funding methods, and its underlying principles and metrics to
be used;

v.  Reviewed the remuneration bands of Directors and the senior
management; and

vi.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual
Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the
table on page 41.
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5.3. Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, which
comprises one ED and three INEDs and is delegated with the
authority from the Board to formulate and implement the policy
for nominating Board candidates for election by Shareholders and
assess independence of INEDs. Details of the authority and duties of
Nomination Committee are set out in the Nomination Committee’s
ToRs, which has been published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a Nomination Policy which is
set out under the Section 6 “Nomination Policy” of this report.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board.
No changes were recommended in view that the Board's
composition is still in line with the Company’s corporate
strategy;

ii.  Reviewed the confirmation of independence by the INEDs;

ii. Reviewed the re-election of the retiring Directors at the AGM

held on 30 August 2022;

iv. Reviewed the time commitment of the Directors for
performance of their responsibilities;

V. Reviewed the Company'’s succession plan for the Board; and

vi.  After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual
Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the
table on page 41.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

53. R RZE®

RAZEEHMNBKEMEK  EPEHE—
4%#%172%%521-45?%_L3F¢ﬂTTE§%§° %
ZESREESRENELEERBEE

REEBZGHREAAEBRIES - WP
BYFFRTEST2BYME - RBEREEN
BREFBENMELRZESRELEAN - &
7 BT B TRBE A P AR R A8 o

REZEGCRM—RIEREER - HERN
AIREFHIRRIEK ]

RAFELREEAFHEY  REEEE
EETUATIME

WA EEGHRE RRRZEIN -
ENEFSMEKDTAARARRIDRE
RES - MO EEHRE

i  BRBIYIFMTEFRIFLAEIEE

£ .
S=

il.  BARA2022%F8 A30B BITHRE A
FRSETHRIEEEEET

iv. BHREFRETRENRRERA

v. BEARREFENEMLE R

Vi RBRDEREIR  HBLAEENE
ERRBEESHR -

%$¢ﬁ&ﬁ§$¢ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
ERlEELFEEEEH
QEM£ﬁﬁF%4EmW%

m@ nu» ]]]g>

FH 203 WABMERARAR 4



Corporate Governance Report
EERHRE

5.4. Risk

Committee

The Board has established a Risk Committee with written ToRs that

complies with the CG Code. The principle roles and functions of the

Risk Committee include but are not limited to:

Vi.

Vil.

viii.

Advising the Board on the Group's risk appetite and risk
principles;

Advising the Board on other risk-related issues including
corporate actions and proposed strategic transactions such as

mergers, acquisitions and disposals;

Overseeing risk management framework and reviewing its
effectiveness;

Approving the Group's risk policies and risk tolerance;

Considering emerging risks relating to the Group’s business and

strategies;

Reviewing risk reports and breaches of risk tolerances and
policies;

Reviewing the Group's capital adequacy and solvency levels; and

Monitoring stress testing results of the Group’s key risk
exposures.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Risk

Committee had performed the following works:

Reviewed enterprise risk management ("ERM") reports;

Reviewed a risk analysis report for a new business segment of

the Group;

Reviewed the Group's risk management policies; and

After due deliberation, recommended the appropriate outcomes
of the above reviews for the Board's approval.

The Risk Committee held a total of three meetings during the Year

and up to the date of this annual report. The attendance of individual

Directors at meetings of the Board and its committees is set out in the

table
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on page 41.
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6. Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of the Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Without prejudice to the authority and duties of the Nomination
Committee as set out in its ToRs, the ultimate responsibility for selection
and appointment of the Directors rests with the entire Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due consideration
to the selection criteria which include, but are not limited to, diversity
of the Board, commitment for responsibilities, qualifications on both
accomplishment and experience, independence of INEDs, reputation for
integrity, potential contributions to the Board, and any plan(s) in place for
the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the selection,
appointment and reappointment of a Director, including an INED in
accordance with the following procedure and process:

A.  The Nomination Committee:

may take measures that is appropriate in identifying or selecting
suitable candidates, with due consideration given to prescribed
selection criteria and broad range of candidates who are in and
outside of the Board's circle of contacts;

ii.  may adopt any process it considers appropriate in evaluating
the suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third-party reference check;

ii.  will provide the relevant information of the selected candidate
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of the
remuneration package; and thereafter make recommendation to
the Board;
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iv. The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not members
of the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter
deliberate and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

v.  All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director (or
any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be) with the relevant regulatory authorities, if required.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the re-

election of a Director including an INED in accordance with the following

procedure and process:

review the overall contribution and service, and the level of
participation and performance of the retiring Director during the
period of service;

review and determine whether the retiring Director continue to meet
the criteria as set out above;

provide the relevant information of the selected candidate to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration of the remuneration
package of such candidates;

based on the recommendations made by the Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee will then
make recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of Director at the following general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a candidate

as Director at the following general meeting, the relevant information

of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to Shareholders and/or

explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant following

general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable

laws and regulations.
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7. Board Diversity Policy

The Company has a Board Diversity Policy whereby it recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board, which enhances the
quality of its performance by achieving a sustainable and balanced
growth towards the attainment of its strategic objectives. It endeavors
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. The design of the Board’s composition shall consider a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

All Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis with due
regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members, as well as the
measurable objectives.

The Nomination Committee will continue to review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to endure its continued effectiveness.

During the Year and as at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises four Directors. The following tables further illustrate the diversity
of the Board members as of the date of this annual report:
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Educational Professional
Name of Directors Gender Age Ethnicity Background Experience  Length of Service
Expns (E3:] £l Bk YEER EXER PR3 & 59
ED
HITES
Dato’ Michael Teh Male 40 Chinese Law Construction/ 6 years
(Malaysian) Property
SEDEA Gl %5 ER BE/FHE 66
(BRAERE)
INEDs
BUFGTES
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Male 63 Malay  Estate Management/ Real Estate/ 3years
(Malaysian) Real Estate  Chartered Surveyor
2EKamalul Arifin Bl BE mEER/ EiE,/ 3
(FREAZAE) EHE FrETRIEm
Mr. Kua Male 59 Chinese Accountancy Chartered 3 years
(Malaysian) Accountant
OFi Gl 2% it Frar&stin 3F
(BRAERE)
Datuk Kang Male 63 Chinese Engineering Information 1year
(Malaysian) Technology
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8. Dividend Policy

The Company has a dividend policy (‘Dividend Policy”) that sets out the

principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to

the declaration, payment or distribution of its consolidated net profits as
dividends to the Shareholders.

8.1. Principles and Guidelines
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The Company may declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders, provided that the Company has a distributable
reserve and records a consolidated profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. The recommendation of the
payment of any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion of
the Board and any declaration of final dividend will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders.

It is the policy of the Board, in considering the payment of
dividends, to allow Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits whilst preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture
future growth opportunities. In proposing any dividend payout,
the Board shall also take into account, among other things,
financial results and conditions, cash flow situation, business
conditions, strategies and cycle, operations and earnings,
general economic and political conditions, capital requirements
and expenditure plans, interests of Shareholders, any restrictions
on the payment of dividends, and any other factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

Any payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under all applicable laws (including the
Companies Act of the Cayman Islands), the rules, codes and
regulations, accounting policies/financial reporting standards
that the Group has adopted as well as the Articles of Association.

If the Board intends to declare or recommend any dividend
payment for a particular financial year, such dividend payout
ratio will not be less than 30% of the Group’s audited
consolidated net profit for distribution to the Shareholders/
equity owners of the Company for the financial year, subject to
the criteria set out in the Dividend Policy.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and

there is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or
declared in any specific periods.
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9. Corporate Governance Functions
The Board recognizes that the Directors should be collectively responsible
for the corporate governance duties. Such duties include but are not limited

to:

Developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

i.  Reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development ("CPD”) of the Directors and senior management;

iii.  Reviewing and monitoring the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

iv.  Developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors;

and

v.  Reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this report.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board has
reviewed and performed the abovesaid corporate governance functions.

10. Audit and Accountability

10.1. Independent Auditor’s Remuneration

Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore”) has been engaged as the
Group's independent auditor for the Year.

The remuneration paid/payable to Moore for reviewing the Year is set
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10.2. Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the annual and interim reports,
inside information announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as
information required to be disclosed pursuant to applicable statutory
requirements, such that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The Board also confirms that the Company has
an effective process for financial reporting and compliance with the
Listing Rules.

Material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a
going concern are disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, Moore has stated in the independent auditor's report its
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year.

11. Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The ED has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of one year while each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of one year. Any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of the Company after his/her appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

All the Directors, including INEDs, are subject to retirement by rotation and
eligible for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association. At
each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at the AGM at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as
a Director throughout the meeting at which he/she retires. The Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number
of Directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and
does not offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further Directors so to
retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since their last re-
election or appointment and so that as between the persons who became
or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
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12. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

13

14

15

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Year are set out in Note 14

to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose

12.
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Number of
Remuneration band (in HKS) Individuals
FE4E R (BT) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 4

Z 1,000,000

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a model code (“Securities Code”) for securities
transactions by the Directors and the employees likely to possess inside
information of the Company (“Relevant Employees”) on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules ("Model Code”).

Following a specific enquiry made by the Company on each of them, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code and the
Securities Code during the Year. No incident of non-compliance with the
Securities Code by the Directors and the Relevant Employees was noted by
the Company.

Company Secretary

Mr. Chen Kun is the company secretary, who has complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the Year, Mr. Chen
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update
his skills and knowledge.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the constitutional documents of the Company
during the Year. A copy of the latest version of the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. Special resolution will
be proposed in the forthcoming annual general meeting to adopt new
Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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EERME
16. Shareholders’ Rights 16. RERRE=

16.1. Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an extraordinary 16.1. RRBBERRFH RS ([ REHFH K
general meeting (“EGM”) 2NER
Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the PIEHERE ARFBEARRMBAIRAR
requisition not less than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company AR A FRIREFO BB AN DR
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company ANz THEN— 2 ZEBRE([EER
(“Eligible Shareholder(s)’) shall at all times have the right to require BRE|)  SE#EEEERESTS N af
an EGM to be called by the Board or the Company Secretary for the EARBREERNARE » UEZERPIEH
transaction of any business specified in such requisition, including HEREE - PEEEERK([EREZE )R
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM by written fRERFRIASIR2E B -

requisition ("Requisition”).

The Company will verify the Requisition; if found to be proper and in KRR EENRE  METEREAS
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene an EGM BNEE  ARWEBERESERED
and/or include the proposal(s) made or the resolutions proposed by EREEREANERREEIAS N,
the Requisitionist(s) at the EGM within two months after the deposit SRR REFIAREMAZRA TR EAE
of the Requisition. HOIRERRESR -
If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition the Board fails to WMEEGAREAEZKEREZE2IBNEH
proceed to convene such meeting, the Requisitionist(s) himself/herself B@EKe  BIERATTETEARAS
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable MARBARNBEERALTENAESS
expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of REBHZAESERATEENMES
the Board shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company. FBEBR o

16.2. Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to the 162 RROEEESEHANERF
Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board RERAMEEGSRL RN RERE - A5+
by addressing them by post to the principal place of business of the RERNNBDREANTELE M (R
Company in Hong Kong (presently at Unit 2413A, 24/F, Lippo Centre, BEBSEDEESW NE R L —E4E
Tower One, 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong) or by email to 2413AF ) st EIH Einfo@bgmc.asia * WIHF A
info@bgmec.asia for the attention of the Company Secretary. BARNRE -
Shareholders may also make enquiries to the Board at the AGM of the RERINAI AR AR RBFARS FERE
Company. =g o

16.3. Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ 163. ERRAE LIEZERBNER
Meetings
There is no provision allowing Shareholders to make proposals or RBABERZMASHSHE AR - &
move resolutions at the AGM under the Articles of Association or the B AR TFIRERREREERS HIZSE
laws of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to make proposals g EE o A AEREEZRXIENR
or move a resolution may, however, convene an EGM in accordance WAl E AT IR A B AR BRI K
with the “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM” set out eMiEF I BRIREERRS -
above.
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17. Investor Relations

18

The Company has been striving to maintain high transparency and
communicate with the Shareholders and the investors of the Company
through diversified communication channels. The Company holds press
conferences and analyst briefing sessions from time to time to provide the
latest business information of the Company to the investors. The website of
the Company contains the latest data and information of the Group so that
the Shareholders, the investors and the public can view/get the information
about the Company in a timely manner. The Company’s website address is

www.bgmc.asia.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for the Company'’s internal control system and
risk management. The system is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the Year, the Company has implemented a framework with defined
levels of responsibility in the Company’s risk management system. On the
strategic level, the Board, via its Risk Committee, determined the strategic
and departmental objectives of the Group’s business, and set the risk
appetite for the Group ("Risk Appetite”). Based on these objectives, the
Group's risk management working group (‘RMWG”), which consists of the
Chief Executive Officer as the chairman and the senior management as well
as the manager of internal control and risk management division of the
Group ("ICRM Division"), determined the associated financial, operation,
reporting and compliance risks, possible root causes, and existing
mitigations. With due consideration of such existing mitigations, the RMWG
then assessed the risks by giving them ratings and compares them to the
Risk Appetite. Any risks that were rated higher than the threshold in the
Risk Appetite were further assessed to determine additional mitigation plan
to further reduce the risks until they fall within the acceptable level of Risk
Appetite. The entire process and its outcome were documented and will be
reviewed by the Risk Committee at least twice every year.
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The Company has engaged an external consultant to establish an internal
control audit function during the Year. The external consultant worked
closely with the ICRM Division and has assisted the Audit Committee in
carrying out an independent review on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group.

During the Year, the external consultant has carried out internal control
audits in accordance with the audit plan approved by the Audit Committee,
which covered all functions of the Group. The reports, findings, and their
corresponding management'’s response were presented quarterly to the
Audit Committee meetings for its review and approval. In addition, the
Audit Committee and the Risk Committee also review the Groups' internal
control and risk management policy at least once a year.

As such, the Board confirms that during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report, the Board, through the Audit Committee and the Risk
Committee, has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control systems and risk management of the Group and considers them
adequate and effective.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

As stated in the Independent Auditors’ Report contained in this annual
report, in Note 4(b) to the consolidated financial statements, which
describes the Group incurred net cash used in operating activities of
approximately RM 14,200,000 during the Year; and excluding assets classified
as held for sale and liabilities directly associated with assets classified as
held for sale, its total current liabilities exceeded its total current assets of
RM1,276,000 and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets of RM 150,000
as at 31 March 2023. These events or conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern.

Nevertheless, the Directors of the Company have adopted the going
concern basis in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
based on the following:

(i) the completion of the disposal of interest in 95% ordinary shares in
BGMC Bras Power Sdn Bhd ("BGMC Bras Power") and an option
price of RM 10,450,000 will be received by the Group on 30 June 2023.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 26 April 2023, the
disposal has been completed;

BGMC International Limited
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(i) a controlling shareholder has agreed to provide continuing financial
support to the Group for at least twelve months from the date the
consolidated financial statements have been authorised for issue; and

(i) repayment from customers of RM14,945,000 which were under
dispute but settlement is expected to be received in the next twelve
months. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in April 2023,
the amounts have been repaid by these customers.

Based on the Group's cash flow projections, taking into account of
effectiveness and feasibility of the above measures covering a period of
twelve months from the end of the reporting period prepared by the
management, the Directors of the Company consider the Group would be
able to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the forecast period. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to write down the carrying value of the Group's
assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any future liabilities that
may arise and to re-classify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets
and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments have not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors will continue to give careful consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. Apart from the plans and
measures undertaken to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve
the financial position of the Group are summarised in paragraphs (i) to (iii)
above, the Directors will also undertake the following measures: (a) actively
negotiate with reNIKOLA for exercise of option so as to receive the option
price of RM10,450,000, (b) identify suitable construction project, (c) identify
suitable concession project.
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The directors of the Company (‘Directors”) are pleased to present the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries ("Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2023 (“Year” and "Consolidated Financial
Statements’, respectively).

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Company's subsidiaries during the Year are set out in Note 38 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Group Reorganisation and Global Offering

The Company was incorporated on 18 November 2016 (“Incorporation Date”)
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act, Cap. 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) in the Cayman Islands. To rationalize
the corporate structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the shares
of the Company (“Shares”) in issue on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange” and “Main Board’, respectively), the
companies now comprising the Group underwent the corporate reorganisation
("Reorganisation”), pursuant to which the Company became the holding
company of the Group on 6 December 2016. For details of the Reorganisation,
please refer to the sub-section “Reorganisation” in the section headed “History,
Development and Reorganisation” in the prospectus of the Company dated 31
July 2017 ("Prospectus”).

The issued Shares have been listed on the Main Board since 9 August 2017
("Listing Date” and “Listing’, respectively).

Business Review

The discussion and analysis of the Group’s business during the Year, future
business development and the risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set
out below and in the “Chairman’s Statement” and the "Management Discussion
and Analysis” ("MD&A”") sections of this annual report.

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in Note
6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The MD&A section also provides
a detailed analysis of the Group’s financial performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators.

Details regarding the Group's compliance with the relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Group, are set out on page 63 of this annual
report.
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Risk Management | B 2

Under the Group's risk management and internal control framework, the risk 1R 45 5 B A9 & bR & 18 K N 2RI HIAEZR - AR BIAYE
committee of the Company (‘Risk Committee’) determined the strategicand [REZE &€ ([EREES |)ETAEEEFRE L
departmental objectives of the Group’s business, and set the risk appetite for — ZFFIB1Z - Il E A& B R AT RE H (RS
the Group (as stated in the sub-section "Risk Management and Internal Control” R[S ZEE RS IN[ R EIE M A EBIEH| |5 &0 FT
in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report). Based on these  iit) - ERZZEHIE - EfeE S @ L HAlpeaI 2
objectives, the Risk Committee assesses its likely impacts and evaluates the risks 7 B R\ + #6105 E A XUHY 7 50 L B 122 51 5% Eh A

in order to develop effective internal control activities for mitigation of the risks. 1B R R o
Principal Risks FER

The Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in Note  ZN &£ BB 7 A e S 1 B 12 & N SNG4 BB ®
6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The principal risk factors that the — RBist6 - ZAEEEBRN T EERM A EZ N T EE/MER

Group is exposed to and the key mitigation strategies are summarised below: BEBEALan T -
Principal Risks Mitigation Strategy
FERB R IR R
Operational Risk . Inability to adhere to work program . Implement and introduce innovative work method that
08 7 i SRR ETERE requires less resources.

BRI ANERFRER DB TIETTE -

Main contractor or client imposed
liquidated ascertained damages (‘LAD") to | - Ensure proper site possession, pre-planning of material

the Group and fund allocation.
TEARBREFRAAEERIUELE HRAEERER  IBAHERYHNESDERE -
Ee((BOBEEE])
Close monitor and prompt update to relevant parties if
Progress at all our construction sites have been master plan is not adhered to.
affected by the global supply chain issue and BB AR B R RS R BN E RN RSB -

the fluctuations in prices for building material.
TP A REM RN EEY TR 2 BRIt EE | - Negotiate with vendors for alternative payment plan and
o8 NSRBI B R 2 - arrangement of workforce.

B RS ARG 8 88 TR B TR -

Strictly comply to relevant regulatory and authorities’
requirements.

BT R RE LB RERIFIRIARE

FH 203 WABMERARAT 6
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Group's reputation risk

AEERNBERR

As the economy is still recovering from the
COVID-19 pandemic, the slowing down of new
project launches in the market has delayed the
Group's effort in replenishing the order book.
HR2019BREEHEIGE - KBEARRF
VK18 - TS LRTA B ARE R - SER
EEFEFTE BN TIEBFTIEE -

Principal Risks Mitigation Strategy
TERE B2 R
Financial Risk Insufficient credit facilities for future To ensure sustainability and continuity of business by
G5 S projects monitoring order book.
EEREETR AR ARKIER BREE T ERREBN RSB ERL -
Poor financial results Engage with more bankers regularly to widen financing
HIIEHETE options.
HEZRITERRS  UEHRERERR -
Unstable Group's finance
REFBETEE Building cash reserves by getting financing facilities ready.
BRERMERE  BRASHE -
Incapability to raise bank facilities to
finance existing operation and projects To establish short-term, mid-term and long-term financial
REERITREUNEHE AR S RIE planning against economic slowdown.
E] STEEBERUEIEREIERE « AR R ERE -
Amid the challenges posed to the economy Reversal exercise of impairment to improve debt recovery.
post COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has been BB E AR S ER BIRIER
affected by collection issue and also the process
of raising fresh financing for new projects. Work with potential (financially strong) partners for
2019 Mm B REIFEALBEF - K possible collaboration project.
SEXIWKEENTE - TEERFIRR EVEER (M NIEES) A ERHRR TN S EIR
BETNETHREE - B -
External Risk Unfavourable economic environment Diversify client base.
S Eb/E PR EBIRE BERZTIENEFE

Renew business model to adapt to current economic
situations.
ABEEER - BEREAIKETS

Emphasis on concession business to generate stable
concurrentincome.

ERBRFAEEERT  BUTREERA -

Explore the stimulus package by Government and find
projects which suit our capability.

BRSKBRT 9 A8 RIB0T 2 Ko M e B3 PIRE 1 AR I R iy
HH -

Selective in tender that meet the Group's size and
technical objectives.

BRARPORTT & N BRE B B R0 RIRAER -

To build asset-based sustainable business.

BIYNEESEMN A FERRER -

Ensure prompt payment to subcontractors and suppliers
to re-gain the Group's reputation.

RIS 2B I EERMRK
=,

ERAEENE
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Particulars of Important Events after the Reporting
Period

Please refer to Note 41 to the Consolidated Financial Statements of this annual
report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The board of Directors (“Board”) has overall responsibility for the Group's
environmental, social and governance ("ESG’") strategy and reporting. The Board is
responsible for the Group's ESG risk management and internal control systems to
ensure that the ESG strategies and reporting requirements are met.

The details of ESG are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
of this annual report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group has adopted risk management and internal control policies to monitor
the on going compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

During the Year, as far as the Board is concerned, the Group has complied in
material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant
impacts on its business and operations.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees and certain policies
have been implemented to ensure that its employees are provided competitive
remuneration, good welfare benefits and continuous professional training.
The Group also maintains good relationships with its customers and suppliers,
without whom success in the Group's production and operation would be at risk.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2020, a
subsidiary of the Company, in the ordinary course of business, had disputes
with Customer A.

On 22 May 2020, Customer A served notices of termination of the
construction engagement, alleging that the Group had delayed in
completing the works under two contracts arising out of the same project.
Customer A had sought to forfeit the Group’s two performance bonds in
the amount of approximately RM25,800,000.

On 27 May 2020, the Group has filed for an application for an injunction in
the High Court against Customer A's proposed forfeiture of performance
bonds and has obtained an ad-interim injunction order dated 29 May 2020
against the forfeiture of the performance bonds by Customer A. On 16 April
2021, the High Court granted the Group the injunction order. Customer
A filed an appeal at the Court of Appeal against the High Court order. The
Court of Appeal on 13 January 2023 dismissed Customer A’s appeal and
upheld the High Court’s decision. Customer A did not further appeal to
Federal Court within the deadline 12 February 2023.

The Group has also initiated arbitrations on 30 June 2020 (which was
withdrawn and retained as two arbitrations on 26 October 2020, which
was eventually consolidated) to dispute the validity of the terminations
by Customer A and claim against Customer A for (i) losses of profit of
approximately RM35,000,000 (i) return of retention sum of approximately
RM4,400,000 and (iii) return of the sums under the two performance bonds
amounting to approximately RM25,800,000.

On 17 August 2020, Customer A issued a counterclaim of approximately
RM126,400,000 (which then became counterclaims of approximately
RM83,000,000 in the two arbitrations) in the arbitration proceeding against
the Group.

As at the date the consolidated financial statements have been authorised
for issue, the arbitrations proceedings are still ongoing. The next preliminary
meeting for the matter is 10 February 2023 and subsequently adjourned to
3 July 2023.

The Group's legal counsel is in the opinion that the Group has a stronger
case to persuade the arbitrator to rule the facts in the Group's favour.

BGMC International Limited
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(a)
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On 20 November 2020, BGMC Corporation received a demand letter
from a licensed bank in Malaysia (“Bank”), in which the Bank alleged that
it had received a demand against a bank guarantee from a beneficiary
("Beneficiary”) being a customer of BGMC Corporation, in the sum of
approximately RM5,500,000, and unless the Beneficiary withdraws its
demand or the Bank is restrained from performing its obligations, the Bank
would effect payment of the sum demanded to the Beneficiary on 24
November 2020.

Based on the demand letter from the Beneficiary to the Bank, the
said demand was related to a performance bond provided by BGMC
Corporation to the Beneficiary for a development project, for which the
Beneficiary alleged that BGMC Corporation has not duly performed its
contractual obligation.

On 23 November 2020, through its solicitors, BGMC Corporation filed
an application (“Application”) to the Kuala Lumpur High Court against
the Beneficiary, which restrains the Beneficiary from receiving the sum
demanded by the Beneficiary. On 24 November 2020, the Kuala Lumpur
High Court granted an interim injunction in favour of BGMC Corporation,
which restrained the Beneficiary, their respective agents, employees and/
or officers from effecting the claims of the performance bond or receiving
the payment or part payment under the performance bond from the Bank
until the disposal of the originating summons filed by BGMC Corporation
against the Beneficiary. On 20 May 2021, the Kuala Lumpur High Court
granted a permanent injunction against the Beneficiary in favour of BGMC
Corporation.

The Beneficiary has applied for an appeal against the decision of the
High Court. The estimated payout for the bank guarantee is in the sum of
approximately RM5,500,000 should the Beneficiary's action be successful in
the appeal. The matter was fixed for hearing on 11 October 2023.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the burden of proving
any mistake in law made by the Honourable High Court for the appeal
is on the Beneficiary while the Beneficiary was still holding on to the
retention sum tantamount to unconscionable conduct since the alleged
back-charges for defects were certified and estimated to be approximately
RM3,644,000.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors consider
BGMC Corporation has a valid defence against the litigation and has not
provided for any claim arising from the litigation in these consolidated
financial statements.

(b)
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Pursuant to a call and put option agreement entered into between the
Company, BGMC Energy Sdn Bhd ("‘BGMC Energy"), DPI Solar 1 Pte Ltd
("DPI Solar 1”) and Sparks Energy International Limited ("Sparks Energy’)
dated 29 August 2019, in the consideration of the put option fee and
the mutual covenants and undertakings stated therein, DPI Solar 1 was
supposed to be granted an option to require the Company to purchase the
put option shares from DPI Solar 1 at the option price of USS1T per share. On
19 February 2021, DPI Solar 1 exercised the alleged put option and required
the Company to purchase the put option shares, which is 50.1% of the Class
1 Preference Shares amounted to US$10,736,000. As the mutual covenants
and undertakings stated therein have not been fulfilled, the Company did
not purchase the said preference shares. As a result, DPI Solar 1 commenced
arbitration proceedings against the Company.

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 16 August
2022 and 23 August 2022 regarding the legal proceedings in respect of
the Group and other parties, the parties had entered into a settlement
agreement on a confidential basis, subject to the conditions as contained
therein for the full and final settlement of the matter. On 12 May 2023,
the Company announced that, in view of the implementation and
completion of the settlement agreement in accordance to the terms
therein, all the parties to the aforesaid legal proceedings have filed notice of
discontinuance. The notice of discontinuance for this matter was filed on 26
April 2023.

On 18 March 2022, BGMC Bras Power terminated the Operation,
Maintenance and Management Services Agreement ("OMMA”") entered
into between Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd and BGMC Bras Power. On 26 April
2022, Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd has filed an injunction application in aid of
arbitration for the termination of OMMA. Ad-interim injunction was granted
since 29 April 2022 but the application was subsequently dismissed by the
High Court on 7 July 2022. Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd appealed to the Court
of Appeal. On 27 June 2022, Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd has also commenced
arbitration proceedings against BGMC Bras Power for the termination of
OMMA.

Meanwhile, Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd filed for an Erinford injunction where
the High Court granted an ad-interim Erinford injunction which expired
on 12 August 2022. As disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 16 August 2022 and 23 August 2022 regarding the legal proceedings
in respect of the Group and other parties, the parties had entered into a
settlement agreement on a confidential basis, subject to the conditions
as contained therein for the full and final settlement of the matter. On 12
May 2023, the Company announced that, in view of the implementation
and completion of the settlement agreement in accordance to the terms
therein, all the parties to the aforesaid legal proceedings have filed notice of
discontinuance. The notice of discontinuance for this matter was filed on 28
April 2023.

BGMC International Limited
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On 29 June 2022, Kazuomi Kaneto (the director of DPI Solar 1) and DPI Solar
1 (which indirectly holds shares in Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd) (“Plaintiffs”)
have commenced a lawsuit at the High Court of Malaya at Kuala Lumpur
(Commercial Division) against 25 defendants, among others, an executive
director of the Group, subsidiaries of the Group namely BGMC Corporation,
BGMC Holdings Berhad, BGMC Energy, BGMC Bras Power, and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company, Kuala Muda Estate Sdn Bhd, Machang
Estate Sdn Bhd and Machang Estate (Il) Sdn Bhd (collectively refers to
“Land Companies”) and others (in total 9 individuals and 16 companies
as defendants). The Plaintiffs’ allegations are, among others, regarding the
legality of (i) the disposal of interest in 95% of ordinary shares of BGMC
Bras Power; (ii) BGMC Bras Power's termination of OMMA between BGMC
Bras Power and Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd; and (iii) the Land Companies’
redemption of preference shares held by DPI Solar 1.

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 27 June 2022,
5 July 2022, 16 August 2022 and 23 August 2022 regarding the legal
proceedings in respect of the Group and other parties, the parties had
entered into a settlement agreement on a confidential basis, subject
to the conditions as contained therein for the full and final settlement
of the matter. On 12 May 2023, the Company announced that, in view
of the implementation and completion of the settlement agreement
in accordance to the terms therein, all the parties to the aforesaid
legal proceedings have filed notice of discontinuance. The notice of
discontinuance for this matter was filed on 28 April 2023.

Maha Alusteel Sdn Bhd (“Maha”) served a notice of demand dated 13
July 2022 ("Notice dated 13 July 2022") on BGMC Corporation pursuant
to Section 465(1)(e) of the Companies Act 2016, demanding payment of
approximately RM285,000 to be made, failing which, Maha would proceed
winding up proceedings against BGMC Corporation.

In response, BGMC Corporation filed an originating summon (“Encl. 1”),
inter alia, to seek for an injunction to restrain Maha from filing a winding up
petition against BGMC Corporation pursuant to the Notice dated 13 July
2022.0n 19 December 2022, the High Court dismissed Encl. 1 with costs of
RM5,000 to Maha (“Decision”).

Directors’ Report

ESERE

202256 4298 + Kazuomi Kaneto(DPI Solar 1
RIE =) I DPI Solar 1([E# 357 Sparks Energy Sdn
Bha®i M ) ([R&E D EETEKNERALS
FEb (ABAER) H2s 2R E(HP ) K&
B —2ITEE  AEEHME R RBGMC
Corporation » BGMC Holdings Berhad * BGMC
Energy * BGMC Bras Power R AR A RIH/ FHEB A
A]H)—HEE -~ Kuala Muda Estate Sdn Bhd
Machang Estate Sdn Bhd f&zMachang Estate (II) Sdn
Bhd (il L3 AR J) R H A AL (& 9% (E
AR 6 R RE RS ) RAE IR o RS
TI(EFER)ERNATEENAET : (VHE
BGMC Bras Power 95% & @K AI#E R ¢ (i) BGMC
Bras Power4% |FBGMC Bras PowerEiSparks Energy
SdnBhdZ HIRVES - e L BRI © RNt
A BIFEEDPI Solar 1858 BB AR EIEM

AR N E B A20229F6 5278 « 202247 A
SH ~ 20228 8168 202258 A23B KA E A
WEE - NABEAREERHEAMETL TR
EERERF SR TREER LEXMBRTGE
AR B TIRMEGE LEXNEBREED
2E N &EFER - R2023F58128 ° AARE
o ERFRBECDRETERETTE - L
MEERBRFONEFESADEIFIERAE -
UL EHIERF I ERANE B 20234 A28 HIER ©

Maha Alusteel Sdn Bhd([ Mahal])#R#E20165 A
R)7E55465(1)(e){EMBGMC CorporationikiE H Ef
A2022F7 A3 EFUEANE ([ A # 52022
F7R1BAMNBHE]) - 2R 42850004
HH - BRI - Maha§¥BGMC Corporation#1T
BEREF -

{EBBIFE - BGMC Corporationig X 7 RiF{EZE
(TH#1]) - EPBESRES S - AR
MahaiR & B B A2022F 7 R 13 A M AAME M
BGMC Corporationt2 /B8 25 © 2022F 12 8
198 - ®EERKE T M4 - WAMahasZ
S000MERFEVE A ([HR])

FE3R 2023

BRBERZERERAT 67



Directors’ Report

EEERE

68 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Dissatisfied with the Decision, BGMC Corporation filed an appeal against
the Decision to Court of Appeal on 4 January 2023 (“Appeal”). BGMC
Corporation also sought for an injunction to prevent Maha from presenting
a winding up petition against BGMC Corporation pending the conclusion
of the Appeal (“Encl. 31"). The High Court had on 27 January 2023, allowed
Encl. 31 on the condition that BGMC Corporation shall deposit a sum of
approximately RM290,000 (inclusive of costs RM5,000 awarded by the High
Court) ("'Deposited Sum”) with its solicitor, pending disposal of the Appeal.
The Deposited Sum will be released to Maha in the event if the Appeal
is dismissed, and will be refunded to BGMC Corporation if the Appeal is
allowed.

The Court of Appeal has fixed the next case management of the Appeal on
16 January 2024 and the hearing of the Appeal on 31 January 2024.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors consider
BGMC Corporation has a valid defence against the litigation and has not
provided for any claim arising from the litigation in these consolidated
financial statements.

Techtrics Solutions Sdn Bhd (“Techtrics”) had served two notices of
adjudication to Built-Master Engineering Sdn Bhd (“BME") on 6 January
2023, alleging non-payment of approximately RM310,000 and RM1,674,000
by BME to Techtrics, in relation to the subcontract works for the ICT system
and ELV system.

As at the date the consolidated financial statements have been authorised
for issue, the adjudication proceedings are still at preliminary stage. The
Directors consider the ultimate outflow, if any, to settle this possible
obligation is subject to the final outcome of the legal proceeding and is
uncertain.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year are set
out in Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
this annual report and in the accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (‘Dividend Policy”), pursuant to
which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”), provided that the Group records a profit after
tax and that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. Details of the Dividend Policy are set out in the
section headed “Dividend Policy” in the Corporate Governance Report.

Reserves

Details of movements of the Group's reserves during the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of this annual report.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had reserves amounting to approximately
RM35.5 million (2022: RM40.9 million) available for distribution as calculated
based on the Company’s share premium and accumulated losses under
applicable laws in the Cayman Islands.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment totaling
approximately RM0.03 million (2022: Nil). Details and other movements in
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in Note
18 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Directors

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Executive Director (“ED"):
Dato’ Teh Kok Lee (Chief Executive Officer)
Independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”):

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (Chairman)

Mr. Kua Choh Leang

Datuk Kang Hua Keong (Appointed on 24 June 2022)

Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (“Tan Sri Kong")
(Resigned on 8 April 2022)

Pursuant to article 112 of the articles of association of the Company (“Articles of
Association”), the Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional
Director but so that the number of Directors so appointed shall not exceed the
maximum number determined from time to time by the Shareholders in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election. Any Director appointed under this article shall not be taken into
account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation at an annual general meeting.

Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association provides that notwithstanding any
other provisions in these articles, at each AGM one-third of the Directors for
the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman and Mr. Kua Choh Leang will retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, Tan Sri

Kong has confirmed respectively that he has no disagreement with the Board and
there is no matter that needs to be brought to the attention to the Shareholders.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section of this

annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of
Appointment

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or an appointment letter
(‘Directors’ Service Contract’) with the Company for an initial fixed term of
one year. None of the Directors who offered himself/herself for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM had a Directors’ Service Contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not determinable within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests
in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of
Significance

Saved as disclosed in the sections headed “Group Reorganisation and Global
Offering” and the “Connected Transactions” in this report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associates was a party and in
which any Director or controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or an entity connected with him/her had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

No equity-linked agreements that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares; or (i) require the Company to enter into any agreement that will or may
result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the Company during
the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the Shareholders passed on 3 July 2017, the
Company adopted a share option scheme conditional upon the Listing (“Share
Option Scheme”). The Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing
Date. No share option under the Share Option Scheme (“Option”) has been
granted since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and therefore, there
was no outstanding Option as at 31 March 2023 and no Option was exercised or
cancelled or lapsed during the Year.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:
(@) Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme prepared in
accordance with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and is established as
incentives or rewards for the contributions or potential contributions that
the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below) had or may
have made to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants with an

opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
achieving the following objectives:

It

) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

(b) Who may join

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an Option to the following
persons (collectively “Eligible Participants”) to subscribe for such number
of new Shares as the Board may determine at an exercise price determined
in accordance with paragraph (f) below:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including INEDs) or directors of any of the Company’s
subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, agents, suppliers, customers, distributors
and such other persons, who in the sole opinion of the Board
will contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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(c)

(d)

Acceptance of an offer of options

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the Options duly signed by the grantee,
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of RM1.0 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company on or
before the relevant acceptance date.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10.0% of the total
number of Shares in issue immediately following completion of the Listing,
being 180,000,000 Shares. As at the offer date of any proposed grant of
Options, the maximum number of Shares in respect of which Options may
be granted is such number of Shares less the aggregate of the following
Shares as at that offer date:

(i)  the number of Shares which would be issued on the exercise in full
of the Options or options under any other scheme but not cancelled,
lapsed or exercised;

(i) the number of Shares which have been issued and allotted pursuant
to the exercise of any Options or options under any other scheme;
and

(i) the number of cancelled Shares.
The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option

Scheme is 180,000,000 Shares, representing 10.0% of the issued Shares as at
the date of this annual report.

(c)

(d)
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EEERE

(e) Maximum number of underlying Shares comprised in Options (e) M{EA—EEERBEERZHBRENIE

to any one Eligible Participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the Options and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
Eligible Participant (subject to the following paragraph) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not, when aggregated with:

(i) any Shares issued upon exercise of Options or options under the other
schemes which have been granted to that Eligible Participant;

(i) any Shares which would be issued upon the exercise of outstanding
Options or options under the other schemes granted to that Eligible

Participant; and

(i) any cancelled Shares which were the subject of Options or options
under the other schemes which had been granted to and accepted
by that Eligible Participant, exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of grant.

Options cannot be granted to a substantial shareholder (as defined in the
Listing Rules) of the Company or any INED or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) resulting in the number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of Options granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% or such other percentage as may
be from time to time provided under the Listing Rules of the Shares in

issue on the date of grant; and

(i having an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million or such other
sum as may be from time to time provided under the Listing Rules,
based on the official closing price of the Shares at the date of each
grant.

Unless provided otherwise in the Listing Rules, the date of the Board
meeting at which the Board proposes to grant the Options to such Eligible
Participant shall be taken as the date of grant for the purpose of calculating
the subscription price of the Shares.
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(f)

(9)

(h)

Subscription price of Shares

Subject to any adjustments on certain circumstances, the subscription
price of a Share in respect of any particular Option granted under the Share
Option Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price must be at least the highest of:

(i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(i) the average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

Time of exercise of Option and duration of the Share Option
Scheme

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the Option is
deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years
from that date. Subject to termination, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective for the scheme period after which no further Options
shall be offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall in all
other respects remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give
effect to the exercise of any Options granted prior thereto or otherwise as
may be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme and Options granted prior thereto but not yet exercised shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.

Minimum period for which an Option must be held before it
can be exercised

There is no minimum period for which an Option granted must be held
before it can be exercised except otherwise imposed by the Board.

(f)

(9)

(h)
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Change of Directors

There have been changes to the Board composition during the Year and as at the
date of this annual report:

(@)  With effect from 24 June 2022, Datuk Kang Hua Keong has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director (“INED”), a member of the
audit committee of the Board ("AC” or “Audit Committee”), a member
of the remuneration committee of the Board ("RC") and a member of the
nomination committee of the Board ("NC").

(b)  With effect from 8 April 2022: (1) Tan Sri Kong tendered his resignation as
an INED and ceases to be a chairperson of the NC, a member of the RC
and a member of the AC; and (2) Mr. Kua Choh Leang, an INED, has been
appointed as the chairperson of the NC.

Retirement Benefit Plan

As required by the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 of Malaysia, the Group
makes contributions to the federal statutory body, Employees Provident Fund
("EPF"), which manages the compulsory savings plan and retirement planning for
employees in Malaysia. Both the employer and employee are required to make
contributions into the employee’s individual account in the EPF at a specified
percentage of the employee’s monthly income. During the Year, the Group is
in compliance with this requirement. For details, please refer to Note 4 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and Chief
Executive in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong
("SFO")), which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (“Model Code") were as follows:
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Interests in the Shares

Name of Directors

EEns

Capacity/Nature of interest

B3 EEME

Directors’ Report

ESERE

egrig

Approximate
Interests in
Shares’¢’  shareholding®oe?

RRERE ) BAGIEIRE D b (i)

percentage of

Dato’ Michael Teh®ete 1

Interest of a controlled corporation and

1,208,250,000 (L) 67.1%

interests held jointly with another person

N

RS B Rl ez
K

RiprEEs R EE AT R

‘L" denotes long position

Notes:

(1) On 15 December 2016, Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (“Tan Sri Barry Goh’) and Dato’
Michael Teh entered into a concert party confirmatory deed (“Concert Party Confirmatory
Deed’) to acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they had been parties acting in
concert with each other with respect to their interests in or the business of the relevant members
of the Group since they became shareholders of BGMC Holdings Berhad, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and would continue to act in concert after the signing
of the Concert Party Confirmatory Deed. For further details, please refer to the paragraph
headed “History, Development and Reorganisation — Concert Party Confirmatory Deed” in the
Prospectus.

As at 31 March 2023, the 1,208,250,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consisted of
(i) 864,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Prosper International Business Limited (‘Prosper
International’) which in turn is beneficially wholly-owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh, and (ii)
344,250,000 Shares beneficially owned by Seeva International Limited ("Seeva International’)
which in turn is beneficially wholly-owned by Dato” Michael Teh. Each of Tan Sri Barry Goh and
Dato’ Michael Teh is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held or deemed to be held by them
in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

2) These percentages are calculated on the basis of 1,800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 March
2023.
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Interest in the Shares of Associated Corporations RIEREEER MR ER

Name of associated Capacity/Nature of Interests in Percentage of
Name of Directors corporations interest ordinary shares shareholding
EEnA HEEE AR B EnitE IR RS BHOBRES L
Dato’ Michael Teh Seeva International Beneficial owner 1 100%
=3 E| Seeva International BE=EAA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the Directors or the chief  B& F T FriggEE SN + 7R2023FE3A31H - BEAN T

executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he/she
was taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2023, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
corporations or persons (other than a Director or the Chief Executive had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares, which would fall
to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest
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HEGRAERMFAFE 2 ELMA - FFEWT -
Number of Percentage of
Shares held shareholding?«?

BRREHE 51 RmtE RaER BAERE D@

Prosper International®ete Beneficial owner and interests held 1,208,250,000 (L) 67.1%
jointly with another person

T B R () EnA ANMAS —ZATHAEENER

Seeva International Mot Beneficial owner and interests held 1,208,250,000 (L) 67.1%
jointly with another person

Seeva International 1) BB ANES —F ATHZIFENER

Kingdom Base Beneficial owner 141,750,000 (L) 7.9%

BB A

Kingdom Base
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“L" denotes long position
Notes:

(1) On 15 December 2016, Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Michael Teh entered into the Concert Party
Confirmatory Deed to acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they had been
parties acting in concert with each other with respect to their interests in or the business of the
Company and the relevant members of the Group since they became shareholders of BGMC
Holdings Berhad and would continue to act in concert after the signing of the Concert Party
Confirmatory Deed. For further details of the Concert Party Confirmatory Deed, please refer to
“Concert Party Confirmatory Deed” sub-section in the section headed “History, Development and
Reorganisation”in the Prospectus.

As at 31 March 2023, the 1,208,250,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consisted of (i)
864,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Prosper International which in turn is beneficially and
wholly owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh; and (ii) 344,250,000 Shares beneficially owned by Seeva
International which in turn is beneficially and wholly owned by Dato’ Michael Teh. Each of
Prosper International and Seeva International is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held or
deemed to be held by Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato’ Michael Teh in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

2) These percentages are calculated on the basis of 1,800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 March
2023.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors or the Chief Executive are aware
of, as at 31 March 2023, no corporation or person (not being a Director or the
Chief Executive) had any interests or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares, which would be required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which was recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Arrangement for Directors to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

During the Year and thereafter up to the date of this annual report, the Company
did not redeem any of its listed securities nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities.
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Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
governing securities transactions by the Directors. Following a specific enquiry
made by the Company with each of them, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required dealing standards set out in the Model Code during
the Year.

Corporate Governance Code Compliance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance in order to achieve sustainable development and enhance corporate
performance especially in the areas of internal control, fair disclosure and
accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules ("CG Code”) as its
own code of corporate governance. During the Year and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of
the CG Code.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses, which they or any of them shall
or may incur or sustain by reason of any act alone, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for all
Directors and senior management of the Company, who subject to the applicable
laws, will be indemnified against the costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
for legal action incurred by such a Director or officer in the execution of his/her

duties or otherwise in relation thereto.

Management Contracts

Save for the Directors’ Service Contract or contracts of service that any members
of the Group has entered into with the Directors or any person engaged in
the full-time employment of the Company, no contract by which a person
undertakes the management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group's business was entered into or subsisted during the Year.

BGMC International Limited
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Confirmation of Independence of INEDs

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation in
writing of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is
not aware of any unfavourably reported incident. Therefore, it considers all the
INEDs to be independent for the Year and thereafter up to the date of this annual
report.

Directors’ Remuneration

The RC determines the remuneration and other benefits of the ED (including the
Chief Executive who is an ex-officio member of the Board), and considers and
recommends to the Board the policy and structure for the remuneration paid
by the Company to the Directors (including the non-executive Directors). The
remuneration of all Directors is subject to monitoring by the RC to ensure that
the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

Save as disclosed below, none of the Directors is interested in any business apart
from the businesses operated by the Group which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report.

Deed of Non-competition

A deed of non-competition dated 3 July 2017 has been entered into by Tan
Sri Barry Goh, Prosper International, Dato” Michael Teh and Seeva International
(collectively “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of the Company ("Deed
of Non-competition”). Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the
Controlling Shareholders has undertaken, jointly and severally, to the Company
that he/it would not, and would procure his/its close associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) and/or companies controlled by the respective Controlling
Shareholders not to, directly or indirectly, either on his/its own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, among other
things, carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in
each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise) any business
or activity which is or may be in competition with the business of the Group.
Details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the sub-section headed
“Non-Competition Undertakings” in the section headed “Relationship with our
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.
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Despite the fact that Tan Sri Barry Goh had acquired his interests with effect from
the end of June 2019 in B&G Capital Resources Berhad (‘B&G Capital’) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “B&G Capital Group”), the Board was satisfied that the
business undertaken by B&G Capital Group was not in a competition with the
Company or its subsidiaries, taking into account the differences in various aspects,
including products and services, external revenue source, customers, suppliers,
management as well as strategy, growth and expansion plan.

The Company has received an annual declaration in writing from each of the
Controlling Shareholders confirming that he/it had complied with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under the Deed of Non-
competition. The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance with and
enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and confirmed that all the
undertakings thereunder have been complied with since the date of the
execution of the same and up to 31 March 2023.

Related Parties Transactions

Details of the related parties transactions are set out in the Note 37 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. None of the related party transactions as
disclosed constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules and the
Company had complied with the relevant requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during the Year.

Connected Transactions

During the Year, to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, the Group did not enter
into any related party transactions that falls under the definition of one-off or
continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 48.8% of the total
purchases of the Group for the Year (2022: less than 31.2%).

The five largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 95.6% of
the turnover of the Group for the Year (2022: approximately 88.8%).

During the Year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were
approximately 57.9% (2022: 30.6%) and 25.3% (2022: 14.4%) of the Group's sales
and purchases respectively.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

Donations

During the Year, the Group has not made any donation to charity communities
(2022: Nil).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
or under the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.

Public Float

Based on the information which is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient amount
of public float of at least 25% of the issued Shares during the Year and thereafter
up to the date of this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five years is
set out in the section headed “Five-Year Financial Summary” of this annual report.

Review by Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed the draft audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and annual report before presenting them to the Board for
consideration and approval.

Tax Relief

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the Shareholders
by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about
the taxation implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in or
exercising of any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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Independent Auditor

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been audited by Moore Stephens
CPA Limited (“Moore”) which would retire at the forthcoming AGM and being
eligible, offers itself for re-appointment. A resolution to re-appoint Moore
as the independent auditor of the Company and to authorise the Directors
to fix its remuneration will be proposed to the Shareholders for approval at
the forthcoming AGM. Prior to the appointment of Moore as the auditor of
the Company on 5 January 2022, the former auditor of the Company, being
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, resigned on 28 December 2021.

On behalf of the Board
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman
Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysia, 23 June 2023

84 ANNUALREPORT2023  BGMC International Limited

B ZEE

HEVBRRCHRNESREGAMEEMBERA
A REBRE ) EiZ - AR AIERITHRRE
FRELEAVHFAERBBEEET - iSREIEER
THRRBAFAS HIRERRMEBRERESTHRE
RARTVBIZEMEREESETENSRE
o REFHEBER2002F1ASHEZRTAARRRZX
A2 Al - ANRARRIE RSP ERESFAIES
FrAR A BIN2021F12 828 HEHT »

REESE
ZEKamalul Arifin Bin Othman
TEHFETINTESE

Bk Phas - 202356230



Independent Auditors’ Report

K| MOORE

38 M % B R

Moore Stephens CPA Limited RERRERHMEEMRBRLT
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1, BBNE
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, RHERE305E

Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +8522375 3180
F +8522375 3828

www.moore.hk

To the shareholders of BGMC International Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of BGMC International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group’) set out on pages 93 to 207, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the corresponding figures of
the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB”") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Scope limitation in respect of corresponding figures of financial
performance, cash flows and relevant disclosures

As detailed in our auditor’s report dated 30 June 2022 on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial period from 1 October 2020
to 31 March 2022, the predecessor auditor who was engaged to perform the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
30 September 2020 had expressed a disclaimer of opinion as a result of limitation
of scope in respect of their audit of certain account balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 September 2020. Since opening balances
in consolidated statement of financial position affect the determination of
the results of operations and hence cash flows, we were unable to determine
whether adjustments to the results of operations and cash flows might be
necessary for the financial period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022. Our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial
period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 was disclaimed because of the
possible effects of these matters.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion (continued)

Scope limitation in respect of corresponding figures of financial
performance, cash flows and relevant disclosures (continued)

In respect of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 March 2023, the matters which were the subject matters of the
scope limitations referred to above do not have effects on the account balances
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 or the results and cash flows of the
Group for the current year ended 31 March 2023, and the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. However, any adjustments found to be
necessary in respect of these matters may have significant effects on the financial
performance and cash flows of the Group for the period ended 31 March 2022,
and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, presented
as corresponding figures in the consolidated financial statements. Hence our
opinion on the current year's consolidated financial statements is qualified
because of the possible effects of the matters on the comparability of the current
year's figures and the corresponding figures.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 4(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
which describes that the Group incurred net cash used in operating activities
of approximately RM14,200,000 during the year ended 31 March 2023; and
excluding assets classified as held for sale and liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale, its total current liabilities exceeded its total
current assets of RM1,276,000 and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets of
RM150,000 as at 31 March 2023. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

BGMC International Limited
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements which
states that the consolidated financial statements for the current period covers
a twelve-month period from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023. The corresponding
figures presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes covered an eighteen-
month period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 and therefore may not be
comparable with current period figures. Our opinion is not modified in respect of
this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the
matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Revenue recognition from building and structures
construction contracts

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue from
construction contracts included:

We identified the recognition of revenue from building and
structures construction contracts as a key audit matter due to its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and that
significant management judgement and estimation are required in
the estimation of total budgeted contract costs and the amount of
revenue to be recognised by the Group.
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assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the budgeting
process for construction contracts;

scrutinising the key clauses of construction contracts on a
sample basis, and assessing whether these key clauses had
been appropriately reflected in the estimation of total budgeted
contract costs applied in revenue recognition;
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

RRETEE

REETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENFANMEEFARETSHR

Most construction works take several years to complete and the scope
of work may change during the construction period. Management
estimates the revenue and budgeted costs at the commencement of
the construction contracts and regularly revisit the budgeted revenue
and costs by assessing the progress of construction works as well as
the financial impact of scope changes, claims, disputes and liquidated
ascertained damages. The Group recognises construction contract
revenue progressively overtime using input method based on the
proportion of total contract costs incurred at the end of reporting
period compared to the estimated total budgeted contract costs
to complete the contract when control of the goods or service is
transferred to the customer.

The measurement of the revenue therefore relies on estimations of
total budgeted contract costs. Changes to estimated total budgeted
contract costs could give rise to material variances in the amount of
revenue recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group generated revenue
of RM107,451,000 from building construction contracts as disclosed
in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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challenging the Group’s estimates of budgeted costs to
complete the contract on a sample basis by considering the
Group’s historical records of gross profit margins for similar
contracts;

assessing whether costs incurred were accounted for in the
appropriate period and comparing costs incurred during
the current period to purchase invoices and other relevant
underlying documentation on a sample basis;

performing a re-calculation of revenue recognised for individual
contracts based on the estimated total budgeted contract costs,
the costs incurred to date and the agreed contract price;

performing site visits for selected major contracts in progress,
physically observing the stage of completion of the contract
and discussing the status of the contract with site supervisors;
and

assessing the related disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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REETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENFANAEEFARETSHR

Impairment assessment of trade and retention receivables and
contract assets

We identified impairment assessment of trade and retention
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter due to the
involvement of subjective judgement and management estimates in
evaluating the expected credit losses ("ECL") of the Group’s trade and
retention receivables and contract assets at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group's trade and retention receivables and
contract assets amounted to RM30,999,000 (net of loss allowance
of RM19,631,000) and RM51,274,000 (net of loss allowance of
RM25,813,000) respectively. During the year ended 31 March 2023,
the Group reversed net impairment allowance for trade and retention
receivables of RM2,225,000 and provided net impairment allowance
of contract assets of RM4,461,000, respectively.

As disclosed in Note 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
management of the Group estimates the amount of lifetime ECL
of trade and retention receivables and contract assets for ECL
individually.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade and
retention receivables and contract assets included:

obtaining an understanding of how management estimates the
loss allowance for trade and retention receivables and contract
assets;

challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining loss allowance on trade and retention receivables
and contract assets as at 31 March 2023, including their
identification of credit-impaired trade and retention receivables
and contract assets, and the basis of estimated loss rate such
as customers’ credit risk grading dependent on the customers’
financial performance, historical loss rate and forward-looking
information; and

evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment assessment
of trade and retention receivables and contract assets in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

FHEWE 5 RRFBE EBFIERE N EERET AT

TRERBIAEE S RRESRUGBEARENEE
MBS IR

BREEEEN2023F3A31 HETE S RIRFES EUGIEN
RENEEBSBERENEERAE - DREESHERERE
B RRFBEEBAKIBUAREGHEENHZR - ARMGETE
BENEE  MBTEPHMBERIR FELEERRAE
MERMENEFPEERBTR 0 &

AR A MG R T B RE 5 M RE T B UGIRIA K
BREERENHORKE -

FE3R 2023

BRERZERERAT 89



90 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Independent Auditors’ Report
B MRS

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and those Charged With
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

BGMC International Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Independent Auditors’ Report
BB EMRE
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chu Mei Yue, Michelle

Practising Certificate Number: P05826
Hong Kong, 23 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEskAMEZEKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023

HE2023F3A3ALFE
Year ended Period from
31 March 1 October 2020
2023 to 31 March 2022
BZ2023F 2020F10818E
38318  2022%3H31H
ILFEE HAfE
Note RM’000 RM'000
B EE THER FME R
Continuing operations BEREER
Revenue g 8 110,110 285,828
Cost of sales SHE R (105,766) (335,886)
Gross profit/(loss) EF,(F8) 4,344 (50,058)
Other income Hip A 9 1,220 50,742
Impairment losses of financial assets and CRMEERENEEL
contract assets, net A BB F5E 10(a) (6,947) (13,786)
Administrative and other expenses THREARE (15,730) (35,491)
Other gains, net Hin s 558 10(b) 25,476 5370
Finance costs BhE R AR 11 (1,077) (3,887)
Profit/(loss) before tax from REFELSEER 2
continuing operations BBLADER(B5E) 13 7,286 (47,110)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrE8i (%) e 12 (489) 2,421
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations REFELSEER RN, (BHE) 6,797 (44,689)
Discontinued operations ERIEREEK
Profit/(loss) for the year/period from NEE/HERED RIS EER
discontinued operations swmAl/ (&) 16 4,462 (14,610)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive REE HEERN (BE)R
income/(loss) for the year/period 2EKA (BB B8 11,259 (59,299)
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive UTATEEREE HRE
income/(loss) for the year/period BAL(BR)REZERA(EBE)
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company KARHER A
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations REFECEER L
wH (&) 7,560 (42,190)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations EARIEEE K 2
wH (EE) 16 4,318 (14,352)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of ANREHEA AEERF(EE)
the Company 11,878 (56,542)
Non-controlling interests FEFER
Loss from continuing operations SEICE TG 1R (763) (2,499)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations DR IHEEERE 25T,/ (BE) 16 144 (258)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests FEIEBRIER IR (619) (2,757)
11,259 (59,299)
Earnings/(loss) per share BREF(&R)
From continuing and discontinued operations REIFERCKILRE LR
Basic and diluted (RM sen) ERREE(HEHS) 17() 0.66 (3.14)
From continuing operations RESELSEEL
Basic and diluted (RM sen) BEXNEE(HEHS) 17(b) 0.42 (234)

FE3R 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE BRI R

At 31 March 2023
M2023F3A31H

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
72023F 20224F
3H31H 3H31H
Note RM’'000 RM'000
BaE FHELF FhER
ASSETS BE
Non-Current Assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEMEE 18 116 145
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19 192 279
Investment properties REME 20 48,159 25,188
Other investment HEMiRE 21 - -
Intangible assets mEEE 23 964 1,242
49,431 26,854
Current Assets REBEE
Investment in redeemable convertible A T]HE Bl AT s B S R IRE
preference shares 22 5,694 5,694
Trade and other receivables, deposits and B NEMEWRIE - 124 RIERt
prepaid expenses X 24 50,865 71,600
Income tax recoverable BIdER Ry 1,710 3,902
Contract assets BHEE 25 51,274 115,519
Fixed deposits TE BT 26 28,358 35236
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTER 27 1,547 2,118
139,448 234,069
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFELEZEE 16 213,932 212,396
353,380 446,465
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 March 2023
HR2023F3H31H

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
A2023F 20224
3A31H 3A31H
Note RM’000 RM'000
M5t THERE ARIN=Eo
Current Liabilities REBEE
Contract liabilities GHBE 25 4,504 7425
Trade and other payables B 5 NEAMERNTIE 28 132,380 192,291
Borrowings — secured BE -2 30 2,889 2,794
Lease liabilities HEAE 32 213 264
Income tax liabilities FisHiasE 738 -
140,724 202,774
Liabilities directly associated with WA ABERECEEERZ AN
assets classified as held for sale MEE 16 104,839 124,803
245,563 327,577
Net current assets REBEESHE 107,817 118,888
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBERS 157,248 145,742
Non-Current Liabilities IRBEE
Trade payables B S ENHIE 28 - 47,897
Redeemable secured loan stocks AELEEHRERES 29 48,272 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 32 33 161
48,305 48,058
Net assets EEFE 108,943 97,684
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RNEER AEL R
Share capital &4 33 9,862 9,862
Reserves & 34 107,716 95,838
117,578 105,700
Non-controlling interests FEIERRE (8,635) (8,016)
Total equity R 108,943 97,684

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023.

Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman
ZEKamalul Arifin Bin Othman

Director

EF

PHESER2023F6 5238

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee
ZEEERF
Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SEREREER

For the year ended 31 March 2023

BZE2023F3A31BIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
NG 2V
Redeemable
preference Non-
Share Share shares Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
RE
R RORE BELREE  AERE  ZHEB gt FERER  ERAR
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
THER  THER  THER  THER THER  THER TiER THER
At 1 October 2020 1202051041A 9862 135,571 31,730 65,000 (137491) 104672 (5259) 99413
Issuance of redeemable preference shares  ETRIERIBLR - - 57570 - - 57570 - 57570
Loss and total comprehensive loss FHEEERZEFELRE
for the period - - - - (56,542) (56542) (2.757) (59.299)
At 31 March 2022 #2022%34318 9,862 135571 89,300 65,000 (194,033) 105,700 (8016) 97,084
Profit and total comprehensive income FEERTRZERALE
for the year - - - - 11878 11878 (619 11,259
At31March 2023 #2023%3431H 9,862 135,571 89,300 65,000 (182,155) 117,578 (8,635) 108,943
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023

BHE2023F3A318ILFE
Period from
1 October
Year ended 2020
31 March to 31 March
2023 2022
BZ20235 2020%1081HZ
3A31H 202243431
LEE HR
Note RM’000 RM'000
BiizE THEH THER
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEs
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations RERECLER HRBAET/(BE) 7,286 (47,110)
Profit/(loss) before tax from discontinued operations BRIMHEEEB 2 BRAEF, (B8) 5,403 931)
Adjustments for: EREINTEIE
Finance costs BEMRA 11 3,875 14,732
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE - BEREETE 18 54 87
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 19 1,072 2,725
Reversal of impairment loss of WE - BEREEREBERD
property, plant & equipment 10(b) (4,140) (6916)
Reversal of impairment loss of right-of-use assets EREEENESERTD 10(b) - (6,950)
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEH 23 278 2314
Reversal of provision of performance bonds BAREB BRI 10(b) (25,797) -
Impairment of trade , retention and other receivables 29 RESREMEBERFERE 10() 2,257 8,926
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange REBINEEE 10(b) 10 178
Imputed interest income from contract assets BREERENSKRA 8(d) (10,292) (32,224)
Interest income from bank deposits RITERF B WA 9 (548) (1,107)
Impairment of contract assets EHNEERE 10(a) 4,461 4,860
Written off of trade and retention receivables HHE 5 RRESRYGE 10(a) 130 -
Written off of contract assets BIHENEE 10(@) 54 -
Written off of deposits BigES 10(a) 45 -
Fair value loss on investment properties BEWEz NFEER 10(b) 1,442 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER&EEE
plantand equipment 10(b) 2,992 8,173
Gain on extinguishment of debts BEEBRRE 9 (160) (46,114)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FENB AR ESE 16 - 25,684
Operating cash flows before movements BELCEDICERSRE
inworking capital (11,578) (82,053)
Decrease in inventories FERD = 7,720
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables, B REMEYGIE - Rek
deposits and prepaid expenses EREZCEM),/m (9,716) 131917
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets AREERD /(M) 76,321 (86,120)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 RE M FIER D (68,745) (60,148)
(Increase)/decrease in contract liabilities AHaEGEN),/ B> (2,921) 2,110
Net cash used in operations EMAREFR (16,639) (86,574)
Income tax paid BIFTERIE = (1,598)
Income tax refunded REIFMEH 2,439 835
Net cash used in operating activities REEBMARSTE (14,200) (87,337)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 2023

HE2023F3A31BILFE
Period from
1 October
Year ended 2020
31 March to 31 March
2023 2022
BZ20235 2020%1081HZ
3A31H 2022%3H318
LEE HAR
Note RM’000 RM'000
BiizE THER THER
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Interest received BIKFE 548 1,107
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEME - BELEE (25) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BB MREH
plant and equipment 200 1,052
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets HEFRREEEMSEHE - 77
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HERBYEFEHIE - 319
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary, HENBARMEHE  ENRRE LA
net of cash and cash equivalents SEEM - 88,660
Placement of restricted bank balances FHEBHIRI T4 (3,992) (18:878)
Placement of pledged and restricted fixed deposits EREER R SREEHER - (2,521)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances REVE R BRI T8 595 -
Withdrawal of pledged and restricted fixed deposits B HEERZREIE BFEH 1,761 35822
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities REES(FR)/ EEeEaE (913) 105,638
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Interest paid ERFE (2,272) (12928)
Lease interests paid BEREERS (1,068) (1,804)
New borrowings raised EER 37,957 52,015
Repayment of borrowings EEET (50,000) (59,344)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEREER (1,442) (4,258)
Increase/(decrease) in bank overdrafts BITELEMN, CRD) 95 (2619
Increase in other payables HAb eI FRIAE N 28 27,732 8,800
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities REEHHE/ (B LEE 11,002 (20,138)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n _\éiﬁﬁﬁii
For the year ended 31 March 2023

HE2023F3A3ALEE
Period from
1 October
Year ended 2020
31 March to 31 March
2023 2022

HZE2023F 2020F10A1HZE
38318 2022%3A31H

ILEE HARE
RM’000 RM'000
THEE FHER
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRSEBEYRLDFE
EQUIVALENTS (4,111) (1,837)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REHANRERESEEY
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR/PERIOD 10,686 12,701
Effect of foreign exchange rates INESTR R 2 50 (10) (178)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REHPRNRESRESEEY
AT END OF YEAR/PERIOD 6,565 10,686
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period are determined as follows: F/HRFRBESRRCEENETHT
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
A2023%F 20224
3A31H 3H31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHEHE FER
Cash and bank balances in the consolidated RE BN KR IR E RIRI TR
statement of financial position 1,547 2,118
Cash and bank balances included FFADBEARIELE 2 EENR S RIRITHER
in assets classified as held for sale 5,018 54
Fixed deposits with licensed banks RFFREERITHYTE BAfE 3K 28,358 35,236
Less: Restricted bank balances B LR BIRTT AR (22,296) (18,899)
Restricted fixed deposits PR HIIE BAfF 51 (2,811) 2,761)
Pledged fixed deposits BIRIRE BT 5K (3,251) (5,062)
6,565 10,686
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P HRRME

1.
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General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited since 9 August 2017. The Company was incorporated as
an exempted company and registered in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 18 November 2016.

The addresses of the Company's registered office and principal place of
business are Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands and A-3A-02, Block A, Level 3A, Sky Park One
City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia,
respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Since Prosper International Business Limited and Seeva International
Limited are parties acting in concert with each other with respect to their
interests in or the business of the relevant members of the Group, both of
them are considered as the ultimate parent undertakings of the Company.

Change in Financial Year End

In November 2021, the Directors of the Company resolved to change the
financial year end date from 30 September to 31 March in order to provide
a more meaningful basis for shareholders and investors to understand and
evaluate the Group's financial results, given that the Group’s construction
operation has been impeded by COVID-19 and Movement Control Order
("MCO") during the period from 1 October 2020 to 30 September 2021 and
the Group's operation level has improved since September 2021 as a result
of relaxation of MCO restrictive measures on construction activities. Also,
changing the financial year end to 31 March 2022 is preferable as compared
to changing to calendar year end (i.e. 31 December 2021) because it will
avoid a competition of resources in the preparation of the announcement
of annual results ending calendar year end.

The consolidated financial statements now presented cover a period
of twelve months from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023. Accordingly, the
comparative figures (which cover a period of eighteen months from 1
October 2020 to 31 March 2022) for the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes are not
comparable with those of the current year.

BGMC International Limited

—REH
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ARaladMpsE R+ ES E B At
% Bl A& Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands &
A-3A-02, Block A, Level 3A, Sky Park One City, Jalan
USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan,
Malaysia °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Application of New and Revised International

Financial Reporting Standards
Adoption of Amendments to IFRSs

During the year ended 31 March 2023 (the "Year’), the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) have applied the following
amendments to International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and
International Accounting Standards ("IAS") issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board ("IASB”) that are relevant to the operations to
the Group and are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
April 2022:

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-

2020

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the Year and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

e M RRME

3. BRI RIS R ERELE

A
RANVBIBR RS R EANERT A

HZE203F383HLEFE(XREE]) - AR
AIREMBAR(GEAIAEE]EEAUT
HEEeEREEe ((ERSTERES
g ) BEMGBERG RS ER ([ EBR T EHRE
28] ]) REE e ER ([ EBREFEER BT
R ZEEREAREE B B 202264 A
1Bz BB EAR AR

RIS LER]  BAIESRIRM
FEIFERTA

BRSBTS TR E2ER] 202156 A30H Z &M
FI6SRIEET A 201978 1k 75 S M 4E
Hem=

M - R MR —
FE165ERT AN BT AR RIS SIE

Rt AR BEEHN-BITEH2
FEI7IEET A PR

BIRRBA s E AER BB AR £ERI20185F
(EEIEN F2020F W F E ke

E st

PG X 8 P B IR B 75 3R A5 ZE RIS BT AN 48
REBRAFEE MBEREOM BN KRR
R/ EREGEVBBRRABNREREAY

g,
2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

3. Application of New and Revised International 3.
Financial Reporting Standards (continued)

New standards and amendments to standards in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 17 (including Amendments  Insurance Contracts'

to IFRS 17)
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between
IFRS 10 and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?
Amendments to IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates!

Amendments to I1AS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

Amendments to I1AS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules!

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the related impact
of adopting the above new and amendments to IFRSs and IASs. So far,
it has concluded that the above new and amendments IFRSs and IASs
will be adopted at the respective effective dates and the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable IFRSs, which comprise all applicable
individual IFRSs; IAS; and Interpretations. For the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the Year comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the
Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency’). Malaysian Ringgit (‘RM") is the Company’s functional
currency and the Group's presentation currency.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for the use of fair value basis for investment
properties and investments in redeemable convertible preference
shares.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect in the consolidated financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year
are disclosed in Note 5.

e M RRME

4. TEETBERBE

(a)

(b)

aBREH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(HE)
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial (b) HREMBERRFERELE(E)
statements (continued)

Reclassification due to discontinued operations ERLEREEEMENR2E
BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Power
On 24 March 2022, BGMC Corporation Sdn Bhd. ("BGMC 7202293 A 248 + BGMC Corporation Sdn.
Corporation’), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Bhd.([ BGMC Corporation | * ZX/2 7] fd #
entered into a Deed of Arrangement ("DOA”) with reNIKOLA Sdn. 2 EKIE AR BB 55 = 5 reNIKOLA Sdn.
Bhd. (“reNIKOLA"), an independent third party, to dispose of the Bhd.([reNIKOLA J) FT 37 & HE 2245 ([ R #E
interest in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power Sdn. Bhd. g |) - DA EBGMC Bras Power Sdn. Bhd.
("BGMC Bras Power"). BGMC Bras Power is engaged in concession ([ BGMC Bras Power | ) 1 95% & 38 % #
and maintenance, which undertakes Private Partnership Contracts #x ° BGMC Bras Powerf(t 45 R 458 2 1 N #
related to solar plant of duration of 21 years. Upon the completion & » & A 21 F A E K5 a2 S AR R
of the disposal of BGMC Bras Power, the Group will discontinue its A ABEEH o PR H & BGMC Bras
concession and maintenance business which is under the segment Powerfé + REB B KL IFETIFFEE %
of “concession and maintenance”. Subsequent to the end of the R#E 1o HIE TSRS REBE
reporting period, on 26 April 2023, the disposal was completed. % o RNEE AR - HEEIEEH2023
Details of the disposal are set out in the Company’s announcements F4H26B5EMK - BESHEFBIHRAEAR
dated 27 June 2022 and 26 April 2023 and the Company’s circular AIB #2022 6 H27H K&2023F 4 H26H
dated 21 September 2022. MAEURAABHEA2022F9821H
B3 PK o
As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023, the Directors believed the M2022F3 A31H K2023F3H31H » &
disposal was highly probable and the net carrying value of the relevant ERAEHEMATLIER K © TBGMC Bras
assets and liabilities of BGMC Bras Power will be recovered principally PowerfI MBI EE R B EMREFRER =
through sale rather than through continuing use. Accordingly, as at 31 LEBHEMERBEESTH KD -
March 2022 and 31 March 2023, the assets and liabilities attributable It 7202293 A31H K2023F3AH31H -
to BGMC Bras Power have been reclassified as held for sale as at 31 §7 B ABGMC Bras PowerfVEE K BEERN
March 2022 and 31 March 2023 and the result of BGMC Bras Power for 20229F3 A31H R2023F3 A31BEFHHA
the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 and for the Year has BIFERE - MBGMC Bras Powerf22020%F
been presented as discontinued operations. 10 1BZ=202293A31 AN RARFE

MEEZ RERIEEET -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(H)
(continued)

(b) FEMBHRMREE(K)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Reclassification due to discontinued operations (continued)

KAS Engineering

On 16 November 2020, the Group announced to dispose of the entire
issued share capital of KAS Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (‘KAS Engineering’)
at the consideration of RM93,787,000. The disposal of was completed
on 11 June 2021. Details of the disposal are set out in the Company'’s
announcements dated 16 November 2020, 11 June 2021 and the
Company'’s circular dated 10 December 2020. KAS Engineering was
engaged in concession with the government of Malaysia for the
construction of a university building, and building maintenance
service provider for the said university building which was under the
segment of “concession and maintenance”. Accordingly, the result of
KAS Engineering for the period from 1 October 2020 to 11 June 2021
(date of disposal) was presented as discontinued operation.

Further details of financial information of the discontinued operations
are set out in Notes 16.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held-for-sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell
(see Note 4(n)).

Going Concern Assumption

During the Year, the Group incurred net cash used in operating
activities of approximately RM14,200,000 during the year ended
31 March 2023; and excluding assets classified as held for sale and
liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale, its
total current liabilities exceeded its total current assets of RM 1,276,000
and its total liabilities exceeded its total assets of RM150,000 as at
31 March 2023. These events or conditions indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

EE LKL RE XK EH D E(E)
KAS Engineering

M2020F 11 A16R - AEEBSHIARE
93,787,000#8 & 5§ Hi B KAS Engineering Sdn.
Bhd ([ KAS Engineering |) ) & &0 & 217
PEA o HEBHRK2021F6 A1THTERK °
HESENFES N A2 A A E %2020
F11 8168 2021 F6 A1 BHRE KA
A BIHEA2020512 B 10 B HY B K ° KAS
Engineering it 5 B 55 21 78 25 BT L 8 58 —
BMARBEFHORTKERE  ZABEFH
BEBERGHEEMBRIFITEERER
#1512 E8 o Eitt ¢ KAS Engineering 42020
FI0F1BE2021F6 A1 (HEBE)
M2 EE2FABERIEREET -

FHERIEEEBYBERNE —PF
IEERHIRE6

PRRREREZERBEEHEHES
TYREREEN A FEREE R AR EBRE
ERtE(RMEE4Mn) °

HFESERR

RAFE - NEBRB ZE2023F3 H31
AEFEEEAKEEHMARSFELY
14,200,000 F 45 + KB BEAFIELER
BERESBEABIELENEEEREH
MBEIN - R2023F3H318 - HRnEha
BARRER R E R E) & A #5276 000K &
R mE BEEFERAEEEZEE150000
MERF - ZEEHIMRRBETFLEEAT
A ZE  EHAEEZHELEEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(HE)
(continued)

(b) FEMBHRMREE(K)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Going Concern Assumption (continued)

Nevertheless, the Directors of the Company have adopted the
going concern basis in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements based on the following:-

(i)  the completion of the disposal of interest in 95% ordinary shares
in BGMC Bras Power and an option price of RM 10,450,000 will be
received by the Group on 30 June 2023. Subsequent to the end
of the reporting period, on 26 April 2023, the disposal has been
completed;

(i) a controlling shareholder has agreed to provide continuing
financial support to the Group for at least twelve months from
the date the consolidated financial statements have been
authorised for issue; and

(i) repayment from customers of RM14,945,000 which were under
dispute but settlement is expected to be received in the next
twelve months. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
in April 2023, the amounts have been repaid by these customers.

Based on the Group’s cash flow projections, taking into account of
effectiveness and feasibility of the above measures covering a period
of twelve months from the end of the reporting period prepared
by the management, the Directors of the Company consider the
Group would be able to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within the forecast
period. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
value of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for any future liabilities that may arise and to re-classify non-current
assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries from 1 April 2022 to 31 March
2023. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights
as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and
any related accumulated exchange fluctuation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(HE)

(continued)

(c) Consolidation (continued) () HEANR(GE)
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income RO ARIEERBREIEEELET
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non- EEMEZEBAIEE @ BMFEHRESIEE
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling RS Ao B A s A Ak ik o

interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do W B HUR R AR A HIE 2 B A R

not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions BREFHREEZTHAERBIEE ANE

(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying BEANBMETRS) o 1R & IR

amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted R EEELHARURMENZE AT

to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. R 2 E) - JEIERER 2 AN

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling HENHERREZ AT EEMRERZIE

interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or A Z5 - HEERNERFBERLEBRA

received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners YNCIE DN

of the Company.

(d) Foreign currency translation (d) HERE

a) Functional and presentation currency a) IThREREREY
Items included in the financial statements of each of the AEBSEE U RERBIEZIE
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary B YUK EREE, T BKBEIRE
economic environment in which the entity operates (the ZEE([hEEY iTE - HREeii
“functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements WEUMERZY  MERFAERATF
are presented in RM, which is the Company’s presentation MNEREL  TAAEETELEN
currency and the functional currency of the principal operating BARIRINEEEHE o

subsidiaries of the Group.

b) Transactions and balances in financial statements b) HBEHRIPHORZIRES
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the NS DI E IR ERBFERLSHH
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange BITERIBE BN EN o« LAYNEST
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and BrEBEENBBEIRSWMESRR
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange ZERGE o WIRE IR E SR
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses K EE g E P fER o
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign BRATEYER - DUONESEHERIERE
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates HE - IREABEAYER A E R
when the fair values are determined. & o

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in EIFEMIEAE BN Et e mkEE
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that RIERE  (TERELTDBRE
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When 2 =R PR - WIEEEIER
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or Rk B ENERER - Z WK
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised EEAERE RSO R ERER

in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

<)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company's
presentation currency are translated into the Company's
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

(i) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

exchange fluctuation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the

period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The property, plant and
equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following

rates per annum:

10% — 20%
20% - 33%
Machinery and site equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicle 20%
Office equipment 20%

Furniture and fittings
Computers and software

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

(f) Investment properties

Investment properties are buildings held to earn rentals. An
investment property is measured initially at its cost including all direct

costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its fair
value based on valuation by an external independent valuer. Gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value of the investment property
are recognised in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(H)
(continued)

(g) Leases (9) HE

The group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid,
initial direct costs and the restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term
are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can
be determined, or otherwise the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease term
50 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial
lease term of 12 months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(HE)

(continued)
(g) Leases (continued) (g HE(E)
Lease modifications HEBK

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The group as lessor

Operating lease

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

U]

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Service concession arrangements

A portion of the Group's assets are used within the framework of
IFRIC Interpretation 12, “Service Concession Arrangements”. The
characteristics of the service concession arrangement generally
provide, directly or indirectly, for grantor involvement in the
determination of the service and its remuneration, and the return of
the assets necessary to the performance of the service at the end of
the contract.

In order to fall within the scope of concession contract, a contract
must satisfy the following two criteria:

- the grantor controls or regulates what services the operator
must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide
them, and at what price; and

- the grantor controls the significant residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.
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e MR RME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

114 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Service concession arrangements (continued)

Such infrastructure is not recognised in assets of the operator as
property, plant and equipment but in financial assets (‘financial asset
model”) depending on the remuneration commitments given by the
grantor.

On 27 March 2018, BGMC Bras Power entered into a Renewable
Energy Power Purchase Agreement (‘REPPA”) with Tenaga Nasional
Berhad (“TNB") for 21 years commencing upon the fulfillment of the
Condition Precedent set out in the REPPA. The Directors consider that
the term of a concession arrangement for the operation of a solar
photovoltaic energy generating facility is 21 years, which coincides
with its estimated useful life. This arrangement is within the scope
of IFRIC 12 as Suruhanjaya Tenaga Energy Commission controls and
regulates BGMC to sell to TNB with the infrastructure at a fixed price
per kilowatt hour.

Financial asset model

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an
unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from the
grantor.

In the case of concession services, the operator has such an
unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the
payment of:

- amounts specified or determined in the contracts; or

- the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users of
the public service and amounts specified or determined in the
contract.

The fair value of a concession asset received as consideration for
providing construction services in a service concession arrangement
is estimated by reference to the fair value of the construction
services provided. The fair value is calculated as the estimated total
construction cost plus a profit margin, which the Group evaluates and
determined to be a reasonable margin earned.

Concession assets resulting from the service concession are recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position under contract
assets and are amortised using a rate of return specific to the assets
to give a constant periodic rate of return on the financial asset in each
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established
by the market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost; and

- Investments at fair value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL").
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e MR RME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Financial Assets (continued)

(i

(i)
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Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade, loans and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected credit
losses.

Investments at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not
meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost and
the conditions of debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is not held for trading as at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value
with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest income
and dividend income. Interest income and dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss.cost. When these instrument
are derecognised, the cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

U]

(m)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (‘ECL”")
on financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of that financial instrument (‘lifetime expected
credit losses”) for trade and retention receivables and contract
assets, or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade and retention receivables and contract
assets) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
represents the expected credit losses that result from default events
on that financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group's cash management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(HE)

(continued)

(n) Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued (n) PEARABHFHEZEERERLRE
operations 7
Assets or disposal group are classified as held for sale if their carrying WEESKEEAR 2 EEERTEZRG
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather HERX S (MIERSEEFER) KD - A%
than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only LIRBEERDEEANED EAIFED
when the sale is highly probable and the assets or disposal group are € o Pl ESNRE A REEITIHE -
available for immediate sale in their present condition. The Group BEBEERLEEEERRAEIRAR D
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify ERRAENK  ANEBEBNBEAGETE
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of & AERBER S BABERT —FAGE
classification. iR/ —IHE TS °
Assets or disposal group classified as held for sale are measured at the DERFELEZ EERHEAFITIRE
lower of the assets’ or disposal group’s previous carrying amount and EHEARBEZ BREER A FERE
fair value less costs to sell. ERAMEREETE ©
A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, the operations RIS EEBRAEB 2N - HXE
and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest 7% R IR G £ 0] )5 W i B AR 52 B 82 T 5B
of the Group and which represents a separate major line of business NED RBIZEFEERHRAEEM
or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated @ ANEEY 2 EXBHENEEN
plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical B BEFE—D HAETEAETE
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view EmikEE 2B AR -
to resale.
Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or NHERNERESEEETESRIERRE
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale W REERFESROEABIELERT
in accordance with IFRS 5, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is F(UREERE)  FRAIDEAD KK
abandoned. EEER o OIS N MELS S E R

iH o
When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is BIHEERED ARG EN - gRiE
presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive mREMPERAXRANZINE —2FE &
income, which comprises: 15
—  The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and — DRIEEEEBZRBIE RN SE
B R
- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to —  FTEATERBEEK RSN SR
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or HERODRIEELEGR 7 EENLE
disposal group constituting the discontinued operation. AR HERR I E WG S ETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings and redeemable secured loan stocks

Borrowings and redeemable secured loan stocks are initially
recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings and redeemable secured loan stocks are classified as
current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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e MR RME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s)
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Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary business
practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
For a contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a significant
financing component.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that
apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance;

- The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- The Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the product or service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

4. TEETBERBEGR)

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

(t) Otherrevenue (t) Hfbzs

B AR BRI HORHER -

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

HERARBERNIREREER -

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(u)

Employee benefits

(i

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are
recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

Defined contribution plan

As required under the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 of
Malaysia (the "EPF Act 1991"), the Group makes contribution to
the employee provident fund scheme (the “EPF Scheme”) for
employees employed in Malaysia. The EPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan that requires both the employers
and employees in Malaysia make monthly contributions, which
the monthly contributions are determined based on the rates
set out in the third schedule of the EPF Act 1991. No forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce the existing level of
contributions. The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.
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e MR RME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(HE)

(continued)

(v) Borrowing cost (v) fBERZAE
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or Wi RENEESEREE(AIFE—
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take BRERFEAAESMERRHENE
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, E)EEEONEEKASBIEXZSEE
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the KA EEEEANN A ERT Ak
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment HERALL - LWEFEREGEREERY 2
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings BEEBEEEOBEEREBRINNEERA
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the WEBRERCAEER ARG -

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the R —RERRBERIGEEREEME
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing AZEEME @  BERBRELRZEEK
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a KEBIIGEANZEEZHSZERER L
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation LEREAE - EARCR AR R AEEER
rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to (PN EBEBARAERE) ZEREAZ N
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the period, BEHE - ISR AERESEREEMIE
other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining H 2 [EFRBIBRIN

a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period FrEEMEEKRARELBRENIBERE
in which they are incurred. R e
(w) Taxation (w) Fi1g

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable TS T 5 S 5 BN BR FE (< B T8 SR IE R T A
and deferred tax. HAEE o

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the financial B B JE T 1B 1% B B EA R A FE 2R s 71 51
period. Taxable profit differs from ‘(loss)/profit before tax' as o ERVaNERREERAEMEE
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other W RME 2 BBA(EIB) %A T
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense that A - RESFEEMEE 2 ERBIA T
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never Rz WASKFAYIER @ SFERRH ST
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated AR ZIEE - AEBERBIETIEA EF
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by AHEREHAREEMEEBMOTER
the end of the reporting period. FTE o
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e M RRME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(H)
(continued)

(w) Taxation (continued)

(w) BEIE(%E)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities at the end of reporting period
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets, if any, is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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e MR RME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(w) Taxation (continued)

(x)

124 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are measured
based on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management
for the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the performance
of the Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of productions processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

BGMC International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(y) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to

(B)

the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the entities comprising the Group are
members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(ii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).
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e MR RME

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(y)

(B)

126 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Related parties (continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to a parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the Group and include:-

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i)

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

BGMC International Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4., Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(2)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets, except investment
properties, other investment and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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e MR RME

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 4. FESHBEFEME(HE)
(continued)

(aa) BERIAREE

(aa) Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
is remote.

(bb) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 4, the Directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

a) Construction contracts with customers

As revenue from on-going construction contracts are recognised
over time, the amount of revenue recognised at the reporting date
depends on the extent to which the performance obligation has been
satisfied. This is performed by determining the stage of completion.
The stage of completion is determined by the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total
contract costs.

Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of
completion, the extent of the contract costs incurred, the estimated
total revenue and total costs, the recoverability of the construction
project and contract cost as well as the financial impact of scope
changes, claims, disputes and liquidated ascertained damages. In
making these judgements, management relies on past experience
and, if necessary, the work of specialists.

Where the total actual revenue and cost incurred are different from
the total estimated revenue and cost incurred, such difference will
impact the contract profit or loss recognised.
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e MR RME

5. Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates 5. = A% 6 R 45t (&)

(continued)

b) Impairment of trade and retention receivables and b) ESRAREBSERNRERESHNEER
contract assets =
The ECL on trade and retention receivables and contract assets are RATREBEEREHNBELZE S NIRE
assessed individually for customers with significant balances. Where SRWFIBREENEETRBEERIBET
the Group uses simplified approach in calculating allowance of ECL BEE - MAKREEFEE S RRES
for trade and retention receivables and contract assets, the ECL JEWRIER & X8 ER TR EE B ERE
rate is determined based on the management’s assessment on the EHB/ELAE - BB ZE B Rig
individual customer’s credit risk grading dependent on the customer’s EEEHENEFPEERRITMNTEHE
financial performance, adjusted for factors that are specific to the E - ERTEFPEBRAME - BRIEES
debtors, general economic conditions at the reporting date that is ANESEERZE - S5 HEBEBZ K AN
available without undue cost or effort, including time value of money HEIAI S M B EAR N (B IS AR
where appropriate. At each reporting date, the ECL rate is remeasured. BEMGER)) AR - NESHEHE 78
The allowance for ECL is sensitive to changes in circumstances and HEEEBERENTUtE - BHEEE
of forecast economic conditions and consequently, may not be BEESIIR A LRTER&EER N E S
representative of customers’ actual default in the future. 2 REHitt RBERRRRKEFERE

7 o

¢) Fair value measurements and valuation processes < AREFERMGESRR
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities BEAPMBERARIISREEREENKT R
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial position cannot BEZATFEELBEERMSAMMER
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair st EQAFERFEREFEER L= o &
values are measured using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques EFEBRUHRBASNE  FEERARE
include the discounted cash flows method, credit models and other IR G EER - ZSER R AT
relevant valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from WEr#ERmES(WER) @ WEARTT
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a BEN N FERREELR —TRERHE -

degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.

d) Fair value of investment properties d KBREYEATLE
The Group appointed an independent professional valuer to assess NCSE e Sk VA S = [T
the fair values of the investment properties. In determining the fair WEMENNTE - REETATER - 4
values, the valuer has utilised a method of valuation which involves ERER P RE THETHEHERE - EF
certain estimates. The Directors have exercised their judgment and BITEEHE - WEMPTANMEER A
are satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the current RERIFAFTTN o

market conditions.
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6. Financial Risk Management

The Group’s major financial instruments include investment in redeemable

convertible preference shares, trade and other receivables, retention

receivables, deposits, fixed deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and

other payables, borrowings and redeemable secured loan stocks. Details

of the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The

risks associated with these financial instruments include interest rate risk,

credit risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how the

Group mitigates these risks are set out below. Management manages and

monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its
business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end of each
reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables, retention receivables and contract assets. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the Group uses an internal credit scoring
system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits for customers. Limit and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures are in place
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of IFRS 9 on trade balances individually. In
this regard, the Directors of the Company consider the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

e M RRME
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e MR RME

6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6.

(b) Creditrisk (continued)

The Group's internal credit rating assessment comprises the following

categories:

Internal Credit

Rating

AEBEETFR

Description

S

MR EE(E)

(b) FEREER(E)

AEENABEEFRFEREATE

Al -

Trade and retention
receivables/
contract assets

B RREBSEW
RIE BREE

Other financial
assets

HtteMEE

Good

Fair

R&f

Marginal

—&

Weak

REE

Poor

Debtor’s financial information is positive with low risk
of default and frequently repay before due date and
do not have any past-due historically

BERANTEERBER - ENERIE

BEERIHBTENR - BELEEFIEHFTIE

Certain debtor’s financial information is negative
though information developed internally or external
sources with no history of bad debts or debtors
frequently repay and settle after due date

& B N ER I ED AR TS BRI IR AR RCER - 8%
/\E’Jﬁﬁ’zéwr%% H - HEBALERIHER

BRI FOE

There have been no information on debtors’
financial performance and debtors frequently repay
and settle after due date

WEABEBA ﬁﬁiiiﬁﬂ’] BE EBALERE
HBBERIFNK

|

The information of the debtors'’ financial performance is
negative and have historical bad debts with the Group

ERAMBRENENBAE @ BERAEEERE
R HEAEEER

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
ERBERABKABAREMEAE - MAKER
BRI B RIBRHE T

Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired

EHIEMEEEE -
W EEERIE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

2HEMEEEE -
WEEERIE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

EHEHEREEE -
W EEERIE

Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired

> HIRHE BRI —
WE{EERIE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

MR EREER -
AEERE

12-month ECL

2B AEHEEEE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

EHEMEEER -
WEEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

EHEHEEEE -
W EEERIE

Lifetime ECL - not
credit-impaired

2 HITRHE B EE —
W= ERE

Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired

EHEEEER -
HBiEERE
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e M RRME

6. HBREREE(E)
(b) FEREER(E)

6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

In determining the ECL for other receivables, the management of
the Group has taken into account the historical default experience
and forward-looking information, as appropriate. As of 31 March
2023, the management of the Group has considered that there was
a significant increase in credit risk in other receivables owing from a
related company of RM4,933,000 (2022: RM2,342,000) and made a loss
allowance of RM4,933,000 (2022: RM2,342,000) during the Year. The
credit risk inherent in the Group's remaining outstanding receivables is
insignificant.

The credit risks on fixed deposits and bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The tables below detail the credit exposure of the Group's financial
assets and contract assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:

AT HAb UG TB R E BB -
SEERECRBEELLER RATE
MHER o RA2023F3A31H  REBRER
[ 52 7 e W — 1 A 428 1 ) A L i JRE W sk B
4,933,000 45 (20224F : 2,342,0004KF 45 )
KEERBRAEBIEN - WARFEIELS
FE 54,933 000 F 45 (20224F + 2,342,000
MER) - REBEBRT REZBERLEGIED
EBEEFEERRIYTERK -

BRRXZHF REEREEFARERT
BIEEFAMNIRT - AEEREEFHR LR
ﬂm%méf BRAER -

TRAMSINAEEBETEREERSR
HENEREERANEENEERR :

Gross carrying  Gross carrying

amount amount
IREAE RHE AR
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
20235 FA20225
3A31H 3A31H
Note Internal Credit Rating 12-month or Lifetime ECL RM’000 RM'000
P AEMEERTR 12ME A2 BEEEEE FHER THER
Trade receivables (Note a) 24 Good Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 6,014 40,529
B SR FE (f7ta) BR FHEREEEE - TREERAE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 6,014 5,239
Rif PHEREEEE - TREERAE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - 1,718
— FHEHEEEE - VREERHE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not cred|t |mpa\red 9 3,842
REE FHEREEEE - TREERE
Poor Lifetime ECL - cred\t—mpawed 35,132 21,856
TR P HRBEEFE-ARERE
Retention receivables (Note a) 24 Good Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - -
RECRUFA(H7ta) BR FHREREEEE - TRESRE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - -
Ry FHEREEEE - TREERAE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 33 3490
Rz PHEREREEE - TEEERAE
Poor Lifetime ECL - notcredit impaired 3,428 385
R FHEREEEE - TREERE
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. MEREMREE(E)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) SERB(E)

Gross carrying  Gross carrying
amount amount
REAE REAE
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
120235 20225
3A31H 3A31H
Note Internal Credit Rating 12-month or Lifetime ECL RM’000 RM'000
s AEEERTR 1218 Az 2 BE B E S R THER FHER
Other receivables 24 Good 12-month ECL 11,591 11,422
Hoth JEYFRIE BR 2MEAEREEEE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired - -
RiF FHENEEEE - VREERHE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 730 -
—f FHEREEEE - TREERE
Poor Lifetime ECL - creditfimpawed 7,183 -
TR PHEBEEFE-ARERE
Contract assets (Note a) 25  Good Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 34,861 46,175
BREEHita) BR FHEREEEE - TREERE
Fair Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 16,197 54,353
Rif PHEREEEE - TREERAE
Marginal Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 55 188
—#& PHEHEEEE - VREERHE
Weak Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired 54 14,803
REE FHEREEEE - TREERE
Poor Lifetime ECL - credit impawed 25,920 25114
TR FHRBEEERE-ARERE
Fixed deposits 26 Good 12-month ECL 28,358 35,236
THER BR NEAEBEEEE
Cash and bank balances 27 Good 12-month ECL 1,547 2,118
e RRITHER BR REAEHEERE
Notea: For trade and retention receivables and contract assets, the Group has Hista : Tﬁ:f’f%&1% B2 EUGRIEAR G REEM

CAEECERERMEREENF
st’Jﬁﬂbﬁ‘tﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%@ﬂaﬁ’]@i
BRE - ARBEREBERFGEEZEH
BREEEEREE -

applied the simplified approach of IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance
at lifetime ECL. The Group determines the expected credit losses on these
items based on individual assessment.
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b) Creditrisk (continued)

()

The following table shows the movements in lifetime ECL that has
been recognised for trade and retention receivables and contract
assets under simplified approach.

6.

e M RRME

MR EE(E)

(b) FEREER(E)

TREJIRIEBCHANE S RRES
FEUWRIE M A KB EFTER N 2 BITRHE

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HITEHA
FEEE 2 HITEHA
(g FEEE
FERE) (AEERE) et
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHERE FHRE R FHRE R
At 1 October 2020 FR2020510H1H 33,632 1,894 35,526
Transfer to credit impaired RS = ERIE (33,632 33,632 -
Impairment losses recognised BHERBESE - 11,444 11,444
At 31 March 2022 R2022F3A31H - 46,970 46,970
Impairment losses recognised BEHERREEE 3 2,233 2,236
Written-off 6= - (3,762) (3,762)
At 31 March 2023 R2023F3H31H 3 45,441 45,444
Liquidity risk () RBELEKE

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group'’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. As at 31 March 2023, the Group
has available unutilised bank borrowing facilities of approximately
RM28,530,000 (2022: RM30,027,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from prevailing market interest rates at the end of each reporting
period.

NERERBESRRE  NEFESEEN
BRELASEEMHEITNERERRR
RZKFE  LBAASEEZ EERRIKSE
SRERFE - R2023F3A8318 -
REEAEANARESABITIEERENS
28,530,000#K 75 55 (20224F © 30,027,0004K 7
) o

TRFAMAEEFTESRBENRTA
MEEFE - TRENESBAEZRRA
ReneRRAEEATEEZRFEY
B e TREERGREAL  HHER
WFBRIRETE - RMRBBEUSRED
RZETTIGHNEAHR -
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. MEREMREE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () RBESEAMR(E)
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the BEAEESREBEZ ARBREREREE
Group's financial liabilities is as follows: HEERAAT T
Weighted
average  Ondemand Total Total
effective or within Between Between undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year 1to2years  2to5years cash flows amount
mETYE  REREE AERAE
kS F-FR —EWF BRI REAR REAE
At 31 March 2023 12023534318 % RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
W THEE  THESR  THE®  THESR THES
Trade and other payables 2o REmENFE - 129,691 - - 129,691 129,691
Lease liabilities HEAE 5.65 181 9% - 277 246
Bank overdrafts RITEX - 2,889 - - 2,889 2,889
Redeemable secured loan stocks ENEEEENES 1.50 - - 49,885 49,885 48,272
132,761 96 49,885 182,742 181,098
Weighted
average On demand Total Total
effective orwithin Between Between  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 1to 2 years 2105 years cash flows amount
mEF  REREE AERRE
S H—FR —EmE ZER% RERE FHEE
At31 March 2022 M02%E3A8318 % RM000 RM000 RM000 RM'000 RM000
% THEE  TiER THEE AR THEE
Trade and other payables BSRHMENFE - 189,543 - 47,897 237440 237440
Lease liabilities HEARE 565 341 180 - 521 425
Bank overdrafts BITEX - 279% - - 27% 279%
192678 180 47897 240,755 240659
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e M RRME

MR EE(E)

(d) FREE

6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6.

(d) Interestrate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk as certain of its
bank balances and borrowings are subject to floating interest rates.
Management considers any significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
its fixed-rate bank deposits and borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure
to floating interest rates for borrowings at the end of the reporting
period and assumed the amounts outstanding at the end of this
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year and held
constant throughout the financial year. If interest rates on interest
bearing borrowings were 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the profit for the Year/the loss for the
period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 would decrease/
increase (2022: increase/decrease) by approximately RM133,000 (2022:
RM171,000).

The above sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest rate risk because the Year/period end exposure does not
reflect the exposure during the Year/period.

mR AR EE T RSB RERBEHH
EitE - YAEBBEERSRENEM
% o BB B E B A E AR,
ARS8 N R B U 2B M ARATIE AR
EETREAFENEER -

BRE DT RRE R EEFEFIE
EBEE - WERNARE RO REE
SHEARFNAEEANEEATREER
B - Wat BEEMFIE LR T#50
EEL  MAEEMBERFTE - 8
B 2020510 A 1B £2022F3 A31 BHARIA
FEBA BB (2022F -
BN, /) #9133,0000K 7 4 (2022 4F
171,000/ 5 #5) °

RRNE S HIREBR TSR R E B,
% M A BRE DM A ATRREA A X
[\
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mEMBEHRME
6. Financial Risk Management (continued) 6. MEREMREE(E)
(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 March 2022 and (e) 72022%3H31HK2023%F3H31H
31 March 2023 ERITEER
At amortised At amortised

cost At FVTPL cost At FVTPL
BATE EAYE
TR R A sTABE  WEENAAR FFAERE
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2023 2022 2022

2023F H2023F 20224 R20224F

3A31H 38318 3A31H 3A31H

Financial assets SREE RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEH FHEH FHERE THER

Trade and other receivables E 5 K H b fE WK IE
(including cash and cash (BERERREESED)
equivalents) 128,127 - 220,680 -
Investment in redeemable 7 7] 2] AT B (B S B A
convertible preference shares BE - 5,694 - 5,694
128,127 5,694 220,680 5,694
At amortised At amortised
cost At FVTPL cost At FVTPL
BAYE EAEE
2 1 68 AR AN sTABRE  IREENAR FFAERE
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2023 2022 2022

2023F M2023%F R20224F R20224F

3A31H 3A31H 3H31H 3H31H

Financial liabilities SRIEE RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FMHER FMHEH FHERE TS

Other financial liabilities Higsmas 181,098 - 240,659 -
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6. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(f)

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the
current and previous financial years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which
includes borrowings, lease liabilities, advance from reNIKOLA and
redeemable secured loan stocks as disclosed in Notes 30, 32, 28 and
29, respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents, and attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, share
premium, redeemable preference shares reserves, other reserve and
accumulated losses.

The directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. The Group will also balance its
overall capital structure through new share issues and share buy-backs
as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt, if
necessary.

7. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants

at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value

measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels

the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that

are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any of

the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that

caused the transfer.

6.

e M RRME

BB EREE(R)
() BEXERER

$EI§IE§$LME4%K%IZ§
FELE  WEBBLER LR

PR FAMER - AEBRE %
& AT BB E IR RIS T o

AEBMNEANEERERFE(REMTE
3032 28R29DFIBEMEE - HESR
f& ~ reNIKOLABY ZA 3R 2 A B [B] B 3K I B 3K
EF  CNMBRRERESEED) AR
A AEL(BIEEEITRA - BRiE
8 - PJIEREARGEE  HitHEERR
E51B) 485K o

EETHRA EAGRE - I BiET &
%%F§$EX$&A ZRE AR AR
B o AEREINEBBRITHA - BRI &

THEBSEEREEH (NG LBE)F
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ERNHENBERMNBAER D B=(AER :

F—RBABE - AREA N ERESHE
RIEEXBEREETSHRECREHAR) -

F_RBABE - AIREEXREEENKEE
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g -

AEENBRRIINEH B LR EREREIRA

MEEA  EREANSLBR=EERZE
(AR -
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7. Fair Value Measurements (continued) 7. AV EFE(E)
(@) Fair value hierarchy (a) AFEER

The table below analyses fair value measurements for financial assets TERAOMEATFERBRERE DI ER G

and financial liabilities, by the levels in the fair value hierarchy based BN ASBENeREERSRIBEDN

on the inputs to valuation techniques. NHEFE ©

At 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 72022563 H31HK%2023F3H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& -t 1 B=R st
RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000

THER THER THER THER

Recurring fair value measurements: RE M AFLEHE

Financial assets at FVTPL: BATEGFAEBRNEREE

Investment in redeemable convertible A R] BE B AT 1B AR HIRE

preference shares - 5,694 - 5,694

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets and liabilities not AEBEVWIHFZAFHEIAENEREENE
carried at fair value are not materially different from their fair values as & B BR T (8 B2 E 7020224 3 A 31 H %2023
at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023. FIANANAFELESAER -
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of TREVEREMEENRABRAF
significant non-financial assets, including their levels in the fair value B BEATEERNHSER -
hierarchy.

A2023F3H31H
At 31 March 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B -t E=R st
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

THER THER THER THER

Recurring fair value measurements:  EE A PEE :

Investment properties WEME
Commercial A - - 47,971 47,971
At 31 March 2022 7202293 H31H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—® FEM F=M 4T
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

FHEs  THES  TREE THES

Recurring fair value measurements:  &H#4 A PEE :
Investment properties wEME
Commercial P - - 25,000 25,000
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7. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on

()

level 3:

7.

e M RRME

AFEE ()

b) REF=RBRATEFEZEEH
B :

Investment
in RCPS Total
R e
AT
BRRH
RE #at
RM'000 RM'000
THRESR THER
At 1 October 2020 PR2020F10A1H 5,694 5,694
Transfer to level 2 EREE R (5,694) (5,694)

At 31 March 2022 and
31 March 2023

R202253A8318 K
202343 H31H

Measurement of fair value

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value measurements at 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2023:

The Group's chief financial officer is responsible for the fair value
measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting
purposes, including level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements. The
chief financial officer reports directly to the Board of Directors for
these fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the chief financial officer and the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

For level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to perform the
valuations.

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements are
mainly:

- price per square foot of comparable properties and lands

(¢ DAFEFE

REEFP 20223 A31 H % 20234%3A31H
FrREERF AR AT EEMREER
i Koy ABIRIRENT -

AEEERUHERRETEERAREN
R EFEMEMBRERSE  BEF=
MEE=MAVEFE - ERMBEEE
RMEEGEBZEATEFNE - ERUH
ERERSEFRIBITMAGH - B
BERFMER -

RE_RRE=RLAFEAEMS A%
E-ReZREABRIEXERBEAR
L ERR 2 INEMEEFZTETHE

FE=RATEHBRRBNERTTRE
BABEEEA -

—  AILEYMERTHHE T T ERER
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e MR RME

7. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(c) Measurement of fair value (continued) () DEEEE)
Level 3 fair value measurements E=HNFETE
Effect on fair
value for
Significant increase
Description Valuation technique ~ Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Fair value
WABEE Y
it B EXTABEBARE gE AVENTE AVE
Asat
31 March
2023
R2023%
3A31H
RM'000
FHEHR
Commercial investment properties  Market comparable Price per square foot of RM179 to RM794 Increase 45,891
approach comparable properties
HRRENE TsLLEVA AELEMENGTHRRER  7MERZE &0
794 E
Residential lands Market comparable Price per square foot of RM89 Increase 1,560
approach comparable lands
FERM TsLLEVA AELR T HHETH RRER BOME #n
Service apartment Market comparable Price per square foot of RM430 Increase 520
approach comparable lands
FRELE TsLLEVA AELR T HHETH RRER 4300 E #n
Effect on fair
value for
Significant increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range of inputs Fair value
BRI e
it fhE R EATAERBARE #E QATENTE ATE
As at
31 March
2022
720225F
3A31H
RM'000
THEH
Commercial investment properties  Market comparable Price per square foot of RM221 to RM753 Increase 25,000
approach comparable properties
BRREDE [kl d v AELBMENESTARRER  2HERZE bl

53T

F202243 A31 8 K202363 A31 BFTAH
ERMI S -

There were no changes in the valuation techniques used as at 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2023.
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e M RRME

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements
and Segmental Information

(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Group derives its revenue from contract with customers in the

(a)

BEEEHAWEFSD

8. Wi HFFHBRBAR T HBER

AEEEFEONKGENEEW S KRN

following major revenue streams: o
Period from
Year ended 1 October 2020
31 March to
2023 31 March 2022
20204
BZ2023F 10A18Z
3A31H 2022%F
LHEE 3A31 8 8RE
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH THER
Building construction revenue EFEEE 107,451 355,611
Building maintenance service income BFHEIREA - 8,232
Supply and installation of elevators HERLZEEE 37 903
Management fee income BEEBIWA 2,622 -
110,110 364,746
Representing: THIEIE ¢
Continuing operations FRBACE TS 110,110 285,828
Discontinued operations (Note 16) BRI T (it 16) - 78918
110,110 364,746
Timing of revenue recognition: WS FERR IR ]
Over time = 110,110 364,746

During the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022, construction
contract revenue recognised amounting to RM71,077,000 relates to
the development and construction of a solar photovoltaic energy
generating facility as disclosed in Note 16(b)(i).

SROBTEE16(0)() AT ER -

2202293 A31HEIH

720205108 1H

- EMREEAD

W EE4971,077, 000K E 5 B A 2% % 33 3% — I
APFEEN IR BRIEERT -

FE3R 2023
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e MR RME

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. U2 - 1S BB WA R 2 & H
and Segmental Information (continued) (%)

(b) BEFEHNZEHNEE

(b) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Building construction

The Group provides building construction services to customers. Such
services are recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced. Revenue is recognised for
these construction services based on the stage of completion of the
contract using input method.

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group may require
certain customers to provide upfront deposits of certain % of total
contract sum. When the Group receives a deposit before construction
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on the specific contract
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same contract,
is recognised over the period in which the construction services are
performed representing the Group's right to consideration for the
services performed because the rights are conditioned on the Group's
future performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

Retention sum receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, ranges from one to two years from the date of the practical
completion of the construction. The relevant amount of contract asset
is reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability period
expires and invoiced. The defect liability period serves as an assurance
that the construction services performed comply with agreed-upon
specification and such assurance cannot be purchased separately.
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e M RRME

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. Uz5 - 1S BB A R 2 B & H
and Segmental Information (continued) (#&)

(b) BEFENZEHNEEE)

(b) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

(continued)

Building maintenance service

The Group engages in providing services for maintenance of
buildings. Contracts entered into can cover various different
processes. These processes and activities tend to be highly inter-
related and the Group provides a significant service of integration for
these assets under contract. Where this is the case, these are taken to
be one performance obligation. The total transaction price is allocated
across each service or performance obligation and, where linked, the
construction of the relevant asset. The transaction price is allocated
to each performance obligation based on contracted prices. The total
transaction price may include variable consideration.

Performance obligations are fulfilled over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consume the benefits provided by the
Group's performance as the Group performs. Revenue is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are rendered based
on the amount of the expected transaction price allocated to each
performance obligation. Customers are in general invoiced on a
monthly basis for an amount that is calculated on a schedule of
rates. Output method is used when determining progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation of the service,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value of services transferred to the customers to date relative to
the remaining services promised under the contract.

Management fee income

The Group is compensated for services through a monthly fee earned
based on the promised consideration in the relevant agreements.
The services represent a series of distinct daily management services
rendered over time and such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group transfers the benefit of the
services to the customer as it performs. Consistent with the transfer
of control for distinct and daily services to the customer, revenue is
recognised at the end of each period for the fees associated with the
services performed.

BFEERE

AEBREREBTRIERT - TuHA
OARLRESETRER - KERFRE
BEAR BN - AEEERSEANT
BEREREEARY - ELBRT - &
SRR A—EROR - RHBEBE
FEHEESBEBOE CRBR (488
RRAMEE - XFEEERTOEESD
RESEBROEE - XHERLBETLE
AT -

EF EFEKER MBS EORAEE
REFTRENNRE - BHEER —BRE
BIATEA - WaRIESREORTED
MBI ZERSENIEHREO ST H
RAMER - TP BTN EHRAESD
MEREABRHER - AEEE2ETR
BRGOERE - RARGE - BIREE
S RIEREEPNRGEEEHNRE
B RIEGEH IR RS 1O B 1OR B R HER U
A e

EEBEWA

AEEE BRIFRE T AEN L ER
By A BB IREEA - % F R ERER
Bt — RO TR B EEERES - M
% BRAG AN 5 B B 40 B 5 AR A5 M en ¥8 75
EXPRHEBERHEEARCENBOEL -
B[R FPEETR K& A HE IR H 26—
B BN FHARATRERGOEEE
FRHERR. -
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e MR RME

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(c) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

obligation for contracts with customers

The following table shows the aggregate amount of the transaction

price allocated to performance obligations that is unsatisfied (or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023.

8. Wm (HHHBERARDIHBEHR
(%)

(c)

IEFEFENBRTBNEENRS

B

TRERNEZE20226E3 A31 8 &20234F3
A31BO R E AT (B KK ) EEL

BN SERESHE -

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
120234 20224
3A31H 3H31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TSR
Building construction revenue EFEERE 158,641 319,721
Building maintenance service income RS RIFUA - 10,135
Supply and installation of elevators HERLZEEE - 1,777
158,641 331,633
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
R2023F 20224F
3A31H 3A31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Representing T IEG
Continuing operations BB ET 158,641 321,498
Discontinued operations BRI T = 10,135
158,641 331,633
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e M RRME

8. Wm HHHBERARDIHER

and Segmental Information (continued) (#&)

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

(c) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance () PEFEFEHNBRTENETINRS
obligation for contracts with customers (continued) B (&)

AREETEHIR A B A B AR U as A 70 LA

The Group expect revenue from unsatisfied performance obligations

to recognised in the following years as follows: TEM T AR
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
12023F 20224
3A31H 3A31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TMHER
Within one year —FR 137,416 331,633
More than one year, but not more than 2 years i —FE BB E 21,225 -
158,641 331,633
(d) Income from concession agreements (d) $FFHmEBRA
Period from
1 October
2020 to
Year ended 31 March
31 March 2023 2022
2020%F
B Z2023F 10A18E
3A31H 20224F
ILFE 38318 B
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER THER
Income from concession agreements:- FERF s A -
Imputed interest income: HEMEWA -
(i) Universiti Teknologi Mara () IHh TEKE - 27,262
(i) REPPA (i) REPPA 10,292 4,962
Total imputed interest income HENSAWA 10,292 32,224
Supply of electricity BHHRE 5,078 -
15,370 32,224
Representing THIEIEE
Discontinued operations (Note 16) BRI T (Mt 16) 15,370 32,224
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e MR RME

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements

and Segmental Information (continued)

(d) Income from concession agreements (continued)

U]

148 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

On 27 March 2018, BGMC Bras Power entered into a REPPA with
TNB to design, construct, own, operate and maintain a solar
photovoltaic energy generating facility (“the Facility”) with a
capacity of 30MWac proposed to be located in Kedah, Malaysia
to generate and deliver solar photovoltaic energy to TNB. BGMC
Bras Power will sell to TNB, and TNB will purchase from BGMC
Bras Power the Net Electrical Output generated by the Facility
and delivered to TNB in exchange for energy payments as set
out in the REPPA (“the Kuala Muda Project”).

The REPPA is for a period of 21 years (“the Term”) commencing
upon the fulfillment of the Condition Precedent (“CP”") set out
in the REPPA and expires on the day before the 21st anniversary
of the CP fulfillment date (including such day), unless otherwise
extended in accordance with certain clauses or terminated in
accordance with the provisions of the REPPA. Upon expiry of the
Term or the earlier termination of the REPPA, TNB shall have the
right to disconnect the TNB Interconnection Facility from the
Facility.

The financial asset arising from the REPPA, which represents
the fair value of the consideration receivable for the preliminary
services delivered, amounted to RM188,579,000 (2022:
RM194,878,000) as at 31 March 2023, and is included as assets
classified as held for sales as disclosed in Note 16. Such receivable
is settled over the Term of the REPPA. Since BGMC Bras Power’s
entitlement is to receive the energy payments resulted from
construction work provided as well as the operation and
maintenance of the Facility upon commercial operation date
as defined under the REPPA, the related contract asset was
discounted over the Term using a rate of return specific to the
Facility to give a constant periodic rate of return on the financial
asset in each period. The imputed interest income recognised
during the Year amounted to RM10,292,000 (2022: RM4,962,000).

Revenue from supply of electricity of RM5,078,000 (2022: Nil) is
recognised when the electricity is generated and transmitted.

BGMC International Limited

8. W&
(#&)

BHHRBARD HBER

(d) 4FEFiH WA (&)

0]

201843 A27H * BGMC Bras Power
EATNBE] SZREPPA » JARRET ~ 224 -

A - CEREERGRE N RBEER
m(f%ﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁ %E%m%ﬁxﬁ

DR i)ﬁ’A%XﬁaﬁiﬂJll
ﬁﬂTNBiE&%U %j\(’z’f)ﬁb%ﬁﬂ%b//\ °
UNREPPAFTEL * BGMC Bras Power % ]
TNB ! & K& TNB # B BGMC Bras Power
BERZRMEENFHRLEEE I
M TNBE X AR E & ([ NP I E1H
Bl o

REPPA K HABR 7% B 3 AKX REPPAFT &L %
G ([ R GH D BT F([EF
) - SR ERK IRIGH B BREE
FE2VEBEFE BRI BER(21EZ
H) ' BRIFARIEREPPAE T 53T B sk
RIBHZARTELIERIE R o e
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Z R e TNB B 2R i o

WM FE 16 TR B8 - REPPAFTE £ 1Y
CRLE ER Y LTI R E
WHREMHRFE - 1202393 A31
H % 188,579,000 #& & #F (2022 F
194,878 000 EHF) + Bt AN R
FIEHEMEE - BABKFKER
REPPAZ SFBRIANAE)E © HABGMC Bras
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ME2IEEREEMELETE - HEE
H B ERFEIRE AR MM E B
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e M RRME

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. Uz5 - 1S BB A R 2 B & H

and Segmental Information (continued) (#&)

(e) Segmentinformation (e) DEHER
Information reported to the Executive Director of the Company, being HERDEEDESBRBTHENHELZ TR
the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of resource NAITES (AT ELERETE)NER
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types EZEMEHORSESNE - W ARNEBEHAE
of services provided. This is the basis which the Group is organised. HyELZE -
Specifically, the Group's operating and reportable segments under HEmMS - K’il@}ﬁlﬁf"%ﬁ?}q&#&%ﬁﬁ Bl
IFRS 8 "Operating Segments” are as follows: EeR BN MIE S WL RAIMED

E‘B%ﬁﬁ‘]ﬁﬂ? :

BFREE - RHEBTEBEET

(i) Building and structures — provision of construction services in

building and structural construction works; T2 ERTS

(i)  Energy infrastructure — provision of construction services in (i) BERERE—IRHEEREX OB TR
energy transmission and distribution works; MR

(i) Mechanical and electrical — provision of construction services in (i) MmN EF — RN E R
mechanical and electrical installation works; and BEERE : &

(iv) Earthworks and infrastructure — provision of construction vy TAREE-RELFTIEREET
services in earthworks and infrastructure construction works. FRIBEPRTE -

In addition to the above reportable segments, the Group has certain br EiATsE DN AREDEETE

operating segments (including supply and installation of elevators) EIPI(BIEFH PR A e N 28 )W R =

that do not meet any of the quantitative thresholds for determining IEEANRED BTN LRER - %

reportable segments. These operating segments are grouped under EREDHECBENEMIDET o

"Others” segment.
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e MR RME

8. Revenue, Income from Concession Agreements 8. Uz5 - 1S BB A R 2 & H

and Segmental Information (continued) (#&)
Geographical information IR E R
No geographical segment information is presented as the Group's revenue HRAEERE2HREERAZEREES
is all derived from Malaysia based on the location of trading and services KIRFEEZ b By - I 2 51| I8 5 B E R} -
delivered and the Group's non-current assets are located in Malaysia by MAEBIERDEENNERAI(RIEEERN
physical location of assets. ERALE)
Information about major customers EBXEEFHNESR
Revenue from customers individually contributing over 10% of the total AR FEBEAEE S ELSERWE
revenue from continuing operations of the Group during the Year/period HEE10%A LR Pz T
are as follows:
Period from
1 October 2020
Year ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
20204
BZ2023F 10A1BZ
3A31H 2022%F
LHEE 3H31HHAfE
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE R
Customer Z (a) BFZ6) N/A* 87,400
TiE A
Customer Y (a) ZFY (@) 63,781 67,000
Customer X (a) BFX(a) N/A* 46,525
B A
Customer W (a) ZBEW(a) 21,820 41328
@@  These customers are from the building and structure segment. @ ZERFPHRAEFREEST -
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue from * HRENRTEERERRELEXBRELEY

continuing operations of the Group. T0%LA L
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AR RMET
9. OtherIncome 9. HfblgA

Period from
1 October 2020
Year ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2020%F
B £20235 108182
3A31H 20226
IEFE 3831 B HAfE
RM’000 RM'000
THEE FhER
Bank interest income RITFBEYA 548 1,107
Extra work other than the contract & #INIREIN T 2 - 11
Rental income He A 26 34
Gains on extinguishment of debts (Note 29) TEEEBWE (AiE29) 160 46,114
Others Hib 706 3,812
1,440 51,078

Representing: TAE A ¢
Continuing operations SEICE T 1,220 50,742
Discontinued operations (Note 16) BRI E T (it 16) 220 336
1,440 51,078

10. Impairment Losses of Financial Assets and Contract

Assets, Net and Other Gains, Net

(a) Impairment losses of financial assets and contract assets,

& H A 2 F 88

10. EMEERSNEEZREBEF

(a) TREERSNEEZREREFHE

net
Period from
1 October 2020
Year ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2020%F
HZE20235F 108182
3A31H 20224
LHFEE 3831 H HifE
RM’000 RM'000
FHEE RN
Impairment losses/(reversal of T SIERERSIE
impairment loss) on: OREEERRE)
Trade and retention receivables (Note 24) Z 5 NMRE S ERFE
(Ki7324) (2,225) 6,584
Other receivables (Note 24) H b & W RRIE (A5 24) 4,482 2,342
Contract assets (Note 25) BHEEME25) 4,461 4,860
6,718 13,786
Written-off: ey
Trade and retention receivables B 5 NRE© ERGIE 130 -
Contract assets ANEE 54 -
Deposit & 45 -
229 -
6,947 13,786
Representing: T3 &I -
Continuing operations FHEIRE T 6,947 13,786
F£R 2023 FEFIEBRZERBRAF 157
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e MR RME

10. Impairment Losses of Financial Assets and Contract 10. 2RI EER SN EE 2 REFETF

Assets, Net and Other Gains, Net (continued) R HAM WS FRE(E)
(b) Other gains, net (b) EftaFER
Period from
1 October 2020
Year ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
20204
BZ2023F 10A18BZE
3A31H 20224
LHFE 3831 BHEM
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Realised loss on foreign exchange EEBRINERR (34) (145)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - ME M RiE 2 E1E (2,992) (8,173)
Reversal of impairment loss of property, W - BE MR EREBERE

plant and equipment (Note 18) (Hfa£18) 4,140 6,916
Reversal of impairment loss of right-of-use assets  { FR#E & B RUBE RSB B[ (f/51719)

(Note 19) - 6,950
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange AREHIRINE BB (10) (178)
Fair value loss on investment properties EYE 2 N EEE (K 220)

(Note 20) (1,442) -
Reversal of provision of performance bonds JE VR LB AR L B (M1 22 28(c))

(Note 28(d)) 25,797 -
Compensation paid EfmES (1,980) -

23,479 5370

Representing: ToIEIEG ¢
Continuing operations FHEICE T 25,476 5370
Discontinued operation (Note 16) BRI E TS (Mt 16) (1,997) -
23,479 5,370
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mEMBHmRME
11. Finance Costs 1. MERA
Period from
1 October 2020
Year ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2020%F
B £20235F 10818&
3A31H 20224F
HFE 3A31 A HAR
RM’'000 RM'000
FHEF FER
Interest on: ATNBIERE -
Borrowings BE 2,272 12,928
Lease liabilities (Note 19) HEaEHT19) 1,068 1,804
Redeemable secured loan stocks AERNERAERES 535 -
3,875 14,732
Representing: IR
Continuing operations SEISEETS 1,077 3,887
Discontinued operations (Note 16) BRI R (Mt 16) 2,798 10,845
3,875 14,732
12. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) 12. FiSHipx(ER)
Period from
1 October 2020
Year ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2020%F
B E20235F 10818&
3A31H 20224F
LHFE 3831 BHE
RM’'000 RM'000
FHESF FrER
Malaysia Corporate Income Tax: SRPER R AT
Current Year/period REFE HARE 570 3,569
Over-provision in prior years BT FERRERE (127) (1,971)
443 1,598
Deferred tax under discontinued operations B RS ER 2 RERIR
Current Year/period AEE PR 987 1,280
1,430 2,878
Representing: THIFIE ¢
Continuing operations SECE TS 489 (2427)
Discontinued operations (Note 16) BRI E RSt 16) 941 5,299
1,430 2,878
Fi8 2023 HEREBRZERERDR 159
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e MR RME

12. FiSBiBx, (KR) (&)

FEBRRBEABRITENFREERE
ZBBIATER (B18) 2 BIEk

12. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) (continued)

Reconciliation between income tax and profit/(loss) before tax
from continuing operations at the applicable tax rate:

ARRAJREKE DB R RIAE BB ENE
AR R ENRFEEEEB 2 RBATET, (8
18)ERRIER X IR B R R R ENHRIER X
FBRRINT

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before tax from
continuing operations using the applicable rates for the regions in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

Period from
1 October 2020
Year ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2020%F
BZ2023F 10A1BZE
3A31H 2022
ILFE 34318 8
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE S
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations REBBELEEELKY
BREADE R, (E518) 7,286 (47,110)
Statutory tax rate in Malaysia S RFE TR KR e R 24% 24%
Tax at applicable statutory tax rate RERAEREEMNTIIE 2,152 (11,306)
Tax effects of; T EIENHIBTZE
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR A 9,030 62,502
Income not taxable for tax purposes BERBAIBA (11,446) (28,829)
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised R BAEAREROTIIERE (90) (17,918)
Tax losses not recognised KRR IEEE 4,343 1,482
Other temporary differences HEMEREER (3,791) (6.372)
Overprovision of estimate BT FE MRS B
tax expense in prior years (81) (1,971)
Others Hith 372 ©)
489 (2,421)

Malaysia corporate income tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate on the
estimated assessable profits for each of the assessable year.
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12. Income Tax Expense/(Credit) (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unabsorbed
capital allowances can be utilised. As at 31 March 2023, the estimated
amounts of unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other
deductible temporary differences arising from contract assets for which
deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the consolidated financial
statements due to uncertainty of its realisation, are as follows:

e M RRME

12. FiSBiBx, (KR) (&)

TER R FE R B 1R 7] BE & 1F 12 LA S5 AT F0 7%
TRERE  ADBARESERRARMNE LR
EMBERT  SRAANHIMERERE - KT
BHEEBRARNE RN RBEERELERE
BEE - 202338318  HEREIERIBEE
B REEME I R B INER A BT S TR R FE IR AL FL
HEEMRSBMERIE ARAEAETHEE
MENEEEEMEM A IR E R ZEA T
SR :

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

#2023F 20224

3A31H 3A31H

RM’'000 RM'000

FHER TMHER

Unused tax losses REVAMIAERE 163,904 146,183
Unabsorbed capital allowances RN E R BHEE 21,146 21,360
Contract assets BHIEE 2,113 17,710
187,163 185,253

The unused tax losses, unabsorbed capital allowances and other deductible
temporary differences arising from contract assets are available for offset
against future chargeable profits.

Under the Malaysia Finance Act 2018 which was gazetted on 27 December
2018, the unused tax losses of subsidiaries incorporated in Malaysia
amounting to approximately RM163,904,000 (2022: RM146,183,000) as
at 31 March 2023 will be imposed with a time limit of utilisation. Any
accumulated unused tax losses brought forward from year of assessment
2023 can be carried forward for another 10 consecutive years of assessment
(i.e. from year of assessments 2024 to 2033).

REPPHBEEE ARAELARHENANE
EFESME MR N TR ZE A BAEHER
KIERBLRF)

R 201848 12 527 A FIFEHC2018F FH 2R P 30
BIHCEZR) - RS RAE R MR B E A 7Y
KBRS E 1B R 202393 A31 H A163,904,000
R F (20224 © 146,183,000 E ) » 515
INENAMRET o 20235 R FE AR R E R
ARG AB BB BARESE HENHEE
(BNE2024F E2033F PR FE) ©
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e MR RME

13. REFERKEXB 2 BRBIANETR,
(E1R)

13. Profit/(Loss) before Tax from Continuing Operations

REFBELEEB2BHAEN, (BR) @
BB GT AR T EEESH

Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations has been arrived after
charging/(crediting):

Period from
1 October 2020
Year ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2020%F
BZ2023F 10A1BE
38318 20224
ILFE 38318 #f
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TMHER
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 23) M A EEE (M i123) 278 2314
Auditor's remuneration ZE BN
Audit services EZRH 561 799
Non-audit services IEEIZRTS 1 -
Cost of sales and services HE MRS ACAN 105,766 335,886
Depreciation charge of: THFENERY -
Property, plant and equipment (Note 18) M - R NGRE (AL T8) 54 87
Right-of-use assets (Note 19) CREEEME19) 289 658
Reversal of impairment loss of property, Y% - BEMERERESERD
plant and equipment (4,140) (6,916)
Reversal of impairment loss of right-of-use assets FRREEEREEERD - (6,950)
Legal and professional fees FEREEEA 1,056 6,507
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 16) HEWBEATIMEIE(Hit16) - 25,684
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BE K&EEE 2,992 8,173
Reversal of provision of performance bond JB #15R 1ok P8 B [ (25,797) -
Fair value loss on investment properties (Note 20) WEWEZ AN THERE (M 20) 1,442 -
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments BINAN(BIEESHE)
~ Wages and salaries —IEKES 9,496 16,156
— Employees Provident Fund —(EERESD 1,081 2,270
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e M RRME

14. B BETHAEREEME

14. Directors’, Chief Executive’ and Employee’s

Remuneration
The emoluments of each director were as follows: BEEMEWT
Year ended 31 March 2023 BZE2023F3A31HILFE
Basic salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors’  and benefits Bonus  contribution
fees inkind (Note ) plan Total
EXHH - RE
)\iﬁﬁ'& ?EI%I 1/\T\}\—|-§J
EEHe ENER (Hizta) R @t
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
THER THER FHEHR THER THER
Executive Directors HITES
Dato' Teh Kok Lee (Note (b)) SBEEIR(Hitn) 132 316 = 38 486
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (Note (g)) BB BTEE W Hy) 2 = - - 2
Kua Choh Leang T8 102 - - - 102
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (Note(e) £ &Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman(#32(e)) 120 - - - 120
Datuk Kang Hua Keong (Note (h)) SETER(MHM) 74 - - - 74
298 - - - 298
430 316 - 38 784
Period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 2020F10H1H £2022F3 831 HHIE
Basic salaries, Contribution
allowances to defined
Directors’  and benefits Bonus  contribution
fees in kind (Note a) plan Total
EAREH £
E2E TEAL eI
ik B (Hizta) igliae A @it
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Thak Thak THhak THak THER
Executive Directors HITES
Dato' Teh Kok Lee (Note b) SBEER(Hzn) 66 435 - 52 553
Dato’ Mohd Arifin bin Mohd Arif (Note (f) AﬂMohd Avrifin Bin Mohd Arif (A72219) - bEl 85 39 355
Ching Hong Seng (Note (c)) RS (M) 30 103 - 12 145
9 769 85 103 1,053
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Tan Sri Dato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha (Note (g)) RHESBNETEE W) 144 - - - 144
Chan May May (Note (d) BREX(HH0) 2 - - - 2
Kua Choh Leang i 144 - - - 144
Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (Note ()~ £ Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman (#7it(e)) 178 - - - 178
468 - - - 468
564 769 85 103 1,521
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14. Directors’, Chief Executive’ and Employee’s

Remuneration (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Bonus are determined based on the results of the Group and/or performance of
directors.

(b)  Dato’ Teh Kok Lee is the chief executive officer of the Group, and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as the chief executive
officer.

(0 Ching Hong Seng was appointed on 16 July 2020 and retired on 31 March 2021.

(d)  Chan May May resigned on 7 October 2020.

(e)  Datuk Kamalul Arifin Bin Othman was appointed on 7 October 2020.

(] Dato’ Mohd Arifin bin Mohd Arif resigned on 30 August 2021.

(90 Tan SriDato’ Seri Kong Cho Ha resigned on 8 April 2022.

(h)  Datuk Kang Hua Keong was appointed on 24 June 2022

The executive directors’ emoluments shown were mainly for their services

in connection with the management of the affairs of the Group and the

Company. The non-executive directors’ emoluments were for their services
as directors of the Company.

Employees

The five (2022: five) highest paid employees of the Group during the Year

included one (2022: one) existing director, details of whose emoluments
are set out above. Details of the emoluments of the remaining four (2022:
four) highest paid employees who are neither an existing director nor chief
executive of the Company for the Year and for the period from 1 October

2020 to 31 March 2022 are as follows:

14. 5 - BaTHAEREEME
(48)
Hiat -
() JEALTRIBASEBEMNEEN  SEEREET -

b) EZEBENARAEETHRER  WMELXPIRE
S B REEETRERNRREHREOMSE

(© BREMN20209F7 16 AEREI 7202143 A31H
RIT -

d)  BREZER2020F10A7BEBHE »

()  ZEKamalul Arifin Bin Othmani20205F10 A7 B EZ
£

f)  E B Mohd Arifin Bin Mohd Arif %2021 48 A 30 B &t
ffo

(@ FHIESEHRETIEER2022F4A8AEHE -

(h EETEBR202F6A4BEERT -

HITESTH I EZZRESREHAREER
SERARREHNRGHAEME - FERTE
BZHFNIRREER/RARRESAIRHERS
ZF1SH o

1=

REERAFERNASRQ02F « AR &=
RS B —2(0200nF  —R)BIEE  H
BB N L3 o BT (20224 « HF)
EoHES (WIFARAFRIEEETSIETH
AB)ARFE KH2020F 10418 E 202293 431
HHME /BT

Period from

Year 1 October 2020

ended to

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

2020%F

HZE20235F 10818%

38318 20224

ILFE 3831 BHARE

RM’'000 RM'000

FHER THER

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind EARFE - 2R R EYEF 1,218 1,570
Contribution to defined contribution plan REHIETEIR R 146 187
1,364 1,757
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AR RMET
14. Directors’, Chief Executive’ and Employee’s 14. 25 - B {THAEREE#H S
Remuneration (continued) (#8)
Employees (continued) EE (&)
The emoluments fell within the following band: e BN A T & E
Period from
Year 1 October 2020
ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
20204
B=E 10A1BE
2023%F3H31H 20224F
IEFE 38318 HifE
Number of individuals
AEL
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (RM536,000) 251,000,000/ 7T (536,000 2 45 ) 4 4

15

16

During both financial Year/period, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during both financial Year/
period.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend any dividends payment in respect of the
current reporting period (2022: Nil).

Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets
Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale

KAS Engineering

The Group completed the disposal of the entire issued share capital of
KAS Engineering during the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March
2022. KAS Engineering was engaged in concession with the government
of Malaysia for the construction of a university building, and building
maintenance service provider for the said university building which
represented a reportable and operating segment, namely the “concession
and maintenance” prior to the disposal.

BGMC Bras Power

On 24 March 2022, BGMC Corporation entered into a DoA with reNIKOLA,
pursuant to which reNIKOLA will acquire the interest in 95% ordinary shares
in BGMC Bras Power. The details are set out in the Note 4(b).

15

16

7555 B R 52 W 8 B IBCER R, R Pl P B8 48 o £
EXNARRSHFMALTNHEAERIA
FMAREE RO R IBERIMEE - BIEES
KA RE R HRE RS o

IR

EETER
&)

2 AR HAR SHE AT B (20224 -

CRIEEEXBRIBRFFELE
ZIRBEE ROFAFELE
ZEEEEBEECAE

KAS Engineering

ANEER 2020510818 220223 A31 A HAR
SEAK H & KAS Engineering B9 2 282 B 1T JE AN
KAS Engineering ¢ =5 82 5 2R 78 2 IR T B B 2 35
—RABREFHNETLE  ZAEBEFHE
FEHEREHERRNDER A RERLEED
B BIASArs S R Mt s -

BGMC Bras Power

* BGMC Corporation £
1 1 reNIKOLA 5 Ui B8
MlRER o FEIBER

MR 202 %3 8 24H
reNIKOLART 3 ZZ HE 22 ¥ -
BGMC Bras Power&J95% &
Bf7E4(b)
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16. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets

Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale

(continued)

All the operations disclosed above are classified as discontinued operations
for the Year and the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 and their

results are as follows:

16. ERILEEXER R D BABELE

ZIERBEE RO RIFHEHE
ZEEEEBABEZERE(E)

ENHEERNMAEEE S EAARFE N2020F
10A1BZE2022F3 A3 BHBMN D KR IEKEE

o HEEWT

Period from
Year 1 October 2020
ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
20206
S I RR=ES
2023%F3H31H 2022
ILFE 34318 8/
Note RM’'000 RM'000
BtEE FHER FRESR
Profit of KAS Engineering KAS Engineering 89 ] @) = 16,242
Loss on disposal of KAS Engineering & KAS Engineering 518 (@) - (25,684)
Profit/(loss) of BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Powerf 93, (E518) (b) 4,462 (5,168)
Profit/(loss) for the Year/period from REE HRERE DRI E
discontinued operations ZmH S (EE) 4,462 (14,610)
Profit/(loss) for the Year/period from FEAEARFE,HIRRE B AR LG
discontinued operations attributable to: ER2RRN(BE) 2 AL
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE 7 =N 4,318 (14,352)
Non-controlling interests FEIERAE R 144 (258)
4,462 (14,610)
The assets and liabilities directly associated with the assets classified as held R2022F3A31H K2023F3 4318 - A5 A

for sale as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 are as follows:

FEREEERZIAH El’\JiéfE&E%ZZD—F :

As at 31 As at 31
March March
2023 2022
720234 20224
3A31H 3A31H
Note RM’000 RM'000
hEss FHER FHRE
Assets classified as held-for-sale PTHABEHEZEE
BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Power (b) 213,932 212,396
Liabilities directly associated with HEABEABEHEZERBERE
non-current assets held-for-sale BHEHERENERE
BGMC Bras Power BGMC Bras Power (b) 104,839 124,803
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e M RRME

16. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets 16. DR II REEXR R S EAIZELE
Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly ZHERBEE HoEABEHE

Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale LEEEENEHBoEE(E)
(continued)
(a) KAS Engineering (a) KASEngineering
(i) Results of KAS Engineering (i) KASEngineeringfy3¥4&
Profit for the period from 1 October 2020 to 11 June 2021 (date 2K B KAS Engineering B £% | F 48 & 2 75
of disposal) from the discontinued operation of KAS Engineering 2020 10 A1 H&E2021F6 A 11 H
is analysed as follows: (HEBH)BEAENITAT
Period from
1 October 2020
to
11 June 2021
(date of
disposal)
B2020F
R ES
20214
6H11H
(HERH)HIM
RM'000
TMHE R
Revenue Wz 7,841
Cost of sales SHERA (4472)
Gross profit E7H 3,369
Income from concession agreements LSRRI ON 27,262
Other income HABA 336
Administrative expenses TR (2994)
Profit from operations Fegepeny il 27973
Finance costs BERKAR (6/452)
Profit before tax BRA A 21,521
Income tax expense FTSTiF = (5279)
Profit for the period LG hey 16,242
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16. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets 16. DR II REER R > EAIZELE
Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly ZHERBEE HoEABEHE

Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale ZEEHEEZEE2EE(E)
(continued)
(@) KAS Engineering (continued) (a) KAS Engineering(#&)
(i) Results of KAS Engineering (continued) (i) KASEngineeringfy3¥4& (/&)
Profit for the period from 1 October 2020 to 11 June 2021 (date KRB KAS Engineering B #% | F 48 & 5 75
of disposal) from the discontinued operation of KAS Engineering 2020 10 A1 H&E2021F6 A 11 H
has been arrived at after charging: (HEBE)BREMRMEHRIATS
TRIBED -
Period from
1 October 2020
to
11 June 2021
(date of
disposal)
H20206F
1A1RE
20214F
6H11H
(& B H) HAfE
RM'000
FRE SR
Depreciation charge of: THSIBTERE ¢
Right-of-use assets EREEE 105
(i) Cash flows from KAS Engineering (i) ZREKASEngineeringfi IR &R E
For the period from 1 October 2020 to 11 June 2021 2020108 1H £20215F6 511 B HIR RM'000
(date of disposal) (HEBH) FHRER
Net cash generated from operating activities KR ATSIR SR 19,005
Net cash generated from investing activities KEEEFEREFH 2,010
Net cash used in financing activities & R FTRIR & F5E (22,972)
Net cash outflows e ML FEE (1,957)
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e M RRME

16. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets 16. DR I REER R S EARBELE
Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly ZHERBEE HoEABEHE
ZEEHEZBBE2EE(E)

Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale

(continued)
(@) KAS Engineering (continued) (a) KASEngineering (&)

(iii) Effect of disposal on the consolidated financial position of
the Group

(i) HEHFKEGESMBRRNTE

The following are the assets and liabilities in respect of the

AR AR 202146 A 11 B H H &EKAS

disposal of KAS Engineering on 11 June 2021 Engineering BRI EEF B &

RM'000
FRES
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KR 54
Intangible assets B EE 7,130
Right-of-use assets EREEE 97
Trade and other receivables E 5 K H Ab EW IR 287,277
Tax recoverable AT eI B IR 614
Fixed deposit TE B 16,300
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEBY 5127
Trade and other payables E 5 R EAMER IR (5272)
Lease liabilities HEBE (82)
Borrowing — secured BE-BE&A (164,926)
Deferred tax liabilities EETIBEE (15,698)
Net assets of KAS Engineering disposed of B HEHIKAS Engineering/F & & 130,621
Remeasurement loss on disposal of KAS Engineering & KAS Engineering M E #1712 &8 (11,150
119471
Less: Cash consideration received, less transaction cost paid 3 : IR SR B (FIBRENZ HEAR) (93,787)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 13) HENEARMEERHZ13) 25,684
Cash consideration received, less transaction cost paid B YIRS RE(HBRE R HAA) 93,787
Less: Cash and bank balances disposed of B BEERE RRITES (5,127)
Net cash inflow from disposal HEEERFRSTA 88,660

FE3R 2023
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16. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets 16. DR II REER R > EAIZELE

Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly ZERBEE HoBABELE
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale ZEEHEHEBzZEE(E)
(continued)

(b) BGMC Bras Power

(i

170 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

Results of BGMC Bras Power

(b) BGMC Bras Power

(i) BGMC Bras PowerHy %4

Profit/(loss) for the Year and the period from 1 October 2020 to 2R B BGMC Bras PowerEl #% | F 48 & 3575
31 March 2022 from the discontinued operation of BGMC Bras RAFEE N 2020510 A1HZE2022F
Power is analysed as follows: 3A3 T BEIEM ST, (EBE) 2 Hrn
T~

Period from

Year 1 October 2020

ended to

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

20204F

HZE20235F 10A1EE

3A31H 20224

ILFE 3431 BHEARS

Note RM’'000 RM'000

gz FHES FHRE R

Revenue st 8(d) 5,078 71,077
Cost of sales SHEMA (4,071) (77,286)
Gross profit/(loss) EF(E18) 1,007 (6,209)

Income from concession agreements  $FEFiZ A 8(d) 10,292 4,962

Other income =N 220 2,594
Administrative expenses TR X (1,321) (2,102)

Other losses, net HE g8 558 10(b) (1,997) -
Profit/(loss) from operations REKE ZEF, (EE) 8,201 (755)

Finance costs BMEKK 11 (2,798) (4,393)

Profit/(loss) before tax B ADEF, (BE) 5,403 (5,148)

Income tax expense FriSfif s 12 (941) (20)

Profit/(loss) for the Year/period NEE HRRF,(EE) 4,462 (5,168)
Profit/(loss) for the Year and the period from 1 October 2020 to K B BGMC Bras Power B 4% | 484 2E 75
31 March 2022 from the discontinued operation of BGMC Bras RANEE 2020107 1B E20224F3
Power has been arrived at after charging: A31BERRET) (E58) EHIER A

THEIREES

Period from

Year 1 October 2020

ended to

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

2020%F

BZ2023F Oz RR=ES

3831H 2022%F

ILFE 38318 8/

RM’000 RM'000

FHEH FHRESR

Auditor's remuneration Z AN & 70 11

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 783 1,962

BGMC International Limited



16. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale

(continued)

(b) BGMC Bras Power (continued)

(ii)

Assets and liabilities associated with BGMC Bras Power
and classified as held-for-sale as at 31 March 2022 and 31

March 2023

For presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2023, the amounts due to Group
amounting to approximately RM18,403,000 (2022: amounts due
from the Group amounting to approximately RM211,000) have
been excluded from the total assets associated with BGMC Bras

Power classified as held-for-sale.

e M RRME

16. CRILEEXR R D BABELE

ZIERBEE RO RIFHEHE
ZEEEEBABEZERE(E)

(b) BGMC Bras Power (£&)

(ii)

EIBGMC Bras Powert8 B8t 7420225
38318 %202353A318 0 EAF
EHENEERERE

AE2MEE2023F3IANEHNES
FHMRRE  BNAEEREY
18,403,000 5 55 (20224F : FEUANEE
B FRIEXI211,000MF ) B B E1BGMC
Bras Power B8 W 5 A EHE R

AETME -

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
20235 W20224F
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHEE FhER
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15,346 16,129
Contract assets BHEE 188,579 194,878
Trade receivables B 5 W FRIA 4,273 1,212
Tax recoverable AT EF IR 52 -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FANTFRIE « 1% 4 & H e 0B 664 123
Amounts due from the Group e A £2 B 3R IE = 211
Cash and cash equivalents Re KASEEY 5,018 54
Total assets associated with BGMC Bras EBGMC Bras PowerifBE i £ 58
Power classified as held-for-sale ABEHENREE 213,932 212,607
Less: Amounts due from the Group W RN S ERIR - 211)
Assets associated with BGMC Bras Power  EEBGMC Bras PowerH B8 £ 38
classified as held-for-sale BEEHENEE 213,932 212,396
Amount due to Group JERT AR &R [ 5RIR 18,403 -
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMERFIE 27,424 35271
Borrowings — secured BE-BEA 60,397 72,440
Deferred tax liabilities EEMRIBAE 987 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 16,031 17,092
Total liabilities associated with BGMC Bras EZBGMC Bras Power B33 2 38
Power classified as held-for-sale ABEHENRERE 123,242 124,303
Less: Amounts due to the Group B FER AR BFUE (18,403) -
Liabilities associated with BGMC Bras EBGMC Bras Powerif B8 5 58
Power classified as held-for - sale BEEHENERS 104,839 124,803
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16. Discontinued Operations and Non-Current Assets
Classified as Held-For-Sale/Liabilities Directly
Associated with Assets Classified as Held for Sale
(continued)

(b) BGMC Bras Power (continued)

(iii) Cash flows from BGMC Bras Power

16. ERILEEXER R D BABELE
ZIERBEE BOBRFEHE
ZEEEEBABEZEE(R)

(b) BGMC Bras Power (#&)

(iii) X BBGMC Bras PowerfJIR &R E

Period from
Year 1 October 2020
ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
20206
BZ2023F 10A1BZE
3A31H 2022
ILFE 34318 8/
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRESR
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating ~ £&R&5EENATS, (P )IREIF5E
activities 3,828 (64,025)
Net cash generated from financing activities BB EEEIR e FE 1,136 63,960
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BERA (R F5E 4,964 (65)

17. Earnings/(Loss) per Share
(a) From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic earnings/(loss) per share
The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the Year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately RM11,878,000 (2022:
loss of RM56,542,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,800,000,000 (2022: 1,800,000,000) in issue during the Year.
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
There is no diluted earnings/(loss) per share in 2023 and 2022 as

there was no potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting
period.
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17. BREF/(F8)
(a) REFARCKRILEEXRK
SREART, (5R)

RARIHEEANEBLHERELRETN, (B
B)RETE HERKNRRIHE NEEAF
&35 F 49 11,878,000 F 4 (20224F + 18
56,542,000 F ) R AN FEE BTEB
fi% 0 % S 15 £71,800,000,000 A% ( 2022 £F -
1,800,000,0000%) °

SREERF,(FE)
R2023FE RN FHETREERT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. Earnings/(Loss) Per Share (continued)

(b) From continuing operations

()

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share from continuing
operations attributable to owners of the Company is based on
the profit for the Year from continuing operations attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately RM7,560,000 (2022: loss of
RM42,190,000) and the denominator used is the same as that detailed
above for basic earnings/(loss) per share.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

There is no diluted earnings/(loss) per share in 2023 and 2022 as
there was no potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting
period.

From discontinued operations
Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings per share from the discontinued operation is RM0.24
sen per share (2022: loss of RM0.80 sen per share), based on the
profit for the Year from discontinued operations attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately RM4,318,000 (2022: loss
of RM14,352,000) and the denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
There is no diluted earnings/(loss) per share in 2023 and 2022 as

there was no potential dilutive shares during the respective reporting
period.

e M RRME

17. BRBR/(&8) (&)

(b) REFEAKEXY

(c)

BREARF, (HE)

AAREBABEREBELCEELZ
BREXRRBF(BE)MFTEHERAK
NEEEANEBEREFERLEEB 2R
F 2 3 F 497,560,000 8 & #F (20224F &
1842,190,0004R & 15 ) W {5 A EA G AR AR &
F(EE)BRNS T (FFER LX) E

st
H o
>t

SREBERF(BE)

20234 2022 E M E TR EER T,
(E518) - REARBBSRES AR ES
ATEEERR (D ©

RESKRIEREXER
BREARRF,(HER)

REDRIEEEERNTREARF AT
fE0.24 M2 455 (20225 + B PXETIB0.804K
HFED)  ERARBHEAAEERAED
R AR BT Y NG 508 A1 494,318,0004K
F 45 (20229 © E51814,352,0000F 45) I {E
AEGRERREEAT(EB)HRM
PEFEREOFE -

SREBERF,(FE)
R2023F K200 FHESRBERR

(B18) - REARNERMmS NEGEE
AIESEAD ©

FE3R 2023
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e RRME
18. Property, Plant and Equipment 18. Y1% - BEREE
Machinery
Furniture Computers and site Motor Office
andfittings  and software equipment vehicles equipment Total
HHR
BEREE  EMREH BHRE RE BRERE @t
RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM000
THEE  THER THEE THER THEE TR
Cost A
At 1 October 2020 R20206 10418 180 1457 23302 941 139 26019
Transfer from right-of-use assets EREFRELE - - 11692 692 - 12384
Disposals e (34) 23) (7,107) (1,090) - (8.254)
At31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R00EIANAR
0254718 146 1434 27,887 543 139 30,149
Addition hE - 25 - - - 25
Disposals HE - () (7583) (344) - (7932)
At 31 March 2023 1202335310 146 1,454 20,304 199 139 22,242
Accumulated depreciation ZEiE
At 1 October 2020 1202010418 72 1446 9,081 939 25 11,563
Transfer from right-of-use assets EREFRELSE - - 7342 620 - 7962
Additions NE 24 1 - - 52 87
Disposals e (33) (23) (190) (1,016) - (1.262)
At31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R00FIA3NAR
02F471R 63 1434 16,233 543 77 18350
Additions NE 15 25 - - 14 54
Disposals e - () (3:443) (344) - (3792)
At31March 2023 1202334318 78 1,454 12,790 199 91 14,612
Accumulated impairment losses ZitRERE
At 1 October 2020 202010718 - - 14221 - - 14221
Transfer from ROU kil - - 4349 - - 4349
Disposals e - - (6916) - - (6916)
At31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 R00EIANAR
2020%F4R18 - - 11,654 - - 11,654
Disposals ik - - (4,140) - - (4,140)
At 31 March 2023 1202334310 = = 7,514 - = 7,514
Carrying values REE
At 31 March 2023 1202335310 68 = - - 48 116
At31 March 2022 R202%3A31H 8 - - - 62 145

During the Year, certain machinery and equipment have been disposed
of and a reversal of impairment loss of approximately RM4,140,000 (2022:

RM6,916,000) (Note 10(b)) was recognised in other gains, net.

BGMC International Limited

RAFE  BETHRRREETFTEE - BEES
18 1 [B] £94,140,0007 F 45 (20224 : 6,916,000k
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19. Right-Of-Use Assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

19. EHEEE

Disclosures of lease-related items: THERRAIE B A5 -
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
#2023F 20224F
3A31H 3A31H
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER TMHER
Right-of-use assets HREEE
Land and buildings T RiEF 179 210
Motor vehicles RE 13 69
192 279
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash BEAEEEEAERURRE
flows, of the Group's lease liabilities is as follows: REERRETIOT
Less than 1 year —F LR 235 341
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 36 180
271 521
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE
Land and buildings T RiEF 1,016 2,520
Motor vehicles RE 56 205
1,072 2,725
Less: depreciation from discontinued operation W BRI EER 2 ITE (783) (2,067)
289 658
Lease interests (Note 11) MENS(MaE11) 1,068 1,804
Expenses related to short-term leases A EMRRER Y = 961
Total cash outflow for leases HERS ML 2,510 7,023
Disposal of right-of-use assets HEFRESE - 7,390
Reversal of impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERERR(HF100b)
(Note 10(b)) - (6,950)
The Group leases various land and buildings, machinery and site equipment REEM AT RETF - s RIGHERE

and motor vehicles. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed periods
of 1 to 4 years (2022: 1 to 4 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and the leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

During the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022, the disposal
of machinery and equipment resulted in a reversal of impairment of
approximately RM6,950,000 which was recognised in other gains, net.

G e

P K 7%

FE3R 2023

KRB - HERZBE A 24F M EEHR
(2022 - 124%F) - HE]
& WeEEE TEERR
EHE TR

AR T 0% (Il 2 R

it - HEHHL

BHEEETSREERTY

202010 A1 B E202253 A3 1A - HE
58 B 3% 3] ol {5 496,950,000 K 75 4 -
BREMIEEFREPER
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19. Right-Of-Use Assets (continued)

During the Year, the Group and the respective lessors entered into renewal
lease agreements for the same office premises. The original lease terms
remained unchanged. An additional right-of-use asset of RM202,000 was
recognised.

In addition, the lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interest in the leased assets that are held by the lessor of the
relevant leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

19. EAEEE (&)

RAFE  AEBESHAARE—HAE
RV ERRE o RAHGERSTE - BHERR
B FRREEE 202,000/ 45 -

IS - FRE AW E IR R (R THESR
EHBEARENEBHEHEEEMNERED) - B
EEETSRAFERMERSD -

20. Investment Properties 20. BREYXE

Investment

properties

under Investment

construction properties Total
ERREME REWE et
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHERE FMERF TMHER
At 1 October 2020 M20205F10H1H 507 25,000 25,507
Additions NE 319 - (319)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 1R202293 A31H &2022F4 318 188 25,000 25,188
Additions NE - 24,413 24413
Fair value loss on investment properties &Y% 7 NP EEE - (1,442) (1,442)
At 31 March 2023 72023F3H31H 188 47,971 48,159

The Group's investment properties are situated in Malaysia and are held
under long-term leases (over 50 years). As at 31 March 2023, the Group's
investment properties with carrying value of RM47,971,000 are pledged to
secure the redeemable secured loan stocks (Note 29). As at 31 March 2022,
the Group's investment properties with carrying value of RM25,000,000
were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 30).

During the Year, the Group has obtained the possession of investment
properties of RM24,413,000 from related companies under the control
of the controlling shareholder via a contra arrangement, to settle its
outstanding trade receivables.

176 ANNUAL REPORT 2023  BGMC International Limited

REBZIREMEMABRALR - WIRER
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AR RMET
21. Other Investment 21. HiRE
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
20235 20224
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHEE TG
Other investment: Hipin& -
At cost RM2 (2022: RM2) FRRK AN O 5 (20226 : 2R ) - -

REMFBIENT

Particulars of the investment are as follows:

Place of Proportion of
incorporation Paid-in/ ownership interest and
Name and operation issued capital voting power held Principal activity
=L ML R B8 FrEERER FEEWR
AR 3 B 2RITRA PR IR RREAILL 5
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022

A20235 20224
3A31H 38318

Sparks Energy International Limited Cayman Islands RM2 0% 0% Investment holding
("SPARKS") HSHS DMERF wEZER

Dato’ Teh Kok Lee is one of the director of SPARKS, therefore, SPARKS is a S EEEIF| ASPARKSHIE F 2 — » EIESPARKS

related company. R—EEERA] -

22. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference 22. R EO EBELKRNVERE

Shares
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
A20234%F R20224F
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER FER
Financial assets measured at FVTPL BAFETAEBRRNESREE 5,694 5,694
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22, Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference

Shares (continued)

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into by BGMC Holdings, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, the Group subscribed 50% of the RCPS in
Kuala Muda Estate Sdn. Bhd. ("Kuala Muda Estate”), Machang Estate Sdn.
Bhd. (‘"Machang Estate”) and Machang Estate (Il) Sdn. Bhd. (“"Machang
Estate (I1)") (collectively refers to “Land Companies”) for a total
consideration of USD5,363,000 (equivalent to approximately RM22,044,000).

Land Companies had acquired land and lease to BGMC Bras Power, a
subsidiary of the Group and Idiwan Solar, a company incorporated in
Malaysia, for the development of a 30MWa.c. solar photovoltaic energy
production plants in Malaysia, including the Kuala Muda Project and
Machang Project.

The salient features of RCPS are as follows:

(@) the Land Companies shall issue and BGMC Holdings Berhad (“BGMC
Holdings") shall subscribe the RCPS at the value of USD1 each for a
total amount of approximately USD5,363,000;

(b) any payment to be received by the Land Companies under this RCPS
shall be utilised solely for the purpose of purchasing of the land;

() subject to the availability of distributable profits, the RCPS shall yield
a fixed cumulative dividend of twenty percent (20%) per annum from
the date which the RCPS has been subscribed by BGMC Holdings;

(d) BGMC Holdings shall, at its option, be entitled to convert all or any part
of the RCPS into ordinary shares at any time after the Land Companies
having been registered as the landowner in the document of title
of the land on the basis of each RCPS being equivalent to 4 ordinary
shares. Such number of ordinary shares that issued on conversion
shall be credited as fully paid and rank pari passu in all respects with
the ordinary shares then in issue in the Land Companies;

(e)  the Land Companies may be entitled at any time at its sole discretion
cancel the RCPS and pay BGMC Holdings the cancellation payment, i.e.
principal and accrued interest;
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22. AT E ATERE KRV IRE (B)

1R % [ 2 2 B KT 8 2 3)BGMC Holdings 7] 37 #Y
REEWE - AEE M Kuala Muda Estate Sdn. Bhd.
([ Kuala Muda Estate ] ) * Machang Estate Sdn.
Bhd. ([ Machang Estate | ) }z Machang Estate (Il)
Sdn. Bhd.([ Machang Estate (II) ) (£ /8[ +#52
T 1) R M 500 A BB [l Al B E L AR - (REREE
/35,363,000 7T (AEE 70 4922,044,000M F 45 ) ©

3 A B 2 U 1 3[R S 5= [ PR /A RIBGMIC
Bras Power } 55 2R 7 28 s AX 32 2 Idiwan Solar it
Mzt - AEERSKATIOEZMEN
[ZEE R REERLL - BIEMNREEIEE REEIR
B o

AJFE [ AT B SE AR O = RAF RO T

@) LHbA FH#E 1T & BGMC Holdings Berhad
(I BGMC Holdings ] ) i RE TR EEBE A1
ETH A EE T ERE LR - BREERL
5,363,000% 7T

(b) 3N RIRHAR B bt AT (B AT BB 48 S AR Ui
HEEM M IER AFRE LR /Y

© WRTAFaHDIREF - o] iE QA &
B RR A% B 7] B8 o] ] 82948 5t AR EBGMC
HoldingssRE A iR B FRAIEE D 2 =+
20%)[EE RETARE.

(d)  BGMC Holdings#& B #EZ IR L AR E &t
it B RS A A BRI
15 2 2B ek (E 7] 20 4> 7] B [0 A] S 4R (B ST AR i
matEl EEAFIRAEDA SR
BERERABARTBER - EBHREBETH
ZYEMLRIREAREABERD I
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22, Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference
Shares (continued)

()

BGMC Holdings shall have the right to receive notice of any general
meeting of the members and to attend such meeting but shall have
no right, unless otherwise permitted under Companies Act, 2016 in
Malaysia, to vote or to move or second any resolutions at any general
meeting of the Land Companies, except that BGMC Holdings shall
have one (1) vote for each RCPS fully paid up with conditions as stated
in the subscription agreement;

(i) during such period as any fixed RCPS dividend or any part
thereof that has been declared for payment remains in arrear
and unpaid, such period starting from a date falling not later
than twelve (12) months after the due date of the relevant sum
of the fixed RCPS dividend;

(i upon any resolution which varies or is deemed to vary the rights
attached to the RCPS;

(i) upon any resolution which creates or issues (i) shares ranking in
priority to or pari passu with the RCPS in relation to participation
in profits or assets of the Company or (ii) equity share capital
except for the RCPS which is not in all respects uniform with the
Ordinary Shares;

(iv) upon any resolution which would result in a change in the
dividend policy of the RCPS which deviates from the terms as set
out under this Agreement;

(v) appointment of a receiver or an administrator over the
Company’s assets, and (in the case of voluntary liquidation) an
application for the appointment of a liquidator, determining
the liquidator’'s remuneration or making any other insolvency
decision whereby the Company may be wound up; or

(vi) upon any resolution for the winding up of the Company;

In the event of winding-up or return of capital of the Land Companies,
RCPS holders have the right to receive, in priority to holders of
ordinary shares, the cash payment in full of the subscription price of
the RCPS after the payment and discharge of all debts and liabilities
of the Land Companies and the costs of winding-up or such capital
reduction exercise;

RCPS holders shall have no voting rights save for matters relating to,
among others, the variation of the rights attached to RCPS, a change
in dividend policy, the creation of equity share capital except for
RCPS which is not in all aspects uniform with ordinary shares and the
winding-up of the Land Companies;

e M RRME

22. AT EE ATERE R RIVIRE (B)
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22. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference 22. AT EEE A ERE L RIVIRE (E)

Shares (continued)

(i) Without the prior written consent of BGMC Holdings, the Land
Companies shall not, among others, sell, pledge, charge, mortgage,
transfer, dispose of or otherwise subject to any security interests or
encumbrances to any of its properties or assets, including the land;
and

()  The RCPS is redeemable by Land Companies for cash based on
USD1.00 per RCPS at any time after the date of allotment and issue of
the RCPS.

On 19 January 2022, Idiga Holding Sdn. Bhd. (Idiga Holding), the sole
shareholder of the ordinary shares of Machang Companies has entered
into a deed of arrangement with reNIKOLA. Pursuant to the deed of
arrangement, Machang Estate (Il) will redeem all existing RCPS issued by
Machang Estate (Il) at their original price. Pursuant to the subscription
agreement, all RCPS are redeemable by Machang Estate (Il) for cash based
on USD1.00 (equivalent to RM4.11) per RCPS at any time after the date of
allotment and issue of the RCPS. During the period from 1 October 2020 to
31 March 2023, the Group agreed to not exercise the conversion features
of the RCPS in Machang Estate (Il) and Machang Estate (Il) will redeem all
RCPS held by the Group after the completion of the disposal of interest
in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power in accordance with deed
of arrangement between reNIKOLA and Idiga Holding. As at 31 March
2023, the Group has the investment in RCPS of Machang Estate (ll) of
approximately RM3,145,000 (2022: RM3,145,000).

On 24 March 2022, Bras Ventures Bhd. (Bras Ventures), the sole shareholder
of Kuala Muda Estate has entered into a deed of arrangement with
reNIKOLA, pursuant to which Kuala Muda Estate will redeem all existing
RCPS issued by Kuala Muda Estate at their original price. Pursuant to the
subscription agreement, all RCPS are redeemable by Kuala Muda Estate
for cash based on USD1.00 (equivalent to RM4.11) per RCPS at any time
after the date of allotment and issue of the RCPS. During the period from 1
October 2020 to 31 March 2023, the Group has agreed to not exercise the
conversion features of the RCPS in Kuala Muda Estate and Kuala Muda Estate
will redeem all RCPS held by the Group after the completion of the disposal
of interest in 95% ordinary shares in BGMC Bras Power in accordance
with deed of arrangement between reNIKOLA and Bras Ventures. As at 31
March 2023, the Group has the investment in RCPS of Kuala Muda Estate of
approximately RM2,549,000 (2022: RM2,549,000).
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22. Investment in Redeemable Convertible Preference 22. AT EEE A ERE L RIVIRE (E)

23

Shares (continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in April 2023, Kuala Muda RIEHRE » 72023F 4 A » Kuala Muda
Estate and Machang Estate (1) have fully redeemed the RCPS of RM2,549,000 Estate }2 Machang Estate ()2 2 2k & [0l 7] #& [o] A]
and RM3,145,000 respectively. RS A% 5 512,549,000 5 45 K2 3,145,0004K
o
Intangible Assets 23. B & E
Intangible
Intangible  assets work-
assets in-progress Total
EITHIREN
BREE BREE et
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FHERE FHERE FHRER
Cost AR
At 1 October 2020 72020510 H1H 27,028 549 27,577
Written off for the period 7N HA R i 8 (25,642) - (25,642)
At 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 74202253 H31H 202343 H31H 1,386 549 1,935
Accumulated amortisation Rt
At 1 October 2020 7202051041 24,021 - 24,021
Amortisation for the period 7 HA i) 2 5 2314 - 2314
Written off for the period 7N HA S 8 (25,642) - (25,642)
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 720223 A31H KX2022F4 18 693 - 693
Amortisation for the Year PN g 278 - 278
At 31 March 2023 1202353 H31H 971 - 971
Net book value BREFE
At 31 March 2023 72023F3H31H 415 549 964
At 31 March 2022 7202243 A31H 693 549 1,242
As at 31 March 2023, the net book value of RM415,000 (2022: RM693,000) 7202363 H31H » BREF(E 4150007 & #F
represents the project software. (20229 : 693,000ME 45 ) FETH B 81 ©
Intangible assets work-in-progress represents accounting software under ETRIRENEFEERREROSTEE -

development.
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24. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid 24. EZ R HEEWEIE » € RFEN
Expenses B X
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
#2023F 20224
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHRER
Trade receivables: B 5 EGRIA
Third parties F=F 47,168 48,771
Related parties RAE 1 24413
Less: provision for expected credit loss W TEEMEEEEEE (19,627) (21,856)
27,542 51,328
Retention receivables: REBES EWFRIA
Third parties F=FH 3,461 3,875
Less: provision for expected credit loss i FEER = B EEEE (4) -
3,457 3,875
Other receivables: H At FEUGRIR
Third parties E=F 14,535 8,882
Related parties BER 4,969 2,540
Less: Provision for expected credit loss B TEEEEEIERHE (6,824) (2,342)
12,680 9,080
Refundable deposits AR BT 278 1,046
Building construction related deposits BFRERBELS 2,991 2,478
Prepaid expenses TEfRIX 204 194
Prepaid expenses to suppliers and sub-contractor AN THER RS BENRX 3,713 3,599
50,865 71,600
Amounts owing by related parties included under trade receivables are T AE 5 R IGRIE R B 7 45 R RIE R E R
unsecured and interest-free. RFRE o
Amounts owing by related parties included under other receivables which FTAE MW FIEN E R SR RIEFEEE

arose mainly from expenses paid on behalf by the Group, are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.

182 ANNUALREPORT 2023  BGMC International Limited

BAKRERASXNZAN  SEEHF 28K

BRI -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid

Expenses (continued)

Trade and retention receivables of the Group comprise amounts receivable
from sales of goods and services rendered in connection with contract
customers. The credit period granted to the customers ranges from 30 to
90 days (2022: 30 to 90 days).

No interest is charged on the outstanding balance.

As of the end of the reporting period, there was significant concentration
of credit risk arising from amounts owing by two (2022: five) major
customers which accounted for 64% (2022: 54%) of total trade receivables.
The extension of credit to and the repayments from customers are closely
monitored by the management to ensure that they adhere to the agreed
credit term and policies.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and retention receivables
presented based on the invoice date (net of provision for loss allowance of
trade and retention receivables) at the end of each reporting period:

e M RRME

24. BEF REHMBWRIER - BERFEAN
A< ()

AEBE S RREFCERWGESIEREHEER
mAFRENEFPREMNREERFIR - BT
BEEHEEBHANF30E0H (20224 : 30290
A)o

B AR EE SRR A R -

RIEEER - REMZQ0NF : AR)EFER
PHEIZENEERBRBEESEY  hBFHEK
FRIBHAFACA% (20220 + 54%) © B IR B R ) L
BEEEHEREFEENER  BRESET
EMEE B RBUR -

REBRERRZERBH2II2ES NREE
JE WK TR (AR H0RR 5 M R K AR 8 < B UK

HEREE) OREOTIT

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
20234 R20224F
3A31H 3H31H
RM’000 RM'000
THES THE S
0to 30 days 0&30H 12,879 18,813
31 to 90 days 31290H 2,261 894
Over 90 days 90BN E 15,859 35,496
30,999 55,203
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24. Trade and Other Receivables, Deposits and Prepaid 24. EZ R HEEWEIE » € RFEN
Expenses (continued)

Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade and retention receivables:

A< ()

B 5 MRED RUFIRNEREEHHRK -

RM'000

FHE R
At 1 October 2020 72020510 H1H 15,272
Increase in loss allowance for the period 7N AR A R R A N 6,584
At 31 March 2022 F2022F3A31H 21,856
Reversal of impairment loss for the Year R EEEREE (6,550)
Increase in loss allowance for the Year REFEER AL 4325
At 31 March 2023 72023F3H31H 19,631
Reconciliation of loss allowance for other receivables: EAth FEUR IR 2 ¥I8R -

RM'000

FRE S
At 1 October 2020 FR2020F10A1H 1,500
Written off as uncollectible =y =2 NG (1,500)
Increase in loss allowance for the period R A A R R A N 2,342
At 31 March 2022 7202293318 2,342
Reversal of impairment loss for the Year REERERERE (451)
Increase in loss allowance for the Year REF B ER AL 4,933
At 31 March 2023 M2023F3H31H 6,824
During the Year, the Group provided an impairment loss of other RAFE » AEBEG R —FEEERR 2 HAb
receivables owing from a related company of RM4,933,000 (2022: Nil). JE W SRIE BT 2 R (B E5 184,933,000 MR 7 4 (2022

FfE)

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables for the AREFE K2020F10 1B E2022F3 831 B HE
Year and for the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022 are set out HE 5 K& EH b FE W R R E R B H A M 5
in Note 6. 6 °
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25. Contract Assets/(Liabilities)

e M RRME

25. BHNEE(8fE)

As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 1 October
2023 2022 2020
M2023%F 20224 20204
3H31H 3H31H 10H1H
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHEE THER FhER
Contract assets BHEE
Arising from performance under REBITRESGH
construction contracts 77,087 140,633 244,429
Arising from concession agreements R ER T aE - - 120,052
77,087 140,633 364,481
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (25,813) (25,114) (20,254)
Less: Current portion W OmENEL Y (51,274) (115,519) (224,175)
Non-current contract assets IERBELNEE - - 120,052
Contract liabilities AHaE (4,504) (7,425) (5315)

The contract assets represent the Group's right to receive consideration for
work completed but not yet billed because the rights are conditional upon
the satisfaction by the customers on the construction work completed by
the Group and the work is pending for the certification by the customers.
The contract assets are transferred to the trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group obtains the
certification of the completed construction work from the customers.

Included in contract assets are retention receivables for contract works
amounted to approximately RM46,647,000 (2022: RM64,618,000).

Included in the contract assets are amounts of RM3,891,000 at 31 March
2023 (2022: RM5,488,000) due from the related parties of which RM3,394,000
(2022: RM3,394,000) are retention receivables.

Included in the contract liabilities are amounts of RM47,000 at 31 March
2023 (2022: RM47,000) due to the related parties.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract assets
recognised are as follows:

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the construction period once certain specified
milestone are reached. As at 31 March 2022 and 2023, the Group did not
receive any upfront deposits from customers.

BRBERAREND TR ERARERENT
REERKENERN - REZHEBEENAEGERP
UAKBEMEREEIRERIWEABRAIE
EERFEPZE o (bR BR RN IR R
(ERAEEBECHMTREETRERGERP
RA) - ANEESEREEHRNKFOA -

BHEERRAHNIERZLERKELY
46,647,000F8F 5 (20224F © 64,618,000/ 45 ) ©

202353 A318 - 5B E BRI ER T
TH3,891,000/8 3 435 (20224F : 5,488 000K H 45 )
H F3,394,000FK 2 45 (20224F + 3,394,0004K 2 4F)
BIRFE S EWREIE -

R2023F3A318 - B EREEMNER TR
TH47 000K 5 (20224F © 47,000/ F 45 ) ©

FEANEBRET RN MBS HEREERNT

o

REBERRBESNBIEZERNEERBERER
ETHREERERSBEZNONRERE
F2022F K 20233318 - AEBUTEARF
WEE IR EfIR S -
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e MR RME

25. Contract Assets/(Liabilities) (continued)

The Group also typically agrees to a retention period ranging from 12
months to 24 months for 5% of the contract value. This amount is included
in contract assets until the end of the retention period at the Group's
entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the issuance of certificate
of making good defect by the customer.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets because the
Group expects to realise them in its normal operating cycle ranging from 1

to 2 years.

Significant changes in contract assets and contract liabilities during the

25. SNEE (BE) (&)

REBE—MRIT A FF T 1208 A 22408 A R E
THE RESSAEAOEED - Z28aT
ABREE  BEERBLHBER - A5EA
REGZ R R RO FIBUR N F P 3 B I

s

AEEBZEANEEDBRRDEE AR
AEEENRN T 226 —REBEHNE
RREEE-

AEE/HRANEERSNEENERES

Year/period:
Period from
Year 1 October 2020
ended to
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
2020%F
B Z2023F Oz RR=ES
38318 20224
LEE 3A31BHEM
RM’'000 RM'000
FHER FRE S
Contract liabilities at the beginning of the Year/period — AR HAFHER AU HY
recognised as revenue BRBE 7,097 1,748
Contract assets (other than retention sums) at the REY HIEEEE
beginning of the Year/period transferred to trade JEYURIER & KB E
receivables (TEERES 56,867 122,808
Retention sums receivables included in contract assets at FAZNEE HAEREZ 5
the beginning of the Year/period transferred to trade ~ JEUGRIB B sF AR KB EH
receivables RFE 2 FEUWRIA 18,787 41,793

The following table shows the movements in lifetime ECL that has been
recognised for contract assets in accordance with simplified approach set

TREREARIEBEFR M B3RS R F SR AT
I EERRANEEN BRI ERERE

outin IFRS 9. B o
RM'000
FhER
At 1 October 2020 72020 10A1H 20,254
Increase in loss allowance for the period 7N B A ES 1B R A 3 0 4,860
At 31 March 2022 M2022F3 H31H 25,114
Written off as uncollectible during the Year R sE 7D AT E] (3,762)
Reversal of impairment during the Year RAFEERERE (6,216)
Increase in loss allowance for the Year ANEE E B RIS N 10,677
At 31 March 2023 ”2023%F3H31H 25,813
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26. Fixed Deposits 26. EHITFR
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
#2023F 20224
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH FHRE S
Fixed deposits with licensed banks: FEREERTT 2 E B K ¢
Ringgit Malaysia R EME R 28,358 35,236
As at 31 March 2023, fixed deposits carry interest at fixed rates ranging M2023563A318 - ERFRIREEFFENT
from 1.73% to 2.34% (2022: 1.45% to 1.90%) per annum, with maturity 173%Z234% (20224F : 145% 2= 190%) 5F & °
period ranging from 30 to 365 days (2022: 30 to 365 days). Included in fixed EEFH ) T30 K E 365K (20224 1 30K E365
deposits as at 31 March 2023 are pledged fixed deposits of approximately K)o R2023F3 A3 B EREAXBIEEER
RM3,251,000 (2022: RM5,062,000), restricted fixed deposits of approximately 2 F B 77 349 3,251,000 08 5 45 (2022 4F
RM2,811,000 (2022: RM2,761,000) and restricted bank balances of 5,062,000 F FF) ~ 5 [R $IE BifF 50492,811,000
RM22,296,000 (2022: RM18,899,000) for borrowings and banking facilities MRE HF (20224F + 2,761,0000F 45 ) 2 IR 1 4R
(including performance bonds) disclosed in Note 30. 1T#58222,296,000 K F 5 (20224F : 18,899,0004K
HERRITERE (BIERLRE) - HRMFE30
HER o
As at 31 March 2023, pledged fixed deposits of approximately RM1,735,000 720233 H31H - B EHF 491,735,000
were pledged as collateral for a performance bond issued to BGMC Bras M7 B K 1 VB /& 17 BGMC Bras Power 25 () 49
Power of approximately RM5,400,000. Subsequent to the end of the 5,400,000 7 45 B 40 R ER A9 4R o o R B
reporting period, in April 2023, the performance bond and the pledged K& - R2023F 47 - BHREKNE S IREEF
fixed deposits of RM1,735,000 were released. FK1,735000ME 1 E R ER ©
27. Cash and Bank Balances 27. B RBITEER
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
120234 20224
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER TS
Cash at banks and on hand RITMFERE 1,547 2118
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents at each reporting date are REBNSHREHHENRENESSEEMIUAT
denominated in the following currencies: H|EHEHE -
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
720234 20224
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER TS
Hong Kong Dollar BT 6 28
United States Dollar EVIH 15 15
Ringgit Malaysia R EME R 1,526 2,075
1,547 2,118
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28. Trade and Other Payables

28. B 5 R HA RS RIR

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
#2023F 720224
3A31H 3A318
Note RM’000 RM'000
FEE FHER THER

Trade payables: B S ENHIE
Third parties F=H 40,595 97,895
Related parties RAE T - 57
40,595 97,952

Retention sum payables: FERRES :

Third parties E=F 14,496 16,043
Other payables Hh {51 @), (b) 44,144 18,137
Amount owing to related parties EREBER IR 3,175 348
Accrued staff costs JEETE TR 586 431
Accrued building construction related expenses fEETIEF 2SRRI X 25,947 77,414
Other accrued expenses /H\ﬁﬁfg‘\ﬁﬁﬁi 748 1,318
Provision for performance bonds JB 4R B (d) - 25,797
Goods and services tax payable FET 7 dm BRI B 2,689 2,748

132,380 240,188
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEHENSTR
Current liabilities mBAIE 132,380 192,291
Non-current liabilities ERBEaE © - 47,897
132,380 240,188
Amounts owing to related parties included under trade payables are HAE S IEN AR FER B 208 AR
unsecured and interest-free. Rea o
Trade payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and B EMNFIBBIE®E S I ER AR
ongoing costs. The credit period granted to the Group for trade purchase Bi8MaiE - AEEGE SEEERNEZEH

ranges from 30 to 60 days (2022: 30 to 60 days).

The credit period on retention sum payables is 24 months (2022: 24
months) after completion of construction.

Included in other payables as at 31 March 2023 is amount owing to a
director amounted to RM61,000 (2022: RM71,000), is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.
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28. Trade and Other Payables (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the
invoice dates.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

28. B 5 Kk HAb B 7H (&)

ENBERAHZ B I RN TIRNREDITAT

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

120234 20224

3A31H 3H31H

RM’'000 RM'000

FHER TSR

0-30 days 0%230H 14,841 16,422

1-90 days 31290H 4,378 52,005

Over 90 days 90B A 21,376 29,465

40,595 97,952

Notes: PeE

@@  On 19 January 2022, BGMC Holdings, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, @ R202F1 198 ¢ B#E2E KB 2R 5 BGMC

has entered into an advance agreement ("Advance Agreement with BGMC
Holdings") with reNIKOLA. As at 31 March 2023, the advance from reNIKOLA to
BGMC Holdings was amounted to RM8,800,000 (2022: RM8,800,000) which was
included in other payables. Pursuant to the Advance Agreement with BGMC
Holdings, the RCPS held by the Group as disclosed in Note 22 shall be pledged to
the advance in favour of reNIKOLA. The amount is interest-free and repayable upon
the completion of the disposal of BGMC Bras Power. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, in June 2023, the Group has repaid the advance of RM8,800,000 by
cash.

BGMC Corporation has entered into the reNIKOLA Advance agreement on 24
March 2022 and the Supplemental reNIKOLA Advance Agreement on 13 May
2022 (Collectively known as “Advance Agreements”) with reNIKOLA. As at 31
March 2023, the advance from reNIKOLA to BGMC Corporation was amounted to
RM27,732,000 (2022: Nil) was included in other payables. Pursuant to the Advance
Agreements, the redeemable convertible preference shares issued by BGMC Bras
Power to BGMC Corporation in the aggregate value of approximately RM89,000,000
were the security of the advance. The amount is interest-free and repayable upon
the completion of the disposal of BGMC Bras Power. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, the Group has repaid RM26,231,000 of which RM18,671,000 was
offset with the amount due from BGMC Bras Power in April 2023 and RM7,560,000
was repaid by cash in May 2023.

During the Year, trade payables of RM47,897,000 was reclassified as redeemable
secured loan stocks, the details are set out in Note 29.

During the Year, Customer A’s appeal against the injunction granted to the Group
was dismissed by the Court of Appeal and Customer A did not further appeal to
federal court within the deadline on 12 February 2023. Details are set out in Note 39
(a). As a result, the provision of performance bonds of RM25,797,000 was reversed
and recognised in other gains, net.

Holdings £2 reNIKOLA 7] 37 # & 1% & ( [ 8 BGMC
Holdings W B & 1 38 1) - 72023463 A31H
reNIKOLA T8 BGMC Holdings % & 8,800,000 K & 4§
(20224F : 8,800,0004KF 45 ) B 5t A B fh FETFIE -
R IE BBGMC Holdings M B s - AEBFAN
] B [0 A S4B ST AR (PABT 5E224% B ) FE LAreNIKOLA

AR ANMERBRENER - ZHEARERTEK
ﬁ‘%BGMC Bras Powerfi & T1EIE o MIREHEIKRE -
R2023F6 A - ALEE LAIR £ 88 £.388,800,000
WEH o

(b)  BGMC Corporation B #2022 4 3 A 24 H £ reNIKOLA
S13ZreNIKOLAZE B ek - 202255 A13B AT
reNIKOLAZA B f e i (B Rl S B EHRE]) -
7202343 A31H * reNIKOLA 7] BGMC Corporation
@iﬁzwwooo%iﬁ(zozzi CE)BEEAHA
JEAHFRIE o IRIZEE B % © BGMC Bras Power [A]
BGMC cOrporamon%éfﬁmﬁ,,089,000,0007%%%E’\JEJ
BRIATBMRELERABRENER - ZRBARE
KA SERK H & BGMC Bras PowerBf fE T E38 © IR
EHIRE - REBE D EIE26,231000 54 - Heh
18,671,000k 3 45 2 542023 4E 4 A Ed i Y BGMC Bras
PowerFk B $ + 17,560,000k 5 2 74202345 A
LIRS EE -

(© RAFEE  ZHENMNKIE47897000FHEFH
HEANEEEERAERES - HeFBHMRMIE29 -

d RAEFE X BEEARBETFTASEMNOZFSREEN
LB EFEARKE - TE P AN R 202362
A28 85 1% HR A B AL #E— 2
#F o FFIBERNMI 30 - Bt - BARESEBE
25,797,000 2 5 £ 38 [B1 W0 74 B Ath U 2 7 F REFERR ©
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29. Redeemable Secured Loan Stocks

29. IRE R EAERES

As at As at

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

2023F 20225

3A31H 3H31H

RM’000 RM'000

FHER FHRER

Redeemable secured loan stocks AELARFERES 48,272 -

Notes:-

(@ On 25 May 2021, BGMC Corporation issued an explanatory statement to its
creditors in connection with its proposal to enter into a scheme of arrangement
(the "Scheme”) with its creditors pursuant to section 366 of the Companies Act. On
16 June 2021, the creditors approved the Scheme at the court convened creditors
meeting. On 13 January 2022, BGMC Corporation obtained the sanction of the High
Court of Malaya in relation to the Scheme and the court order lodged with the

Companies Commission of Malaysia on 24 January 2022 for registration.

All Scheme Creditors were divided into 2 categories ("Category A" & “Category B")
according to the status of the projects the Scheme Creditor being involved with.
Pursuant to the Scheme, debt was compromised at a ratio of repayment of RMO0.5
for debt principal amount of RM1 for Category A Scheme Creditors as full settlement
and repayment of RMO.7 for debt principal amount of RM1 for Category B Scheme
Creditors as full settlement, as a result of which a reduced amount of debt would be
owed to the Scheme Creditors ("Creditor’s Compromised Sum”). The Scheme also
required the Scheme Creditors to waive all interest, penalty and/or default interest,

late payment interest, costs and other charges of a similar nature.

20% of the Creditors’ Compromised Sum was to be settled in cash within 3 months

after the effective date.

80% of the Creditors’ Compromised Sum was to be settled by converting the same
into Redeemable Secured Loan Stocks (“RSLS”) issued by BGMC Corporation.

The RSLS would be redeemable at the discretion of BGMC Corporation anytime
within 36 months from the issue date at its principal amount with its accrued
interest due and payable by the Company on the redemption date. The RSLS is not

tradeable nor transferable, the RSLS holders also no voting rights.

The RSLS will become due and repayable 36 months from the issue date (i.e. 30 June
2023), interest will be accrued on the outstanding principal amount of the RSLS from
the issue date at a rate of return of 1% per annum for the first 12 months, 1.5% per
annum from the 13th month to the 24th month and 2% per annum from the 25th

month till the due date.

As at 31 March 2023, the RSLS are secured by the investment properties of

RM48,159,000 (Note 20).

As at 31 March 2022, the RSLS had not been issued due to various administrative
matters. The Group classified the outstanding balance of RM47,897,000 related to
RSLS as non-current portion of trade payables. The Group and MTrustee Berhad
("trustee’) entered into the trust deed relating to the issuance of RSLS on 14 June
2022 (“Trust Deed") and the Group has reclassified RM47,897,000 from non-current

portion of trade payables to non-current portion of RSLS.

During the Year, the gain on extinguishment of debts amounted to RM160,000 (2022:

RM46,114,000) was recognised in other gain, net.

During the Year, the 20% Creditors’ Compromised sum has been settled while RSLS
of approximately RM47,737,000 were issued to the trustee. The trustee acts as a

security agent who holds the RSLS on behalf of all Scheme Creditors.
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HIRES S ESER T ZERA([EEANES
)  BARMRENREEAREMAES
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BIFME -
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THEBARTET - AEBBHEAERGEEE
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30. Borrowings - Secured

e M RRME

30. BE—EEF

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
720234 F20224F
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH THER
Current: B -
Bank overdrafts (a) HRITEL @) 1,411 2,794
Bank overdrafts under multiple facilities (b) ZIRE TN 2R1TBEZDB) 1,478 -
Total Bt 2,889 2,794
Summary of borrowing arrangements are as follows: BELHRMT
(@ As at 31 March 2023, bank overdrafts were secured by corporate @ H2023F3AF31H F RITBEZUAEAQF]
guarantee by the Company and/or the subsidiaries. As at 31 March /S B AR R AR ERERE - B
2022, bank overdrafts by facility limit of RM2,780,000 were secured by 20229F3 A31H - RITHE X EEE /52,780,000
fixed deposits of the Group of RM1,430,000 and corporate guarantee MER - AR E1,430,00048 & 45 8 5 EA
by the Company and/or the subsidiaries. FREANT R SHEA R R BER
VEHHR -
(b) Multiple facilities, comprising general financing line, contract b)) ZEREREARLERREHESN K

financing line and blanket contract financing line to finance
construction projects, are RM102,696,000 (2022: RM103,289,000)
of which RM74,166,000 (2022: RM73,262,000) were utilised for the
provision of performance guarantee to the customers and bank
overdrafts. The facilities were secured by corporate guarantee by the
Company and/or its subsidiaries and memorandum of legal charge
over deposit and letter of set-off over fixed deposit of a subsidiary,
by creating restricted bank balances of approximately RM22,296,000
(2022: RM18,899,000), restricted fixed deposits of approximately
RM2,811,000 (2022: RM2,761,000) and pledged fixed deposits of
approximately RM1,516,000 (2022: RM3,632,000), properties owned by
the close family member of a director (2022: investment properties of
RM25,000,000 (Note 20)) and assignment of considerations received
from the customers.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2023, the Group complied with financial
covenants granted by various banks. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, the Group complied with financial covenants
granted by various banks, except that a subsidiary did not fulfill the
tangible net worth requirement imposed by a bank. In June 2023, the
subsidiary obtained wavier from compliance from that bank.

BMEEE SARERER—RIESOR
BRE » 510269600008 5 45 (2022 F -
103,289,000 F 45 ) + H A1 74,166,000 K &
15 (20224F : 73,262,000 5 1) B 1E A 1R
HIEEFMBOERRIBITESEA - Z
ERMEDNARA R/ REMBRRMELA
TR E R R BAFRVE L 9% B 1750 A R 3t
—HNBE AR E R FEREL AR HEREE
(AR R HISRTT 48R £922,296,000
R4 (20224 18899000 HHF) ~ %
PR I 72 B 13 20 49 2,811,000 4K 7 45 (2022
12,761,000 F ) R EEATE BAFHR
#71,516,000K F 45 (20224F : 3,632,000k F
) ERAFK BRI (2022F -
5 & W) 225,000,000 2 45 (BT 5E20) ) K i
EEREFRE)EER -

MR2022F K% 2023F3A318 - AEEBEE
TFTERRITROOTHHE - REHR
% AEEDETZEBITRLEAMEE
& E—RENE A R W EBITIRITIE N
ERFERTE - N2023F6 A - ZWEAQ
AIISZIRT T A REE -

FE3R 2023
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30. Borrowings - Secured (continued) 30. fHE — 2 (&)
The remaining maturity periods of borrowings as at 31 March 2022 and 31 202243 A31H R2023FE3A31H 2 EEFI
March 2023 are as follows: FEINT -
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
7202345 R20224F
3A31H 3H31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHERE FhER
On demand or within one year RESIEEL—FA 2,889 2,794
The weighted average interest rates per annum for borrowings as at end of REERR 2 BEEMETEERNEDT
the reporting period are as follows:
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
72023%F H20224F
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
THEE TG
Variable rate: AJEFE
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 7.67% 6.65%
Multiple facilities ZILRE 5.82% 5.82%
31. Pledge of or Restriction on Assets 31. EE KPR &I
Pledge of assets BEERS
The Group's trade payables, borrowings and other banking facilities had NEBEMNE HENRIE - (ERMEARITRE
been secured by the pledge of the Group's assets and the carrying amounts ERANSBEMNEERTRER  HEEED
of the respective assets are as follows: BRESRENT :
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
72023%F 20224F
3A31H 3A31H
Note RM’000 RM'000
Mozt THEE TIE 5
Investment in RCPS (Note 22) AR HE O] AT IR S IR IIE &
(Btat22) @) 5,694 5,694
Fixed deposits (Note 26) TEETFR(Ht5t26) (b) 28,358 26,722
Investment properties (Note 20) "EME(HiE20) ©), (@) 47,971 25,000
82,023 57,416
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31. Pledge of or Restriction on Assets (continued)

32

Pledge of assets (continued)

Notes:-

(@) Asat 31 March 2023, investment in RCPS, amounting to approximately RM5,694,000
(2022: RM5,694,000) was pledged to the advance in favour of reNIKOLA in
accordance with to the Advance Agreement with BGMC Holdings as disclosed in
Note 28.

(b) Included in the fixed deposits as at 31 March 2023 are pledged fixed deposits,
restricted fixed deposits and restricted bank balances for borrowings and other
banking facilities as disclosed in Notes 26 and 30.

(0) As at 31 March 2023, investment properties of RM47,971,000 (Note 20) (2022: Nil)

were pledged to RSLS as disclosed in Note 29.

(d) As at 31 March 2022, investment properties of RM25,000,000 were pledged to the
multiple facilities as disclosed in Note 30.

31.

e M RRME

BERFHIRFI(FE)
BEEAE)

BifeE

@  FA2023F3A31H - RAEL A SR ELRAIRE
#95,694,000K 7 5 (20226 : 5,694,0004K % 55 ) B 1%
H1BGMC Holdings ¥ & 1# 3% LA reNIKOLA & 2 2 A 1
BBENEE - R8s

(b)  FRANFTEE26 30T EE + FA202343 531 H A E A
GFREEEENCEREHER  SREITHT
T LR IR TSR IA R IR TRIE ©

(©  FR2023F3A318 - IE 47,971,000 F £ (Ff
7£20)(20224F : ) BHE TP I BEE B EIRERE
% (AP SE29FT R ) ©

(d)  M20243A318  RETREMEANKREYE
7525,000,00098 5 £ (B BERABTEE30) o

Lease Liabilities 32. HEAE
Present Present
value of value of
Lease lease Lease lease
payment payments payment payments
HEMAR HESKRE MEMNR HENFKRE
As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2023 2022 2022
2023F 2023F 20224 F20224F
3A31H 3A31H 3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
FHER FTHER THER THER
Within one year —FNRN 235 213 341 264
In the second to fifth years, E_FZRF
inclusive (BRERMF) 36 33 180 161
271 246 521 425
Less: Future finance charges B RRRERX (25) - (96) -
Present value of lease liabilites A& & ER(E 246 246 425 425
Less: Amount due for settlement 38 : 1218 A AEIEIEER
within 12 months (shown SHEWEBEaET
under current liabilities) 2751) - (213) - (264)
Amount due for settlement 12{E B &S E R R EAFRIE
after 12 months - 33 - 161
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32. Lease Liabilities (continued)

At 31 March 2023, the average effective borrowing rate was 5.65% (2022:
5.65%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract dates and thus expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its property, plant and equipment.
Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance leases as at 31 March
2023 are fixed at respective contract rates ranging from 4.94% to 6.18%
(2022: 2.50% to 3.30%) per annum.

33. Share Capital

The share capital as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023 represents the
share capital of the Company with details as follows:

32. HEEE(HE)

MR2023F3A318  FHEREBEF X E565%
(2022%F 1 565%) ° FIRRAEHBHET A&
(3B A b AR A B R R e

FEBOBREABEERTYE  BERK
5 > 120233 31 BB ERE AT A A EHE
FERR BN 494%E6.18%(20224F : 250% %
3.30%) 2 FEFEETE & KIFIEK o

33. kA&

202293 A31H K%20234%3 A31 BRI AIE AR
NEIMRA - BT

Number
of shares Amount Amount
REE ot L ot L
HKS$ RM’'000
BT FHER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREHEOIBTINEER
Authorised: SEE :
Asat 1 October 2020, 31 March 2022 and ~ F220209F10 818 ~ 202293 8318
31 March 2023 }2023%F3831H 5,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRERE :
Asat 1 October 2020, 31 March 2022 and ~ F22020910 818 ~ 202293 8318
31 March 2023 }2023%F3A31H 1,800,000,000 18,000 9,862
34. Reserves 34. #1E
(@) Group (a) &A&£EH

The amounts of the Group’s share premium and reserves and
movements therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.
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34. Reserves (continued)

(b) Company

(c)

Details of movements in the Company's reserves are as follows:

e M RRME

34, {48 ()
(b) AT
RATEER BT T -

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

% 43518 =450 JF - st

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Trias TSR THER

At 1 October 2020 202010 A1H 135,571 (66,131) 69,440
Loss and total comprehensive loss for AHIREE R 2 EE B4R 5

the period - (28,535) (28,535)

At 31 March 2022 202293 H31H 135,571 (94,666) 40,905

Loss and total comprehensive loss for RAFEEEREEEGE
the Year 4ERE - (5.362) (5,362)
At 31 March 2023 720233 A31H 135,571 (100,028) 35,543

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

Share premium represents premium from the issue of ordinary
shares of the Company above par value in prior years.

(i) Redeemable preference shares reserves

Redeemable preference shares reserve represents the value of
the unexercised equity component of redeemable preference
share issued by the Company.

(iii) Other reserve

(@) The transfer of the difference between the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company and
the nominal amount of the issued share capital of BGMC
Holdings after the Company became the ultimate holding
company of the Group upon the completion of the
reorganisation on 6 December 2016.

(b) The repayment of amounts due to directors of
RM65,000,000 in BGMC Holdings through the issue of
additional shares by BGMC Holdings to BGMC Malaysia
Limited on 26 January 2017 as part of the reorganisation
requirements. The directors mentioned are the controlling
shareholders of the Group.

(0 RENUEERAERE
(i) BAEE

BiraEEsEFERREERITA
NAEBEROTELENEE -

(i) TREELRREE
AEE RS EREEA AR EITA
BOEERORTERASDNE

o

o

(i) HAfEE

@ 2016F 126 EATREZE AR
AP BN B R IR R A A&
R A BT 2 IR AT B K BGMC
Holdings 2 B/ TAR A 2 =8
BEEo

b) ER/REHERH—EBH 2017
1 H26H 3B BRBGMC Holdings
6] BGMC Malaysia Limited 3 17 8
SR 1 18 32 FE {9 BGMC Holdings
B = 3RIE65,000000 F HF o £
MEEAAEBIERARR
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35. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

35. FERERERME

(a) MEFBFELABNES

Borrowings - Other Total liabilities
secured Lease liabilities payables from financing
(Note 30) (Note 32) (Note 28(a), (b)) activities
BN -FER HESE HitEATIE RETBELN
(Hiit30) (WE32)  (H226) ) afEeE
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
THER THER THER THER
At 1 October 2020 2020610410 69,286 21,643 - 90,929
Changes in cash flows Remeg (22876) (6,062) 8800 (20,138)
Non-cash changes FReE
- interest charged —BWFE 12928 1804 - 14732
- disposal of a subsidiary —HERBAR 15,89 132 - 16028
- liabilities directly associated with assets ~AABARELE EE
dclassified as held for sale ERRBNER (72,40) (17,09 - (89,532)
At31 March 2022and 1 April 2022 12022F3R318 R2022F4A1H 279 425 8800 12019
Changes in cash flows Reme# (14220) (2510) 27732 11,002
Non-cash changes FREEH
- interest charged —BWFE 2072 1,068 - 3340
- renewal of lease agreement -ERRERE - 202 - 202
Movements in liabilities directly associated with B2 58 BiS{EH & 7 B &
assets classified as held for sales BEAENEER 12043 1,061 - 13,104
At 31 March 2023 #2023%E3H31A 2,889 246 36,532 39,667
BGMC International Limited
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35. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(continued)

(b) Major non-cash transaction

U]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

During the Year, the Group settled trade payables by transfer of
property, plant and equipment amounted to RM948,000.

During the Year, the Group has obtained the possession of
investment properties of RM24,413,000 from related companies
under the control of the controlling shareholder via a contra
arrangement to settle its outstanding of trade receivables.

During the period from 1 October 2020 to 31 March 2022, the
Group settled trade payables by transfer of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets amounted to approximately
RM2,120,000 and RM2,317,000 respectively.

During the period from 1 October to 31 March 2022, amount
owing to Tan Sri Barry Goh amounted to RM13,572,000 was
offset with trade receivables from a related company.

36. Capital Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had approved and contracted

for investment properties under construction, as follows:

e M RRME

35. ZFERERERMEE(E)

(b) FEFRERH

0]

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

RAFE » ANEFEFBEZRME - W
B M & AR 4515 8 5 FE S FRIE 948,000k

i

RAFE - AEBEBBE HEH ME
AEA%ERAE S T 2 BE A R ESIEEY)
24413000 ERF 2 EBHRE - LUE
BHAREEE P EWEE -

20201081 H 2202243 A31H
- AEBLAYZE - BEREEUR
A E D B 492,120,000/ F 45 &
2317000 FFHEEE ZIENFRIA ©

R2022%F 108 1B E3A31HERE » 4
R F}HT B 2 PR B /Y 38 13,572,000 4K
HiFHEEWEB AR NE S ERETE
HEH o

36. EARKIE

RB|ERR - ARECHAEERZREMELFL
HAEITRIA - BT

As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
#2023F FR20224F
3A31H 3A31H
RM’000 RM'000
FHER THER
Approved and contracted for: EHAERETAD -
Investment properties under constructions TR EME 2,878 2,878

The settlement of outstanding capital commitments of the Group will be

made in cash upon investment properties that has been approved and

contracted for.

AEBAREENAEZFHEBNRIMNDHER
IR IREMER AR S

FE3R 2023
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37. Related Party Transaction 37. BEARS
In addition to the balances of the Group with related parties disclosed in Br E OB RE24 ~ 25 28T BE AN EE (B ARG B
Notes 24, 25 and 28 above, the Group has the following transactions with HASERON - NEB BB EITIATR S (RH
related parties carried out based on agreed terms and condition. TEIER NG T) -
Period from
1 October
Year ended 2020 to
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
20204
BZ2023F 10A1BZ
3A31H 2022%F
LHEE 3H31HHEAfE
RM’000 RM'000
FHEH THER
Construction cost paid to a related party: ST RE T RN
Exa Power Sdn. Bhd. Exa Power Sdn. Bhd. - 2,048
The remuneration of the directors and key management including chief FEENTEEEAB(REARREZITHA
executive of the Company is disclosed in Note 14. B)BIF B I 1432 B o
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38. Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and of

which RM63,283,000 is repayable in June 2025 and the remaining amounts

due are repayable on demand.

The amounts due to subsidiaries and related parties are unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

e M RRME

38. B A A

EURKBARNEBEAEERE &8 Hf
63,283,000 K BN 2025F6 AEE - M T
BIEAROBEIR ERIEE -

FENPB AR KRB IR REER - 28 &

FRERIEE -

The Company has the following subsidiaries: RARWMBEARIMT ¢
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable equity
registration and paid ordinary interest held
Name of subsidiaries operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL/ BRITRAE
WEARER AR ERRRA RARFGELER TEEH
Asat Asat
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
Ra023%E  nE
3A318 3A318
Directly Owned
ERER
BGMC Malaysia Limited British Virgin Islands/ USD100 100% 100%  Investment holding
Malaysia
ZBRLES/ 100%7T RERR
Y
Indirectly Owned
BEER
BGMC Holdings Berhad Malaysia RM1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
HRAE 1,000/ 5 REER
BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM1 100% 100%  Investment in the solar power infrastructure
business
HRAE MER REAGHEBERRHE
BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM10,000,000 100% 100%  Building construction and investment holding
SRED 100000004 4 BTRERRARR
Built-Master Elevator Engineering Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM750,000 80% 80%  Supply and installation of elevators
(Note (b))
Built-Master Elevator Engineering Sdn. Bhd. (#/b)) SR fee 75000045 45 HERTEEH
Built-Master Engineering Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM750,000 80% 80%  Mechanical and electrical engineering and
(Note (b)) investment holding
Built-Master Engineering Sdn. Bhd.(#3Z()) BRED 750 000H 5 4 BIRREEAR
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38. Subsidiaries (continued)

38. B A E (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable equity
registration and paid ordinary interest held
Name of subsidiaries operations share capital by the Company Principal activities
R A BRTRAR
MWEARER BRI EGE ERERRA KAAMEEGER TEER
Asat Asat
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
R2023%F  Ra0n%
3A31H 3A31H

Indirectly Owned (continued)

BEREE(R)

Headway Construction Sdn. Bhd. (Note (b)) Malaysia RM6,750,000 51% 51%  Earthworks and infrastructure works

Headway Construction Sdn. Bhd.(475#)) SRAEE 6,750,004 5 H THRERTE

BGMC BRAS Power Sdn. Bhd. (Note (a)) Malaysia RM100,000 95% 95%  Development and construction relating to

provision of renewable energy

BGMC BRAS Power Sdn. Bhdl(472£3)) HRAE 1000004 45 RERMBLERNERIER

BGMC Estate Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 100% 100%  Holding of investment properties

SRAD 100K E BERENE

Notes:- Hiat -

(@  Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 26 April 2023, BGMC Bras Power @ HRIEEIARE - B reNIKOLA B U B BGMC Bras
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Group as the management control and economic Power f) B 32 122 i 1 2 48 B #E 25 + U BGMC Bras
interest in BGMC Bras Power have been acquired by reNIKOLA. As a result, the Powerf?2023F4 A26 A B AREEKIE QA ©
financial results of BGMC Bras Power will no longer be consolidated by BGMC, while E It * BGMC Bras PowerH) B 75 % & 1§ T~ B R EH)
BGMC Corporation remains as registered owner of 95% shares in BGMC Bras Power A B » TBGMC Corporation?3#% 2BGMC Bras Power
until reNIKOLA exercises Call Option or BGMC Corporation exercises Put Option. 95% % 17 B =X B BT 8 & B EllreNIKOLATT {8 3R B8 A i
Details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 27 June 2022 and 26 3(BGMC Corporation{Tf 724 B - FHBEER AR
April 2023 and the Company's circular dated 21 September 2022. A EEA2022%6 A27H K20235F4 A 26 B A% LA

KA R B B /20224F9 B 21 BV L o

(b)  Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests. (b) HEAIERERZERIEEXRMBAR] -
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39. Contingent Liabilities

(a)

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2020,
a subsidiary of the Company, in the ordinary course of business, had
disputes with Customer A.

On 22 May 2020, Customer A served notices of termination of the
construction engagement, alleging that the Group had delayed
in completing the works under two contracts arising out of the
same project. Customer A had sought to forfeit the Group's two
performance bonds in the amount of approximately RM25,800,000.

On 27 May 2020, the Group has filed for an application for an
injunction in the High Court against Customer A’s proposed forfeiture
of performance bonds and has obtained an ad-interim injunction
order dated 29 May 2020 against the forfeiture of the performance
bonds by Customer A. On 16 April 2021, the High Court granted the
Group the injunction order. Customer A filed an appeal at the Court
of Appeal against the High Court order. The Court of Appeal on 13
January 2023 dismissed Customer A’s appeal and upheld the High
Court's decision. Customer A did not further appeal to Federal Court
within the deadline 12 February 2023.

The Group has also initiated arbitrations on 30 June 2020 (which
was withdrawn and retained as two arbitrations on 26 October 2020,
which was eventually consolidated) to dispute the validity of the
terminations by Customer A and claim against Customer A for (i) losses
of profit of approximately RM35,000,000 (ii) return of retention sum of
approximately RM4,400,000 and (iii) return of the sums under the two
performance bonds amounting to approximately RM25,800,000.

On 17 August 2020, Customer A issued a counterclaim of
approximately RM126,400,000 (which then became counterclaims of
approximately RM83,000,000 in the two arbitrations) in the arbitration
proceeding against the Group.

As at the date the consolidated financial statements have been
authorised for issue, the arbitrations proceedings are still ongoing.
The next preliminary meeting for the matter is 10 February 2023 and
subsequently adjourned to 3 July 2023.

The Group's legal counsel is in the opinion that the Group has a
stronger case to persuade the arbitrator to rule the facts in the Group's
favour.

e M RRME

39. AREE

()

SN A T B Hl A20205E6 A0 B I A E
FrigsE  ARa—HHEARRESE
BB EE ALY -

202055 A22H - BPAB KER EEE
BHRBA - BIEASETEETKRFE 8
BETMHOEHRENTRE - TRPARER
LR 7S &2 [ 00 R 22 B 49 £R R 4925,800,000/K

-

R2020F5 H278 - AEBERBEFA#RS
WEHR I A B E AR BEHS - WH
20209F5 A29 A SRR F AR WB 491R M ER S
Feis 2 4% - 20214168 » %%
P FAEBEZETS - FREAHEREX
Prias <M _EFR AR lRH E5F o EERART
R2023F 1 A3 AREEFARN LFF - #5F
BERRHR - BEEAWENE B
(BN2023%2 A 128) WA EEIBEBT IR H #E
— % Fif e

ANEE IS 7202056 A30 B RIBN &L (7
20205F 10 H26 B E IR BB AMIEREL -
BREEA—IEMNE)  HEPARILS
AMBEREREEZUHUATIEERNERP
AR ERE ¢ ()% B B 493500000008 &
B (i) R IE R 7B £ 494,400,000 5 5 K (iii)
IREMD B AR IH4925,800,000/8 2 4 o

R2020F8 H17H » EEAEREREFFMA
AREEBIR H I B R #49126,400,00008 2 45 (BE
BIEMIBMHE A A R B R 483,000,000/ F

H) o

HEGAUBRTERERMGZH - FE
BFNE#ETH - BESEMN T —XEE
S HHA2023F28108 0 HETHE
2023 7H38 -

AEEEZBERRB/AEERNEAN

MR - BEARL AR &L B A AR BB F
BT B E SR AT
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39. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

(b)  On 20 November 2020, BGMC Corporation received a demand letter
from a licensed bank in Malaysia (‘Bank”), in which the Bank alleged
that it had received a demand against a bank guarantee from a
beneficiary (‘Beneficiary”) being a customer of BGMC Corporation,
in the sum of approximately RM5,500,000, and unless the Beneficiary
withdraws its demand or the Bank is restrained from performing its
obligations, the Bank would effect payment of the sum demanded to

the Beneficiary on 24 November 2020.

Based on the demand letter from the Beneficiary to the Bank, the
said demand was related to a performance bond provided by
BGMC Corporation to the Beneficiary for a development project, for
which the Beneficiary alleged that BGMC Corporation has not duly

performed its contractual obligation.

On 23 November 2020, through its solicitors, BGMC Corporation
filed an application (“Application”) to the Kuala Lumpur High Court
against the Beneficiary, which restrains the Beneficiary from receiving
the sum demanded by the Beneficiary. On 24 November 2020, the
Kuala Lumpur High Court granted an interim injunction in favour of
BGMC Corporation, which restrained the Beneficiary, their respective
agents, employees and/or officers from effecting the claims of
the performance bond or receiving the payment or part payment
under the performance bond from the Bank until the disposal of
the originating summons filed by BGMC Corporation against the
Beneficiary. On 20 May 2021, the Kuala Lumpur High Court granted
a permanent injunction against the Beneficiary in favour of BGMC

Corporation.

The Beneficiary has applied for an appeal against the decision of the
High Court. The estimated payout for the bank guarantee is in the
sum of approximately RM5,500,000 should the Beneficiary's action
be successful in the appeal. The matter was fixed for hearing on 11

October 2023.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the burden of
proving any mistake in law made by the Honourable High Court for
the appeal is on the Beneficiary while the Beneficiary was still holding
on to the retention sum tantamount to unconscionable conduct since
the alleged back-charges for defects were certified and estimated to

be approximately RM3,644,000.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors
consider BGMC Corporation has a valid defence against the litigation
and has not provided for any claim arising from the litigation in these

consolidated financial statements.
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39. LAREE(E)

(b)

720204 11 A20 8  BGMC Corporation £
BB R — R RIT([ZBITHN
Rz - ZIRITEES WE1E ABGMC
CorporationE FPHIZm A ([Z#A ) 2R
FTHERZERK4A95,500,00008F FF + WHEHRIE
Fan AEUE E =R SR FEZ R TR BR I R
THE - BRIZIRITAER20205F11 A 24
ARYEAXNRERFIE

BIEZm AGZIRITHRNRE - ZRKH
BGMC Corporation [A] % z A HE f B9 — I8
BIHBMBEAREKER - Zm AFBGMC
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39. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

(0)

Pursuant to a call and put option agreement entered into between
the Company, BGMC Energy Sdn. Bhd. (‘'BGMC Energy”), DPI Solar 1
Pte Ltd ("DPI Solar 1") and Sparks Energy dated 29 August 2019, in
the consideration of the put option fee and the mutual covenants and
undertakings stated therein, DPI Solar 1 was supposed to be granted
an option to require the Company to purchase the put option shares
from DPI Solar 1 at the option price of US$1 per share. On 19 February
2021, DPI Solar 1 exercised the alleged put option and required the
Company to purchase the put option shares, which is 50.1% of the
Class 1 Preference Shares amounted to US$10,736,000. As the mutual
covenants and undertakings stated therein have not been fulfilled, the
Company did not purchase the said preference shares. As a result, DPI
Solar 1T commenced arbitration proceedings against the Company.

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 16
August 2022 and 23 August 2022 regarding the legal proceedings
in respect of the Group and other parties, the parties had entered
into a settlement agreement on a confidential basis, subject to the
conditions as contained therein for the full and final settlement of
the matter. On 12 May 2023, the Company announced that, in view
of the implementation and completion of the settlement agreement
in accordance to the terms therein, all the parties to the aforesaid
legal proceedings have filed notice of discontinuance. The notice of
discontinuance for this matter was filed on 26 April 2023.

On 18 March 2022, BGMC Bras Power terminated the Operation,
Maintenance and Management Services Agreement ("OMMA")
entered into between Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd and BGMC Bras Power.
On 26 April 2022, Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd has filed an injunction
application in aid of arbitration for the termination of OMMA. Ad-
interim injunction was granted since 29 April 2022 but the application
was subsequently dismissed by the High Court on 7 July 2022. Sparks
Energy Sdn Bhd appealed to the Court of Appeal. On 27 June 2022,
Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd has also commenced arbitration proceedings
against BGMC Bras Power for the termination of OMMA.

Meanwhile, Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd filed for an Erinford injunction
where the High Court granted an ad-interim Erinford injunction which
expired on 12 August 2022. As disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 16 August 2022 and 23 August 2022 regarding
the legal proceedings in respect of the Group and other parties, the
parties had entered into a settlement agreement on a confidential
basis, subject to the conditions as contained therein for the full
and final settlement of the matter. On 12 May 2023, the Company
announced that, in view of the implementation and completion of
the settlement agreement in accordance to the terms therein, all
the parties to the aforesaid legal proceedings have filed notice of
discontinuance. The notice of discontinuance for this matter was filed
on 28 April 2023.

e M RRME

39. LAREE(E)

(@

B & A& & " -+ BGMC Energy Sdn Bhd
([ BGMC Energy | ) * DPI Solar 1 Pte Ltd
([ DPI Solar 1]) F1Sparks Energy#20194F 8
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39. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

(e)

204 ANNUAL REPORT 2023

On 29 June 2022, Kazuomi Kaneto (the director of DPI Solar 1) and
DPI Solar 1 (which indirectly holds shares in Sparks Energy Sdn Bhd)
(“Plaintiffs”) have commenced a lawsuit at the High Court of Malaya
at Kuala Lumpur (Commercial Division) against 25 defendants, among
others, an executive director of the Group, subsidiaries of the Group
namely BGMC Corporation, BGMC Holdings, BGMC Energy, BGMC Bras
Power, and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, the Land
Companies and others (in total 9 individuals and 16 companies as
defendants, collectively the “Defendants”). The Plaintiffs’ allegations
are, among others, regarding the legality of (i) the disposal of interest
in 95% of ordinary shares of BGMC Bras Power; (ii) BGMC Bras Power's
termination of OMMA between BGMC Bras Power and Sparks Energy
Sdn Bhd; and (iii) the Land Companies’ redemption of preference
shares held by DPI Solar 1.

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 27 June
2022, 5 July 2022, 16 August 2022 and 23 August 2022 regarding
the legal proceedings in respect of the Group and other parties, the
parties had entered into a settlement agreement on a confidential
basis, subject to the conditions as contained therein for the full
and final settlement of the matter. On 12 May 2023, the Company
announced that, in view of the implementation and completion of
the settlement agreement in accordance to the terms therein, all
the parties to the aforesaid legal proceedings have filed notice of
discontinuance. The notice of discontinuance for this matter was filed
on 28 April 2023.

BGMC International Limited

39. LAREE(E)

(e)
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39. Contingent Liabilities (continued)

()

Maha Alusteel Sdn Bhd (“Maha”) served a notice of demand dated
13 July 2022 ("Notice dated 13 July 2022") on BGMC Corporation
pursuant to Section 465(1)(e) of the Companies Act 2016, demanding
payment of RM285,000 to be made, failing which, Maha would
proceed winding up proceedings against BGMC Corporation.

In response, BGMC Corporation filed an originating summon (“Encl.
1"), inter alia, to seek for an injunction to restrain Maha from filing a
winding up petition against BGMC Corporation pursuant to the Notice
dated 13 July 2022. On 19 December 2022, the High Court dismissed
Encl. 1 with costs of RM5,000 to Maha (“Decision”).

Dissatisfied with the Decision, BGMC Corporation filed an appeal
against the Decision to Court of Appeal on 4 January 2023 (‘Appeal”).
BGMC Corporation also sought for an injunction to prevent Maha
from presenting a winding up petition against BGMC Corporation
pending the conclusion of the Appeal (“Encl. 31"). The High Court
had on 27 January 2023, allowed Encl. 31 on the condition that BGMC
Corporation shall deposit a sum of RM290,000 (inclusive of costs
RM5,000 awarded by the High Court) ("‘Deposited Sum”) with its
solicitor, pending disposal of the Appeal. The Deposited Sum will be
released to Maha in the event if the Appeal is dismissed, and will be
refunded to BGMC Corporation if the Appeal is allowed.

The Court of Appeal has fixed the next case management of the
Appeal on 16 January 2024 and the hearing of the Appeal on 31
January 2024.

Based on the advice from the Group's legal counsel, the Directors
consider BGMC Corporation has a valid defence against the litigation
and has not provided for any claim arising from the litigation in these
consolidated financial statements.

Techtrics Solutions Sdn Bhd (“Techtrics”) had served two notices
of adjudication to Built-Master Engineering Sdn. Bhd. ("BME") on 6
January 2023, alleging non-payment of approximately RM310,000 and
RM1,674,000 by BME to Techtrics, in relation to the subcontract works
for the ICT system and ELV system.

As at the date the consolidated financial statements have been
authorised for issue, the adjudication proceedings are still at
preliminary stage. The Directors consider the ultimate outflow, if any,
to settle this possible obligation is subject to the final outcome of the
legal proceeding and is uncertain.
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39. LAREE(E)

)
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40. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

40. R B 2 AR R R

BRARBRRERARZBBRREZ 2 BRI

the end of the reporting period is as follows: o
As at As at
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
7A20234%F 20224
3H31H 3H31H
RM’'000 RM'000
THEE ARUN=Eo
ASSETS BE
Non-Current Assets FREEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EMBAF & 1 1
Amount due from a subsidiary FEY —FEIFfT BB A RI5RIA 63,283 62,581
63,284 62,582
Current Assets REBEE
Other receivables H e Y sRI8 160 98
Amounts due from subsidiaries A= NGIE /S 23 5,144
Cash and bank balances R& MIRITERS 20 41
Total Current Assets REEEHAT 203 5,283
Total Assets EELER 63,487 67,865
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERERER
Capital and Reserves EARK#E
Share capital I 9,862 9,862
Share premium mimE 135,571 135,571
Accumulated losses 2:tE18 (100,028) (94,666)
Total Equity FERHARE 45,405 50,767
Current Liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued expenses H b e~ IE M EET R 1,017 1,232
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERNB B A BIRkE 16,857 15,658
Amount due to related parties e A E 5 208 208 208
Total Liabilities BEEE 18,082 17,098
Total Equity and Liabilities EENaEEE 63,487 67,865
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41. Events Subsequent to the End of the Reporting 41. &5 KRB =T

Period

(i) In April 2023, BGMC Corporation has entered into agreement with () B 2023 F 4 A + BGMC Corporation £
reNIKOLA (Kuala Muda) Sdn Bhd, whereby BGMC Corporation shall reNIKOLA (Kuala Muda) Sdn Bhd ] 32 #75%
receive an option price of RM10,450,000 by 30 June 2023, in exchange & Itk » BGMC Corporation # 722023456 A 30
for the execution and delivery of an irrevocable power of attorney in H IS 10,450,000 5 FEaV BB S » A
favour of reNIKOLA (Kuala Muda) Sdn Bhd. HAEY 25 3 I X A BAreNIKOLA (Kuala Muda)

Sdn Bhd & X 5 AT AT BUEH RS -

(i) Subsequent to the announcement of the completion of the DOA, (i) REMTHRETHZER @ 7R2023F4 A
on 26 April 2023, BGMC Bras Power has redeemed the redeemable 26 B + BGMC Bras Power £ f& [B] F§ BGMC
preference shares of RM89,300,000 held by BGMC Corporation and Corporation$§ A #789,300,000M & H &Y Al &
on the same date, BGMC Corporation has redeemed the redeemable Bl &L f% - M F B - BGMC Corporation
preference shares of RM89,300,000 held by Sparks Energy 1 Sdn Bhd. B & [B] f Sparks Energy 1 Sdn Bhd 15 & #Y

89,300,000#K & 5 &) AT B 21 (& S AR
42, Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements 42, fhESRE M BEHRE

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for AP RREZTEER2023F6 A23EIER

issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2023. FRETEE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFEBEE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five
years, as extracted from the published consolidated financial statements of the

Company is set out below.

TXEIAEERERFZEE  BEMAER
Z - EEEARFE BRI ®RE

Period from
1 October
Year ended 2020 to Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 March 31 March 30 September 30 September 30 September
2023 2022 2020 2019 2018
S 20206 BE BHE =
20235 (O RIEES 2020 20194 2018%F
3A31H 20224 9H30H 9H30H 9H30H
LHFE 3A31HEHE LIEFE EFE FFE
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FTHESR FHER FHER FHER FTHER
(re-presented)
(e &=351)
Turnover from continuing SBICE TS 2
operations EE 110,110 285,828 190,473 343,356 498433
Turnover from discontinuing ERIEEEER
operations = 5,078 78918 122,625 10,382 10,872
Total turnover BEFER 115,188 364,746 313,098 353,738 509,305
Profit/(loss) before tax from BBICE R 2R TA
continuing operations smAl/ (E8) 7,286 (47,110) (203,296) (53,012) (3,469)
Income tax (expense)/credit FreRi(Fis), K% (489) 2,421 (5616) (2,264) (7,055)
Profit/(loss) and total FE/ R, (BE)
comprehensive (loss)/income R2E(E8), KA
for the Year/period ok 11,259 (59.299) (198,257) (55,276) (10,524)
Profit/(loss) attributable to PN/NS 2PN L]
owners of the Comnpany wHL () 11,878 (56,542) (193,543) (53,003) (4,145)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Total assets BERTE 402,811 473,319 839,052 893,711 878,188
Total liabilities Bfates 293,868 375,635 739,639 627,698 557,591
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